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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD /S ESREEAR L

CORPORATE PROFILE

daE 300

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 01169) (the “Company”),
a subsidiary of Haier Group, is listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are principally engaged in the research, development,
manufacture and sale of washing machines and water heaters in the
PRC under the brand name of “Haier”. The Group also began engaging
in the integrated channel services business for other home appliance
products such as refrigerators, televisions and air-conditioners, of both
“Haier” and “non-Haier” brands, substantially broadening its sources
of revenue and driving its profit growth.

Founded in 1984, Haier Group is headquartered in Qingdao, Shangdong
Province, the PRC and is today one of the world’s leading white goods
home appliance manufacturers engaging in the research, development,
production and sale of a wide variety of household appliances (including
the white goods) and consumer electronic goods in the PRC. The products
of Haier Group are now sold in over 100 countries.
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SIMPLIFIED BUSINESS STRUCTURE
T REBEE
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Washing Machine Water Heater ~ Integrated Channel
Business VERESS Services Business
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Ms. YANG Mian Mian (Chairman)
Mr. ZHOU Yun Jie

Mr. LI Hua Gang

Mr. SUN Jing Yan

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WU Ke Song (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. LIANG Hai Shan

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WU Yinong
Mr. YU Hon To, David
Dr. LIU Xiao Feng

Principal Board Committees
Audit Committee

Mr. YU Hon To, David (Committee Chairman)
Mr. WU Yinong
Dr. LIU Xiao Feng

Remuneration Committee

Mr. WU Yinong (Committee Chairman)
Dr. LIU Xiao Feng

Mr. YU Hon To, David

Mr. WU Ke Song

Mr. ZHOU Yun Jie

Nomination Committee

Mr. YU Hon To, David (Committee Chairman)
Mr. WU Yinong

Dr. LIU Xiao Feng

Mr. ZHOU Yun Jie

Company Secretary

Mr. NG Chi Yin
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A& & #

Legal Advisors

As to Hong Kong Law
DLA Piper Hong Kong

As to Bermuda Law

Conyers Dill & Pearman

Principal Banker in Hong Kong

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

Principal Banker in the PRC

China Construction Bank Corporation

Auditors

Ernst & Young

Financial Calendar

Six-month interim period end : 30 June
Financial year end 31 December

Registered Office

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A& #&#

Head Office and Principal Place of Business in
Hong Kong

Unit 3513

35/F., The Center

99 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Principal Place of Business in the PRC

Haier Industrial Park
No. 1, Haier Road
Qingdao, the PRC

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office in
Hong Kong

Tricor Tengis Limited
26/F., Tesbury Centure
28 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Telephone Number

+852 2169 0000

Fax Number

+852 2169 0880

Stock Code

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited:
01169
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Website 48 uh

www.haier-elec.com.hk www.haier-elec.com.hk

Investor Relations Contact REEBRBEER

Elite Investor Relations Limited BRI EEBEBRAR

Telephone Number: (852) 3183 0225 TGRS ¢ (852) 3183 0225

Fax Number : (852) 2155 9165 HEESHE : (852) 2155 9165

E-mail Address  : jonathan.kiu@elite-ir.com BEHIE : jonathan.kiu@elite-ir.com
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER
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1. Summary

In year 2010, we have achieved breakthrough records in profit
attributable to the owners, earnings per share, operating cash flow
and total revenues. Meanwhile, we continue to deliver superior
returns to you, our shareholders.

Our business and financial performance was attributed to
the consumption growth of the 3rd and 4th tier markets, the
various domestic stimulus policies, the continuous support of our
parent company through assets injection, the dedication of our
management to expand the integrated channel services business,
and especially, the result of our effective strategy execution pursuant
to our persistent business philosophy and values.

In this letter, | will further explain our strategic thinking and strategic
initiatives planned in the coming year for the sustainable growth
of the Company for the future years.

The Haier Electronics Today

In the Chairman’s letter last year, we proposed to expand substantially
our distribution network in 3rd and 4th tier markets. During the
year of 2010, we have extensively developed our integrated channel
services business in 3rd and 4th tier markets. We have developed
from being solely a manufacturer of washing machines and water
heaters to an influential integrated channel service provider in the
home electrical appliance industry in China.
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER E£fE & #

The Haier Electronics Today (Cont’d)

In the washing machines business sector, Haier maintains our world
No. 1 position in term of sales by a single brand name. In the
water heaters business sector, we have intensified the research
and development as well as enhanced innovation in gas and solar
energy products, and as a result maintained our No. 1 position in
the domestic market. To develop the integrated channel services
business, we have acquired the logistics assets from our parent
company, further invested in the distribution network, and also set
up distribution platforms with venture partners.

The combined performance of the Group’s manufacturing business
and the integrated channel services business for year 2010 was
remarkable.

Revenue and profit attributable to the owners:

In year 2010, the Group’s revenue reached RMB35,807,000,000, up
by 178.0% from last year. Profit attributable to the owners grew
by 114.9% to RMB964,000,000, our highest record ever.

Earnings per share

We have continued to achieve strong growth of earnings per
share. In year 2010, the basic earnings per share attributable to
ordinary equity holders were RMB46.85 cents, up by 109.9% from
RMB22.32 cents of 2009 (restated), another record high.

Operating cash flow

The Group has consistently generated strong operating cash flow.
In year 2010, the amount of our cash flow from operating activities
was equal to 128.5% of net profits. The Group had a cash and
cash equivalents balance of RMB2,706,000,000 as at 31 December
2010.
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER &4
Adaptation To the Trends = B ARES
We are pleased to share with you the four major trends we have W - BPREEFEMY ZEHEE AN EE
observed. 2B o

The Recovery and Volatility of the Global Economy

In the past year, the global economy has gradually recovered while
the developed markets returning to growth and the emerging
markets continuing to develop rapidly. The Chinese domestic
market, the focus of our principal business, maintained a robust
growth and became the second largest economy in the world. On
the other hand, the prices of raw materials consumed by the public,
such as copper, steel and oil gradually increased along with the
economic recovery, with an explicit appreciation of RMB. However,
unpredictable worldwide events that may arise from time to time,
create short term volatility and interrupt our long term growth.

The increase of Chinese labour cost and the development
of 2nd and 3rd tier Cities in China

We recognise that the increase in labour cost will be a trend
in the forthcoming years. With the increasing labour and raw
materials costs, the home appliances manufacturers should not
restrict themselves to being assemblers but should add values to
the customers through their innovative designs. Only through the
provision of differentiated services solutions that we can assure the
growth in profitability.

Along with the increasing wages and the upgrade of the industrial
structure, we observed the rising importance of the domestic
markets of China which is attributable to the gradual development
of the inland cities as well as the urbanisation of the 2nd and 3rd
tier cities. There will be major moves by manufacturers to relocate
their production bases to inland provinces, diverting the flow of
labour force from the coastal regions. The consumption power of
the inland province cities will be enhanced.
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER E£fE & #

Adaptation To the Trends (Cont’d)

Multi-layered Customer Requirements

China market has a multi-layered customer structure. Fashionable
and high-end design home appliances with energy-saving and
environmental-friendly features are popular in the 1st and 2nd tier
markets. On the other hand, in the vast 3rd and 4th tier markets,
majority of the consumers are focusing on fair price, reliable quality
and good service.

Channel Shifting

Increasing popularity of the Internet has brought challenges to both
home appliance manufacturers and distributors. Since the utilisation
of the Internet, the personalised needs of the consumers, including
product search and delivery of orders, are readily satisfied. With
the Internet platform, home appliance manufacturers should pay
more attention to explore more sources for customers, providing
them with better solutions and building reputations and customers’
loyalty through the Internet.

The emerging internet based on-line sales is growing rapidly.
We believe that on-line sales platform for home appliances is an
important sector which draws the attention of all home appliance
distributors.

As we believe the above trends will affect the home appliance
industry and create winners and losers, we have explored a new
drive for the Company i.e. the integrated channel services business
in the 3rd and 4th tiers cities as we described in the 2010 interim
report. In developing such channel business, we have acquired
the relevant logistics assets from our parent company. In addition,
we will further acquire other related businesses such as after-sales
services, recruit more personnel with distribution experience and
invest in assets for distribution and logistics services.
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER =& &4

4. Strategic Directions to the Growth Strategy P4 EBIERAKEMES @

In 2011, we aim to generate strong growth in three ways.

Expand brand and product portfolios

We will create broader and deeper product portfolios to serve
more consumers.

In order to achieve this, we will further expand our high end products
into environmental-friendly and energy-saving home appliance
products. The recent successful examples were the introduction of
“Casarte Duplex Large-Cylinder Front Loading Washing Machine”
and “wall mounted solar water heater”. By introducing specially
customised high-end products to the market, we can strengthen
our position in the high-end home appliance industry in China and
enhance our profitability.

We will simultaneously expand our portfolio into the value-priced
segment. Rather than introducing a sub-brand under the Haier
umbrella as we have done previously, we are launching a new brand
“Tongshuai” targeting value-conscious customers in the 3rd and
4th tier markets, by offering simple function products with good
quality and reliable service.

Extend our distribution system to Non-Haier brand and
Non-White Goods products

The goal of the integrated channel services business is to develop
an open platform with a good interaction and a strong logistics and
services system. Hence, our next focus is to expand continuously
the network of our Goodaymart stores and enhance the in-house
servicing level so as to attract more brands and products to deliver
through our network.

Small home appliances, televisions, personal computers and digital
products will be our next focus of introducing supplier sources.
These products have different characteristics and product cycles
that require us to enhance continuously our ability in product
order planning, inventory management, logistics and after-sales
service support.
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER E£fE & #

Strategic Directions to the Growth Strategy
(Cont’d)

Develop fast-growing on-line businesses

Our strategy in developing our internet based services is to utilise
the advantages of the Internet. These include effectively identifying
the personalised needs of customers, reducing the costs of sales
and transactions and creating a low-cost interactive platform, and
integrating such advantages with our efficient logistics system,
customers-centered product development process and strong
services network.

We will consider to integrate the Internet based home appliances
sale platform acquired from our parent company, providing our
customers with enriched product information and allowing them
to order on-line. Our customers will then be able to pick up the
stock and enjoy services at the nearby physical stores.

Moreover, we will develop a specialised and unified multi-channel
sales platform, integrating the telephone, catalogue and the Internet
for distributing home appliance, digital and household products.

Competencies to win

We believe our focus on the following three competitive edges will
enable us to seize strategic opportunities.

Firstly, we will maintain our core strengths — consumer understanding,
brand-building, product innovation, make-to-order, modular
production, customer-oriented product design and solutions. For
instance, our specialists designed the rat-proof washing machines
based on the requirement of rural customers, the quietest washing
machine in the world suitable for urban customers and the
wall mounted solar water heater for the high-rise apartments
residents.
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER =& &4

5. Competencies to win (Cont’d) B RIThziE (&)

Secondly, we continue to establish our Autonomous Units system
with a flat organisation structure. The goal is to develop a self-
initiated enterprising culture of “cultivate the customer base and
share the added value” so as to realise the win-win situation
between employees and the Company. In practice, we integrate
the different production units from the factory into a supply chain
platform so as to reduce the tediousness in management and
enhance efficiency in production. Also, we let the sale platforms
in different locations behave as a corporate entity, and strive to
let each member of the sale team to have a mission to face the
market and customers rather than to indulge in resources-approving
authority. In order to let the front line staff to have self-initiated
decision making mechanism and motivation, we require all senior
managers to break their boundaries that provide subordinates with
a self-initiated operation platform and delegate the authority.

Thirdly, we strive to develop our company into an organisation
with compatibility to make use of the external resources including
through acquisitions and strategical alliances. During the year, we
formed joint ventures with home appliance distributors in Shandong
to begin the expansion of our Goodaymart distribution network,
for which we have formulated business plans based on available
synergies. We have adopted an option incentive programme
encouraging the achievement of challenging strategic goals.

Outlook

Our team is ready to strive toward its goal. More investments
will be put on brand building, distribution, logistics and customer
services. We will have emphasis on investment return and long
term strategies, and also cultivate the culture of Customer-centered
Authorised and Autonomous Units system. As such, we are able
to seize the strategic opportunities.
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6. Outlook (Cont’d)

Let me conclude this statement by expressing my pride in our
management and staff for their commitment to bringing us today’s
performance, and my gratitude to you, our shareholders, for your
unwavering support. | hope that you will notice our continuing
improvement. Furthermore, | believe our enterprise will move ahead
to a promising future and deliver a superior long-term shareholders’
value.

By Order of the Board of

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.
Yang Mian Mian

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2011
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT
EEREREERE

The directors and senior management of the Group as at the date of
this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. YANG Mian Mian, aged 69, has served as the Chairman and an
Executive Director of the Company since January 2005. Ms. Yang is
responsible for determining corporate strategies and overall management
of the Group. She graduated from Shandong Industrial Institute, which
is now known as Shandong University, the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC")in 1963. As one of the founders of the Haier Group, she has
been in charge of the overall management of the white goods business
since 1984. She is currently the president of Haier Group Corporation
("Haier Corp”) and the chairman of Qingdao Haier Co., Ltd. (a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (the “A-Share Company”)).
Ms. Yang is also a director of the following Group’s subsidiaries: Beijing
Haier Logistics Co., Ltd., Chongqging Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd.,
Chongging Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd., Foshan Shunde Haier Electric
Co., Ltd., Foshan Shunde Haier Intelligent Electronic Co., Ltd., Haier
Holdings (BVI) Limited, Hefei Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Qingdao
Economy and Technology Development Zone Haier Water Heater Co.,
Ltd., Qingdao Haier Drum Washing Machine Co. Ltd., Qingdao Haier
Electronics Sales Co., Ltd., Qingdao Haier Goodaymart Logistic Co.,
Ltd., Qingdao Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Qingdao Jiaonan Haier
Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Qingdao New Goodaymart Logistics Service
Co. Ltd. and Wuhan Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd.

During the year, Fortune Magazine, USA published the world’s 50 female
entrepreneurs chart (50 female entrepreneurs outside USA) for 2010
of which Ms. Yang ranked the seventeenth, being the highest ranking
among the Chinese women. Ms. Yang has been elected onto this chart
of Fortune Magazine, USA for several times.
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Executive Directors (Cont’d)

Mr. ZHOU Yun Jie, aged 44, has served as an Executive Director of
the Company since 12 November 2009. He is also a member of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company
since 19 April 2010. Mr. Zhou graduated from the Huazhong University of
Science and Technology, the PRC with a Bachelor's degree in Engineering
in 1988. He has a Master’s degree in corporate management from the
Ocean University of China, the PRC and has completed his Doctoral
courses with a diploma in Management from the Xian Jiaotong University,
the PRC. He joined the Haier Group in 1988 and has over 20 years
of experience in the sales management and enterprise management.
Currently, he is the General Manager of the Company and also a director
of the following Group’s subsidiaries: Chongging Hairi Logistics Co., Ltd.,
Chongging New Goodaymart Appliances Sales Co., Ltd., Goodaymart
(Shanghai) Investment Company Limited, Haier Electronics Sales (Hefei)
Company Limited, Haier Electronics Sales (HK) Company Limited, Hefei
Goodaymart Logistics Co., Ltd., Qingdao Haier Goodaymart Logistic
Co., Ltd., Qingdao Haier Logistics Co., Ltd and Qingdao Lejia Electric
Appliances Co., Ltd. He is also a Senior Vice President and the Chief
Marketing Officer of Haier Group and the director of Haier (Italy)
Appliances S.P.A., an affiliated company of Haier Corp.

Mr. CUI Shao Hua, aged 53, has served as an Executive Director of the
Company since November 2002 and is a member of the remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Cui is
responsible for the Group’s corporate finance function. Mr. Cui graduated
from lJilin Institute of Finance and Commerce, the PRC in 1982. He
joined the Haier Group in 1993 and has over 23 years of experience in
financial management and listed companies’ operations. He is currently
also a director of Changjiang Securities Company Limited (a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Mr. Cui has resigned as an
Executive Director and members of the above committees with effect
from 19 April 2010 for health reason.

Mr. LI Hua Gang, aged 41, has been appointed as a Chief Operation
Officer of the Company with effect from 12 November 2009, and has been
appointed as an Executive Director with effect from 19 April 2010. Mr. Li,
graduated from the Huazhong University of Science and Technology, the
PRC in 1991 with a Bachelor's degree in Economics. He joined the Haier
Group in 1991 and has since held a number of senior positions in the
sales and marketing functions with his expertise in the sales management
in the 3rd tier and 4th tier markets of the PRC. Mr. Li is also a director of
the following Group’s subsidiaries: Chengdu New Goodaymart Electrical
Appliances Co. Ltd., Chongging Hairi Logistics Co., Ltd., Chongging
New Goodaymart Appliances Sales Co., Ltd, Fujian Goodaymart Electrical
Appliances Co. Ltd., Goodaymart (Shanghai) Investment Company Limited.,
Haier Electronics Sales (Hefei) Company Limited, Haier Electronics Sales
(HK) Company Limited, Hefei Goodaymart Logistics Co., Ltd., Hunan
Goodaymart Electrical Appliances Co. Ltd., Qingdao Haier Logistics Co.,
Ltd, Shangdong Goodaymart Electrical Appliances Co. Ltd. and Xuchang
Goodaymart Electrical Appliances Co. Ltd.
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Executive Directors (Cont’d)

Mr. SUN Jing Yan, aged 40, has served as an Executive Director of the
Company since March 2007. Mr. Sun has been the General Manager
of the Haier Group’s Electrothermal Product Division since 2005 and
is mainly responsible for the operation of the Group’s water heater
business. Mr. Sun graduated from Shangdong Institute of Light Industry,
the PRC in 1993 with a Bachelor in Engineering in Machine Design and
Manufacture. He joined the Haier Group in 1993 and has since held a
number of senior positions in the Electrothermal Appliance Department
of the Haier Group. He has over 17 years of extensive experience in
water heater business. Mr. Sun is also a director of the following Group’s
subsidiaries: Chongqing Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd., Chongging New
Goodaymart Appliances Sales Co., Ltd, Haier Electrical Appliances Fourth
Holdings (BVI) Limited, Haier Electronics Sales (Hefei) Company Limited,
Haier Water Heaters Holdings (BVI) Limited, Qingdao Economy and
Technology Development Zone Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd., and Wuhan
Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. WU Ke Song, aged 60, has served as an Executive Director of the
Company since December 2001 and has been re-designated as Non-
executive Director with effect from 12 November 2009. Mr. Wu is also
the Deputy Chairman and a member of the remuneration committee of
the Company. Mr. Wu is responsible for worldwide business development
of the Group and liaison with relevant government officials. He graduated
from Shandong Industrial Institute, the PRC which is now known as
Shandong University, the PRC in 1974 and joined the Haier Group in
1984. He is also a vice chairman of Haier Corp and a director of Qingdao
Haier Investment and Development Holdings (BVI) Limited, a subsidiary
of the Group.

Mr. LIANG Hai Shan, aged 44, has served as an Executive Director
of the Company since December 2001 and has been re-designated as
Non-executive Director with effect from 12 November 2009. Mr. Liang
was previously mainly responsible for strategic procurement and overall
quality control of products of the Group. He is currently responsible for
identifying market opportunities and white goods business strategies
formulation of the Company. He received a Bachelor’s degree of Industry
from the Xian Jiaotong University, the PRC and has 22 years of experience
in the manufacture of household electrical appliances, in particular in
raw material procurement function and white goods business. He is also
a Senior Vice President of Haier Corp, the Vice Chairman of A-Share
Company and a director of the following Group’s subsidiaries: Beijing
Haier Logistics Co., Ltd.; Qingdao Economy and Technology Development
Zone Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd., and Qingdao Haier Investment and
Development Holdings (BVI) Limited.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WU Yinong, aged 48, has served as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since January 2005. Mr. Wu graduated from
Portland State University in the United States of America with a Master’s
degree in Business Administration in 1994. He is currently the Deputy
General Manager of China Merchants Securities (Hong Kong) Co., Limited
and the Head of Investment Banking Department. He has been in the
investment banking industry for more than 14 years.

Mr. YU Hon To, David, aged 63, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 21 June 2007. Mr. Yu is
a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He was formerly a partner of an international accounting
firm with extensive experience in corporate finance. Mr. Yu is the
Vice Chairman of MCL Partners Limited, a Hong Kong based financial
advisory and investment firm. He serves as an independent non-executive
director of several other companies listed on the Stock Exchange, namely
China Datang Corporation Renewable Power Co., Limited, Great China
Holdings Limited, Hong Kong Energy (Holdings) Limited, Media Chinese
International Limited, One Media Group Limited, Playmates Holdings
Limited, Sateri Holdings Limited, Synergis Holdings Limited, TeleEye
Holdings Limited and VXL Capital Limited.

Dr. LIU Xiao Feng, aged 48, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 21 June 2007. He is currently
the Managing Director of China Resources Capital Holdings Co., Ltd.
He has worked in various international financial institutions since 1993,
including N. M. Rothschild & Sons, JP Morgan and DBS. He has many
years of experience in corporate finance. Dr. Liu has a Ph.D and Master
degrees from the Faculty of Economics, University of Cambridge and a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics from Sichuan Institute of Finance and
Economics, China. Dr. Liu is currently also an independent non-executive
director of Kunlun Energy Company Limited and Honghua Group Limited,
both of which are publicly listed companies on the Stock Exchange.

Senior Management

Mr. HUANG Xiao Wu, aged 33, was appointed as Deputy General
Manager of the Company in November 2009. Mr. Huang holds a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from the University of Hong Kong and
a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering from the University of Chong Qing. Mr.
Huang is responsible for assisting the General Manager in implementing
the Group’s corporate development strategy. Mr. Huang has 13 years
of extensive experience in banking, investment and corporate finance.
Prior to joining the Group, He had worked with a commercial bank and
several investment banking firms.
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Senior Management (Cont’d)

Mr. PENG Jia Jun, aged 33, was appointed as Chief Financial Officer
of the Company on 10 February 2009. Mr. Peng has a Master's degree
in Business Administration from the University of International Business
and Economics and a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from
Northeastern University, China. He is currently a Doctoral Candidate in
accounting of Ocean University of China. He joined the Haier Group in
2000 and has since held a number of senior financial positions in Haier
Group finance department, Haier Australia trading company and washing
machine business of the Group.

Mr. SHU Hai, aged 44, has served as the General Manager of washing
machine product division of the Company since June 2009. Mr. Shu has
a Master's degree in International Trade from Ocean University of China,
the PRC. He joined the Haier Group in 1995 and has since held a number
of senior positions in the washing machine business. He is currently
responsible for the sales, research and development and production
management of the washing machine business of the Group.

Mr. WANG Zheng Gang, aged 38, has served as the General Manager
of Haier Group Logistics Company since March 2003, and has currently
served as the director of logistics division of the Group. Mr. Wang
graduated from Tianjin University in 1995. He also graduated from the
Xian Jiaotong University, the PRC with a Master’s degree in Logistics
Engineering in 2007. He has 15 years of experience in the manufacture of
household electrical appliances, in particular in raw material procurement
function and logistics business. He is currently responsible for developing
the logistics business of the Company and identifying related market
opportunities.

Mr. LU Pei Shi, aged 47, graduated from Shandong Agricultural and
Mechanical College, the PRC with a Bachelor’s degree in 1987. He joined
the Haier Group in 1995 and has since held a number of senior positions
in the washing machine business of the Haier Group. He is currently
responsible for the research and development function of the washing
machine business of the Group. He is a member of the Washing Machine
Sub-committee of the International Electrotechnical Commission.

Company Secretary

Mr. NG Chi Yin, aged 45, joined the Company on 18 March 2009 as
Company Secretary. Mr. Ng graduated from the Faculty of Business
Administration of the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s
degree in business administration. He is also a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He has over 22 years of
experience in auditing, finance and company secretarial matters.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
7% B

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview

Haier Electronics Group is a manufacturer of washing machines and
water heaters, and is also a provider of integrated channel services to
principally the 3rd and 4th tier markets in China. The Group has three
major segments: washing machines business, water heater business and
the integrated channel services business. Currently, the Group’s white
goods manufacturing business is operated under the Haier brand while
the integrated channel services business is operated under the brand
name of Goodaymart.

During 2010, thanks to the robust economic growth in China and the
support from the domestic stimulus policies of the government such
as the “Rural Area Subsidised Electrical Appliances Purchase Policy”,
the “Subsidy for Energy Efficient Appliances” and “Home Appliance
Replacement Policy”, the home appliance industry continued to enjoy
stable growth in China. In particular, the continuation of the “Rural
Area Subsidised Electrical Appliances Purchase Policy” boosted the sales
revenue of home appliances for the year 2010 by 1.7 fold compared
with that in 2009. Meanwhile, more domestic and foreign brands were
included in the product portfolio of the “Rural Area Subsidised Electrical
Appliances Purchase Policy”, resulting in fiercer competition in the home
appliances industry in the 3rd and 4th tier markets.

Nevertheless, with the measures taken including production cost control,
product innovation and the expansion of distribution channels, the
Group achieved a total revenue of RMB35,807,000,000 for the year,
representing a growth of 178.0% from that of 2009 (restated); the
profit attributable to the owners of RMB964,000,000, representing a
growth of 114.9% from 2009's RMB449,000,000 (restated); and the
earnings per share (basic) attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company of RMB46.85 cents, representing an increase of 109.9% from
last year's RMB22.32 cents.
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The segment revenue and results for 2010 were as follows: ZE-DEHBEWAREERLLLAINT
ST IEUTNE AL EL SIEEBEER LI
Segment revenues Segment results
Integrated Washing machine Integrated Washing machine

P

A channel services

27% REFERS
4 30%

channel services
REGERS
66%

Water heater
Bk 2R
0y
7% Water heater
Bk 2R

18%

ﬁﬂ:

Note: The above pie charts set out the aggregate amounts in terms C LiBtEEA LA R IER O BRAREESE
of segment revenue and results, without taking into account of IR - RERWARMERFEEEIR -
segment revenues and results eliminations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont’d)

Washing machine business

The Group’s washing machine business comprises the manufacture and
sales of top-loading and front-loading washing machines. In 2010, the
washing machine business achieved a revenue of RMB11,519,000,000,
representing a growth of 25.4% from last year's RMB9,185,000,000,
which was mainly caused by the robust growth of the China’s washing
machine market in China and the apparent growth in sales from the
global market.

According to the data of Euromonitor, the sales volume of washing
machines totaled 113.46 million worldwide in 2010, while the sales
volume of the Group’s washing machines increased significantly to 10.31
million, accounted for 9.1% of the market share of the retail sales volume
of worldwide washing machine brands, ranking first in the world.

The Group’s revenue from the export of washing machines grew by
23.2% for the year over the corresponding period of 2009. The market
share of Haier brand grew rapidly in European and US markets with
further improvement in brand awareness. According to market research
reports by China Market Monitor Co. Ltd., the Group’s washing machines
enjoyed a domestic market share of 26.9% in term of sales volume for
2010, continuing to rank No. 1 in the domestic market.

By optimising product mix, aggressively developing premium and high
value-added products, the gross profit margins of the washing machine
business increased from 27.1% in 2009 to 28.1% in 2010.

In 2010, the Group has developed hybrid washing machines comprising
the advantages of dual-drive products and front-load products. Both the
hybrid washing machines and the Casarte duplex large-cylinder front
loading washing machines were awarded “2011 iF Design Awards” for
their innovative concept and excellence performance.

With the increasing consumer income, the mounting urbanisation rate
and the governmental policies such as “Rural Area Subsidised Electrical
Appliances Purchase Policy” and “Home Appliances Replacement Policy”
driven rise in domestic demand, the domestic washing machine market
is expected to maintain a stable growth in the next few years.

Annual Report 2010 —Z —ZF F 3|

EEEFWR DN (E)

HARHET
AEEAREEHDIERLERHERRRARER
FERGRME - T TEARBEBERRAS

AR ®11,519,000,0007T - M_TZNF 2 HAA
R #9,185,000,000 T84 £25.4% + JEI M 5 H5 U A
R R E BB EMN P BRI ISRRK R K2R
IS ERERT -

IR IE BOMN B AR (EuromonitonBEBE R - — T —TF
PHOTRMEELE 5113468846 REERK
HWIHEBEE FHIZEI1031888  RERXRKKER

FERRTISmEEEERI1%  FERE— -

AEBRRBEFREALORAR_ZETAFR

H#R232%  EREMBERAE  RUE#
FiRm o RETHERSATSHRBRE  ——%
FoAREEZARBEREMABATSERIEEE

5269% - BEBHFEATSEE— -

BRELESD @i R hAERm LS MM
BER  #F15 &K%%Wm%ﬂfm_?vniz
27.1% EHEIZZE—FF 228.1% °

T -ZFAKERETEEH HNMEFEI N —
BB N HEAEEA FHENRES
BARKREAKE  BREAFHOITESRLEE
MRS EREERITERFARE — —_S—FF
[IFRRETREE] -

CEELRE L ONCE N e
B RERIRETH  [AERH %N R
BT BEARAT  BREKRDSRHDITR
B RAT -



BUSINESS REVIEW 27 =l g

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont’d)

Water heater business

The revenue of the water heater business for the year amounted to
RMB3,126,000,000, representing a growth of 33.3% over the revenue
of RMB2,345,000,000 in 2009. The rise was mainly attributable to the
new demand from the 1st and 2nd tier markets as well as the robust
growth in the 3rd and 4th tier markets. The gross profit margin of the
water heater business was 42.5%, representing an increase of 1.5%
compared to last year, which was mainly due to the rise in the proportion
of high end products.

According to the data from China Market Monitor, the Group maintained
its leading position in the domestic market by holding 19.3% market
share in the water heater business in term of sales volume. In 2010,
leveraging on its existing advantage in channel resources, the Group
upgraded its products including electric water heaters, gas water heaters
and solar water heaters as well as its services. While promoting safety,
comfort and efficiency of its products, this also provides users with low
power consumption solutions based on safe and comfortable appliances,
which in turn enhances brand image.

The growth of solar water heater was exceptionally high with a
year-on-year increase of 218%. On one hand, this was attributable to
the Group’s channel advantage in the 3rd and 4th tier markets. On
the other hand, with an aim to match the rapid growth of the solar
water heater market and its development trend, the Group stepped up
its investment in research, development and design, assembled teams
of professionals to develop solar panel powered products. The Casarte
solar water heater developed by the Group was given the red dot design
award in Essen, Germany in 2011.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont’d)

Integrated channel services business

The Group’s existing integrated channel services business mainly includes
the product distribution business and the logistics services business
acquired from Haier Group during the year. Save for conducting sales
of “Haier” brands in the 3rd and 4th tier markets, the integrated
channel services business is also responsible for the sales of “non-Haier”
brands.

The integrated channel services business realised an accumulated sales
revenue of RMB28,227,000,000 in 2010 and gross profit margin of
3.1%. Currently, most of the acquired goods through the integrated
channel services, including refrigerators, air conditioners, televisions
and computers are originated from the Company’s parent company,
Haier Group.

In the year 2010, through the adoption of a franchise model, the
Group has established its distribution network at the county level with
approximately 6,000 Haier Stores and 700 Goodaymart Stores. Moreover,
28,000 sale points were launched at the town level through franchise
model, with coverage of over 80% of towns in China and represent a
two-fold growth compared with year 2009.

In 2010, the Group completed the acquisition of the logistics business
from Haier Group at a total consideration of RMB763,000,000. The
acquisition served as an indispensable part for the development of the
Group’s channel integrated business. The integration with the distribution
network of Goodaymart will enable the Group to establish a complete
distribution service platform and generate substantial synergy effect. In
addition to the nationwide warehouse and transportation network, the
logistics assets acquired also featured proven strong profitability and
operational methods with high capital efficiency. In 2010, the logistics
business recorded a revenue of RMB2,213,000,000 and a net profit of
RMB97,000,000, both of which realised a significant growth as compared
with 2009.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont’d)

Outlook

2011 marks the beginning of the “Twelfth Five-year” Plan in China.
The government has decided to construct 36 million social housing
during this period. We expect this move will begin to drive the home
appliance industry from 2012. Under the backdrop of the continuous
economic recovery, accelerated urbanisation in China, rising consumers’
income together with the State’s further implementation of the domestic
stimulus polices such as the “Rural Area Subsidised Electrical Appliances
Purchase Policy” and the “Home Appliance Replacement Policy”, the
home appliance market is expected to maintain a stable growth in the
next few years.

Meanwhile, our results growth in the future is also exposed to various
challenges. Prices of raw materials such as steel, copper, aluminum and
plastics, which are widely used in the home appliance industry, are at
high levels and fluctuating greatly, which are fueled by factors including
inflation and demand and supply. The improvement in the composition
of the economy in China will simultaneously lift labour cost as well.
The increasingly fierce competition from the home appliance industry
has imposed certain pressure on our market share and product prices.
Although our newly developed integrated channel service has come
into shape, we still need to step up efforts and allocate more staff
and capital in such areas as the expansion of brand supplier resources,
optimisation and extensive development of network and building of
logistics strength.

In response to the above challenges, we will adhere to the customer-
oriented philosophy. Efforts will be made to identify customers’ needs
to the full extent and mass tailor-made marketing and production will
be promoted. We will persist in product innovation and product mix
optimisation, relentlessly focusing on production and operational efficiency
enhancement. In addition, we will invest more in the development of
integrated channel services business and spare no effort to build our core
competitive advantage, i.e, integrating sales network, logistics network
and after-sale service network, so as to share further the benefits arising
from the growth of the home appliance distribution sector.
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1. Analysis of Revenue and Profit Items 1. WARER DT
2010 2009
—EZ-2F —ZEENF
(Restated)
(&%)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFTT
Revenue WA
Washing machine business SRS 11,519,008 9,185,375
Water heater business HOKBREB 3,126,182 2,345,229
Integrated channel services business RIEBEAIRBES 28,227,242 1,717,489
Inter-segment elimination g% (7,065,760) (370,100)
Consolidated A BHRA 35,806,672 12,877,993
EBITDA BRAE -~ THIE ~ T RS AT E A 1,510,537 733,784
Profit attributable to owners AR E AR R A Y )
of the Company 964,363 448,652
Earnings per share attributable PAYNSI RS 618
to ordinary equity holders of JE1E B AR A
the Company
Basic EK 46.85 Cents 22.32 Cents
46.857 22.32%
Diluted e 40.68 Cents 20.62 Cents
40.687 20.62%
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Revenue

The Group’s revenue in 2010 is mainly derived from three major
segments, comprising the traditional washing machine and water
heater manufacturing business and more recent integrated channel
services business. In 2010, the Group has achieved a total revenue of
RMB35,807,000,000, representing an increase of 178.0% as compared
to the revenue of RMB12,878,000,000 in 2009 (restated). The increase
was attributable to the following two reasons: Firstly, both the Group’s
washing machine business and water heater business recorded a
significant increase in revenue which amounted to RMB14,645,000,000
in 2010, representing a 27.0% increase from last year’s total revenue of
RMB11,531,000,000 in 2009. Secondly, the integrated channel services
business in 3rd and 4th tier markets, which was developed during the
year, realized a total revenue of RMB28,227,000,000.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

Profit attributable to owners of the Companyin 2010 was RMB964,000,000,
representing an increase of 114.9% from RMB449,000,000 of 2009
(restated). Basic earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company for the period was RMB46.85 cents, representing
an increase of 109.9% from RMB22.32 cents of 2009 (restated). The
EBITDA (profit before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation) in 2010
amounted to RMB1,511,000,000, representing an increase of 105.9%
from RMB734,000,000 of 2009 (restated).

Gross Profit Margins

In 2010, gross profit margins for the washing machine business and
water heater business were 28.1% and 42.5%, respectively, representing
an increase of 1.0% and 1.5% as compared to 2009. Despite the price
fluctuation of raw materials, the Group actively improved its product mix,
promoted the sales of high-end products such as Casarte front-loading
washing machines, increased the proportion of high value-added AB
products and the proportion of AB customers, implemented modular lean
design and modular lean manufacturing methods and reduced the design
and production costs in order to expand our gross profit margins.
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Gross Profit Margins (Cont’d)

In 2010, our integrated channel services business in the 3rd and 4th
tier markets experienced gross profit margin of 3.1%, representing
an increase of 0.5% from 2.6% disclosed in the interim report. The
increase in the gross profit margin was due partially to the realisation
of economies of scale of the distribution business from the increasing
penetration of the distribution network, which results in the gross margin
of the distribution business growth to 2.7%. Besides, the consolidation of
the logistic business with a higher gross profit margin of 7.4% brought

corresponding increase in gross profit margin.

The integrated channel services business in the 3rd and 4th tier markets,
which has a lower gross profit margin than the washing machine and
water heater businesses, accounted for a higher proportion of the Group’s
total revenue. Due to this change in the business mix and revenue
components, the Group’s consolidated gross profit margin decreased
t0 13.3% in 2010, from 25.0% in 2009 (restated).

Selling and Distribution Cost

The Group has implemented solid expense control measures, including
optimising incentive pay mechanism, improving marketing expenses
productivity, lowering after-sale expenses through product quality control.
The ratio of selling and distribution costs of the Group’s washing machine
and water heater businesses to revenue decreased from 19.9% in 2009

to 18.7% in 2010.

The ratio of selling and distribution costs to revenue for integrated
channel service business in the 3rd and 4th tier markets was 1.0%.
Selling and distribution costs mainly arose from brand promotion and
product promotion expenses.

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses of the washing machine and water heater
business, as a percentage of consolidated net sales, accounted for
approximately 4.5% in 2010, from 5.2% in 2009. The decrease was
primary due to economies of scale leading to cost reductions and
operational efficiency benefiting from ERP system implementation.

The administrative expenses of the integrated channel services business,
as a percent of consolidated net sales, accounted for 0.58% in 2010.
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2. Financial position 2. BIEARR
Items EHH
2010 2009
—g-2F —TThE
(Restated)
(E%1))
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREEF T
Non-current assets IERBEE 1,283,783 837,364
Current assets REEE 8,437,080 5,378,170
Current liabilities mEaE 6,772,568 4,280,786
Non-current liabilities IERBEE 204,421 184,112
Net assets BETE 2,743,874 1,750,636

Cash and cash equivalents balance

The Group maintained a healthy financial position. The Group’s cash and
cash equivalents balance increased by 86.9% to RMB2,706,000,000 in
2010, from RMB1,448,000,000 as at 31 December 2009 (restated). The
increase in cash and cash equivalents balance was mainly attributable
to a significant increase of operating cash flow, in particular, mainly
from the increase in the profits from the washing machine and water
heater businesses. On the other hand, the integrated channel services
business newly developed by the Group also made positive contribution
to cash flow.

Net Assets

Net assets increased by 56.7% from RMB1,751,000,000 as at 31
December 2009 (restated) to RMB2,744,000,000 as at 31 December
2010.

ReRBREEEER

ZEEFEAEARBTREMNBBERL  BHeak
ReSEEBEHRNR -_STNFT_A=+—H(=E
7)) 2 AR #1,448,000,0007C F186.9% = A R ¥
2,706,000,0007C * A XERF BEHNRFNELR
& A KR IR FH R A R DA R BOK 8. EE A5 AR
R MB—AHE RAANRBEGRERBESD
BASEERERSREE -

EEFE

ZE-EFAKBZEEFEN_ZTTINF =
A=+—H(&E%])z AR#1,751,000,0007C * 1%
Mm756.7% 2T —FTF+-_A=1+—HZAR®K
2,744,000,0007T ©
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Working capital

Trade and bills receivables turnover days

Following the Group’s adoption of the JIT business model, the trade and
bills receivable turnover days of the washing machine and water heater
businesses decreased from 87 days at the end of 2009 to 79 days at
the end of 2010. Among the total trade and bills receivable, the bills
receivable accounts for 71.1% (31 December 2009: 70.3%).

Most of the customers of the integrated channel services business in
the 3rd and 4th tier markets were small-scale retailers who usually
settled in cash. Furthermore, the Group’s business model emphasises the
reduction of customers’ working capital requirement and the increase
in their capital turnover rates. As a result, the relevant trade and bills
receivables turnover days in 2010 was just 1 day, which is remarkably
competitive in the industry.

Inventory turnover days

Under the Group’s JIT policy, the Group has implemented a series of
measures including rolling order forecasts, made-to-order and procured-
to-order productions which reduces inventory level. The Group’s inventory
turnover days for washing machines and water heaters decreased from
18 days at the end of 2009 to 11 days at the end of 2010, representing
a significant improvement in the performance of asset turnover ratio.

In 2010, inventory turnover days of the Group’s integrated distribution
services business was 12 days, attributable mainly to time of
transportation and order collection. As the Group's inventory turnover
days is competitive in the industry, it has greatly improved the cash flow
arising from the operating activities of the Group’s integrated channel
services business.
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Working capital (Cont’d)

Payables turnover days

Payables turnover days of the Group’s washing machine and water
heater business decreased from 41 days at the end of 2009 to 22 days
at the end of 2010.
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Payables turnover days of the Group's integrated channel services RiB#iRE REEBR 2D EEBENRFEAE R
business was 9 days. Z%9i o
3. Cashflow analysis 3. REREDW
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZEENF
(Restated)
(231)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Net cash flows from KEEB RS REFE
operating activities 1,294,338 934,765
Net cash flows used in REES 2R RS FE
investing activities (255,543) (23,149)
Net cash flows from/(used in) RE/ ARBEESHrREREFE
financing activities 96,933 (54,350)
Net increase in cash Re KBS HEBE 2EINFE
and cash equivalents 1,135,728 857,266

The Group’s net cash flow from operating activities improved mainly
attributed to profit growth, decrease in accounts receivable and bills
receivable turnover days and decrease in inventory turnover days. Cash
flow used in investing activities mainly reflected the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment. Cash flow from financing activities mainly
arose from the issue of convertible bonds to holding companies raising
an aggregate of RMB672,000,000, the acquisition of Qingdao Logistics
with a consideration of RMB534,100,000 paid (total consideration was
RMB763,000,000 of which RMB228,900,000 remained unpaid).

REBELEEH RS FRERSEERNEFIE
R BREFNERERFEXRHELEFEEAEX
FTRAN REEFHZREREZTZHBEBED
¥ BMELRXEBEEMAEANK mETHzHEeRE
ERFEBRTIRREFEZERATNEEARKE
672,000,000 - WESEMRENEEAARE
534,100,0007T (4 %38 = A R #763,000,0007T - H
P AR#228,900,0007T AR ) °
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group focuses on cash flow management and has been able to
maintain a healthy financial and liquidity position. The Group had a
current ratio of 124.6% as at 31 December 2010, which was in line with
the 125.6% in 2009 (restated). As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s
cash and cash equivalent balance amounted to RMB2,706,000,000 (31
December 2009 (restated): RMB1,448,000,000), and the Group does
not have any bank borrowings or other borrowings (31 December 2009:
RMB74,000,000). As a result, the net cash and cash equivalent (total
cash balance net total borrowings) amounted to RMB2,706,000,000,
representing an increase of 96.9% as compared to RMB1,374,000,000
in 2009 (restated).

The Group will maintain significant operating cash flow and sources
of liquidity in 2011 that are adequate to meet its working capital
requirements, and for the logistics network penetration and construction
of the distribution facilities, and maintain financial flexibility for any
investment opportunities.

Capital Expenditure

From time to time, the Group will assess its capital expenditure and
investments in the washing machine, water heater and integrated
channel services business. The size of working expenditure is subject
to various factors including the needs to construct new workshops,
upgrade of machinery and equipment and investment in establishing
strategic alliances. The Group expects that most of its capital expenditure
in the upcoming years will be spent in the investment of the integrated
distribution services business segment.

Gearing Ratio

The Group had fully repaid all of its borrowings during the year. As at 31
December 2010, the Group’s gearing ratio (defined as total borrowings
over net assets) was nil (31 December 2009 (restated): 4.2%).

The Group currently has sufficient working capital and hence has no
financing requirement. Should the business development require the
introduction of strategic investors, new capital might be raised.
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Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a prudent approach for its cash management and risk
control. Most of the Group’s revenues and expenses are denominated in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. Cash is generally placed in the short
term deposits denominated either in Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars.
Foreign currency risk is largely, though not fully, mitigated, as liabilities
in Renminbi will be substantially offset by the Group’s earnings, most
of which are derived from domestic sales in China and are denominated
in Renminbi. Approximately 3.0% of the Group’s revenue is derived
from export sales and is denominated in other currencies. The Group
does not have any significant interest rate risk as it has an overall net
cash balance. The Group does not have any financial instruments for
hedging purposes.

Capital Commitment

The Group’s capital commitments that were all contracted for, but not
yet provided amounted to RMB86,000,000 as at 31 December 2010 (31
December 2009: RMB21,000,000), which were mainly related to the
purchase of machinery for the Group’s businesses capacity expansion as
well as construction of warehouse for the logistics business. There were
other authorised but not yet contracted capital commitments amounted
to RMB129,000,000 (31 December 2009 (restated): RMB137,000,000)
and mainly related to the warehouse construction for year 2011 for the
logistics business.

Charge of assets

Certain of the Group’s bills payable are secured by the pledge of the Group’s
bank deposits amounting to RMB391,000 (2009: RMB82,976,000 (as
restated); 1 January 2009: RMB7,738,000 (as restated)) and the Group’s
bills receivables amounting to RMB518,137,000 (2009: RMB305,738,000
(as restated); 1 January 2009: RMB196,867,000 (as restated)).

Contingent Liabilities

As at the balance sheet date, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 December 2010
was approximately 18,200, representing an increase of approximately
19.7% as compared to 31 December 2009. The Group ensures that its
remuneration packages for its employees remain competitive, and its
employees are generally remunerated with fixed monthly salaries, which
are reviewed annually, along with discretionary performance bonuses.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

REPORT

TRERME

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) and the
management (the “Management”) of Haier Electronics Group Co.,
Ltd. (the “Company”) recognise that sound corporate practices are
crucial to the efficient operation of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) and the safeguarding of our shareholders’
interests. In this regard, the Board attaches great priority to reinforce
the Company’s corporate governance standards with emphasis on
transparency, accountability and independence in order to enhance our
long-term shareholders’ value.

The Company has, throughout the year ended 31 December 2010,
complied with most of the applicable code provisions (the “Code
Provision(s)”) and principles under the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the "CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) except for certain deviations
as described below. This report describes the Company’s corporate
governance practices, explains its applications of and deviations from the
CG Code, together with considered reasons for such deviations.

Board of Directors

Composition

The Board currently comprises four Executive Directors, two Non-
executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors (the
"INED(s)"). The Directors are well-versed in respective areas such as legal,
accounting and finance, business management and industry knowledge
and the Board as a whole has achieved an appropriate balance of skills
and experience. The Directors’ biographical details are set out on pages
17 to 20 of this annual report.

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, there is no financial or family

relationship among the Board members. All of them are free to exercise
their independent judgment on all matters concerning the Company.
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Board of Directors (Cont’d)

Under the Code Provision A.4.1,
appointed for specific terms, subject to re-election. Currently, all non-

non-executive directors should be

executive directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific term
but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws and their appointment will be reviewed when they are due
for re-election.

Delegation by the Board

The Directors are collectively responsible for setting the Group’s strategies,
providing leadership and guidance to put them into effect, reviewing
and monitoring the performance of the Group and are accountable
to the Company’s shareholders. To maximise the effectiveness of
the Group's operations, the Board has delegated management and
administration of the Group’s daily operations to the executive Directors
and the Management while reserving several important matters for its
approval. To this end, the Board has adopted written guidelines (the
"Guidelines”) laying down the division of functions between the Board
and the Management (including the executive Directors for the purpose
of the Guidelines).

Pursuant to the Guidelines, the major functions of the Board and the
Management are summarized as follows:

The Board is principally responsible for:
1. determining the overall strategy;
2. reviewing all significant policies of the Group;

3. monitoring the performance of the Management to ensure that
the business operations of the Group are properly planned and
undertaken;

4. approving interim and annual results of the Group based
on recommendations made by the audit committee of the
Company;

5. approving material contracts and transactions for which the
Management is required to obtain the Board’s prior approval;
and

6. subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules, approving
transactions in which connected person(s) (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Group is/are considered having a material conflict of
interests.
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Board of Directors (Cont’d)

Delegation by the Board (Cont’d)

The Management is principally responsible for:

1. exercising all such other powers and perform all such other acts as
may be exercised and performed by the Directors, save and except
for those that may specifically be reserved by the Board and/or the
committees set up by the Board for decision and implementation;
or those that may only be exercised by the Board pursuant to The
Companies Act of Bermuda, the Bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-laws”), the Listing Rules and/or the Hong Kong Codes on
Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases;

2. formulating and implementing policies for business activities,
internal controls and administration of the Company;

3. planning and deciding the Company’s strategies on its business
activities; and

4.  keeping proper written records of its decisions taken which may be
inspected by any members of the Board or the Board committees
upon request.

The Board reviews those arrangements and the Guidelines on a periodic
basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the
Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO")

Under the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and CEO should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Currently,
the Company does not have any person holding the title of CEO. Ms.
Yang Mian Mian is the Chairman of the Board and is also performing the
functions of CEO. The Board meets regularly to consider major matters
affecting the business and operations of the Group. The Company
believes that the combination of the roles of chairman and CEO can
promote the efficient formulation and implementation of the Company’s
strategies which will enable the Group to seize business opportunities
efficiently and promptly. Meanwhile, the Company believes that through
the supervision of the Board and its independent non-executive directors,
checks and balances exist so that the interests of the shareholders are
adequately and fairly represented.

Under the Code Provision E. 1.2, the chairman of the board should attend
the annual general meeting. The Chairman of the Board did not attend
the 2010 annual general meeting of the Company as she had overseas
business trip at that time.
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Board of Directors (Cont’d)

INEDs

The INEDs have the same duties of care and skill and fiduciary duties
as the executive Directors. They are expressly identified as such in all
corporate communications that disclose the names of the Directors.

The INEDs are experienced professionals with expertise in areas of
accounting and finance. With their professional knowledge and experience,
the INEDs advise the Company on its operation and management; provide
independent opinion on the Company’s connected/continuing connected
transactions; participate in the Company’s audit committee meetings,
remuneration committee meetings and nomination committee meetings.
The INEDs also contribute to provide adequate checks and balance to
protect the interests of the Company and the Company’s shareholders
as a whole, and to promote the development of the Company.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers that all INEDs to be independent as the date of this report.

Supply of and access to information

Newly appointed Directors will receive induction packages containing
the duties and responsibilities of directors under the Listing Rules and
other applicable rules and regulations.

All the Directors are briefed and updated from time to time on the latest
legislative and regulatory developments to ensure that they are fully
aware of their responsibilities under the Listing Rules, applicable legal
and regulatory requirements.

In order to ensure that their duties can be properly discharged, the
Directors are entitled to seek advice from independent professional advisers
whenever deemed necessary by them at the Company’s expense.

HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EREBEAER A

]|

E58(#H)

BYFHTES
BUFATETRAGRATESHRZEREE
REBEARREERE - RAEREESRHR ZRA
BARN - HERERSI LB IIEFNTES -

i

BIUFNTETHRERERALT  AEgitHES
BMEHBEIEXNN BREEEXENINLR B
SUFMITEERARAZEEREERARRAEMH
BE RARRCHE RHEREXHRHBIE
R UWSEARRZECZESEH  FHNZESE
ANMREEREGEH - BIUFATES TR ORM
AOEEEE  BREABARARARARFREZ
B RSFARERRRZ#E -

RAHEEH AR SERESBILIFNTESER
B ETMRAFI MR ER BB 2 FERE
R URREEBIFRTEFTHBBIAL ©

BR 2R HLEEED
HMZEZESHER-—EREEN ETERES
REETRANREMEBRR AR BERE
£ -

EREEHETRENAREIED SER 2 &
BR UBRESFEZEEBRERELTHRI - E8
EPIRBEREZEME

AMREEEZERTERS  ESERAHRSR
AETENSKBYEXERCER  BREMAR
UNGIPE S

o

Annual Report 2010 ==& — T F F 3}

41



42

HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EXREEAERE A

]|

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT it#&E8#® &

Board of Directors (Cont’d)

Board Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2010, apart from consents obtained
by means of written resolutions of all the Board members, the Board
had held four scheduled meetings at approximately quarterly intervals
to review and approve, among other things, the 2009 annual results
and 2010 interim results, discloseable and connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions of the Group. The Company’s board
meetings (the “Board Meeting(s)”) are permitted to be held by means
of telephone or other means of electronic communication under the
Bye-laws.

Reasonable notices are served and comprehensive information is provided
to the Board members in advance of all the Board Meetings in order to
enable them to make informed decisions on all matters transacted at
the Board Meetings.

The proceedings of the Board Meetings are conducted by the Chairman of
the Board or another executive Director who ensures that sufficient time
is allowed for discussion among the Directors and equal opportunities
are being given to the Directors to express their views and share their
concerns.

The Company Secretary attends the Board Meetings to advise Directors
on corporate governance practices, and statutory compliance, accounting
and financial issues whenever deemed necessary by the Board.

The Company Secretary is responsible for preparing minutes recording
all matters transacted and resolved at the Board Meetings. All the Board
minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection
by the Directors.
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Board of Directors (Cont’d)

Board Meetings (Cont’d)

The following table shows the attendance of the Directors at the
scheduled Board Meetings during the year ended 31 December 2010:
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No. of the scheduled
Board Meetings attended/held

Executive Directors: BITEE: HE BT EHESESBRRE
Ms. Yang Mian Mian (Chairman) ShpiR Lt (E/F) 3/4
Mr. Cui Shao Hua EDESSE

(resigned on 19 April 2010) (RZZE—ZFMA+NBET) 0/4
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie BAEREE 3/4
Mr. Li Hua Gang TERIGE

(appointed on 19 April 2010) (RZE—ZFMA+IBEEZT) 2/4
Mr. Sun Jing Yan BREEE 3/4
Non-Executive Directors: FHITES
Mr. Wu Ke Song (Deputy Chairman) R E(BIER) 2/4
Mr. Liang Hai Shan 28 154 2/4
INEDs: BYFHTES:
Mr. Wu Yinong RINETE 4/4
Mr. Yu Hon To, David BEELEAE 4/4
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng Elli=lES 4/4

It is challenging to arrange the Board Meeting that fits in with the tight
and busy schedules of all the Directors. In particular, as certain of the
executive and non-executive Directors devote considerable time and
efforts to the management and operation of the Group’s business, they
were only able to attend some of the Board Meetings in person and
their attendance rate at the Board Meetings were relatively low during
the fiscal year of 2010. To enable all the Directors to keep abreast of the
Group’s latest development and to discharge their duties properly, the
Company Secretary briefed the Directors on those matters transacted at
the Board Meetings that they were unable to attend. In addition, draft
and final versions of the Board minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comments and records.
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—ETEFEPRFEAZEFTEERLFERRE -
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Board of Directors (Cont’d)

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors (the “Haier Electronics Model Code”) on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Upon enquiry
by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they had complied
with the required standard as set out in the Haier Electronics Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2010.

In addition, the Board has adopted written guidelines (the “Employees’
Guidelines for Securities Transactions”) for securities transactions by
employees (the “Relevant Employees”) who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price sensitive information of the Company on no less
exacting terms than the Haier Electronics Model Code. Having made
specific enquiry of all the Relevant Employees, the Company confirmed
that all the Relevant Employees had complied with the required standard
as set out in the Employees’ Guidelines for Securities Transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2010.

Board Committees

The Board has established an Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”),
a Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and a
Nomination Committee (the “Nomination Committee”) (collectively the
“Committees”) to oversee specific aspects of the Company’s affairs.
The Committees report to the Board regularly, and have been provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their respective duties. To reinforce
independence, the chairman of the Committees is an INED. Each of
the Committees has adopted specific terms of reference covering its
duties, powers and functions which will be reviewed by the Board
from time to time. The Company Secretary also acts as secretary of the
Committees. The Committees adopt as far as practicable, the procedures
and arrangement of the Board Meeting in relation to the conduct
of meetings, notice of meetings and recording of minutes. Further
particulars of each of the Committees are set out below:
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Board of Directors (Cont’d)

Board Committees (Cont'd) BEESREE(E)

(1) Audit Committee (1) FRZEE
The Audit Committee currently comprises all three INEDs and is ERZESNNAB =B UIERNTESA
chaired by Mr. Yu Hon To, David. Mr. Yu is a professional accountant B WHENEE R ERTER - aicERETE
and was formerly a partner of an international accounting firm. The @Eﬂ‘ﬁ LHE—HBRSHMITZARA &

primary duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity
and credibility of financial reporting, to make recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the Group’s external auditors and review of the Company’s
financial controls, internal control and risk management systems.
Each member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to
the Group’s external auditors and the Management.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Audit Committee
held three meetings with an attendance rate of 100% to review the
management and accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and to discuss internal controls and financial reporting
matters including the review of 2009 annual results and 2010
interim results of the Group, review of internal control procedures
and review of connected transactions.

The annual results for the year ended 31 December 2010 were also
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The following table shows the attendance of members of the Audit
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2010:

EZTERAER/ERVERRIFER
EH%?’F”F CHERE EFRZERERAZESN
BugmRESgRMHEREZE  URBRFAA
NAZHBEE ABEERRRERRS -
ERZEBEEREBERBARE NS ZEED
NERE T EILESBERBRS] o
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Vx;maﬁﬁfmgm'mf~mew
CLEHNAREMRMZERRETRAIRE
Bl Wil ABEERPBRRET - BES
BMAEE —TTNFFEEER_T—TFE
REAE  BRABESNREFREHBRER
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u#;ﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁ@aT@i— =
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No. of Audit Committee
Meetings attended/held

INEDs: BIEHITES HEBIT2EREEGERRK

Mr. Wu Yinong RIVRFEE 3/3

Mr. Yu Hon To, David BEE A 3/3

Dr. Liu Xiao Feng g3 3/3
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Board of Directors (Cont'd) EEFG(E)

Board Committees (Cont’d)
(2) Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises five members
including one executive Director, namely Mr. Zhou Yun Jie (appointed
as member on 19 April 2010 when Mr. Cui Shao Hua resigned on
the same day), one non-executive director namely, Mr. Wu Ke Song
and all three INEDs. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by
Mr. Wu Yinong, an INED. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on policy

and structure of all remuneration of the Directors and Management.
Each of the Directors has not involved in the determination of his/her
own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee meets at least
once a year. During the year, the Remuneration Committee has
held one meeting. At the meeting, members of the Remuneration

Committee reviewed the remuneration packages and overall
benefits of the Directors and Management by taking into account
factors such as remuneration packages and benefits offered by
comparable companies, the respective contribution of each of
the Directors and Management to the Group and the business
objectives of the Group.

The following table shows the attendance of members of the
Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31 December
2010:

Executive Director: HITESE
Mr. Cui Shao Hua BELELRE
(resigned on 19 April 2010 and (RZZE-ZSFHATNLBRER

AERTERARAEZEREZE)

Mr. Zhou Yun Jie was appointed
as member on the same day)

Non-executive Director: FHITES :

Mr. Wu Ke Song HERESE
INEDs: BYFHITES:
Mr. Wu Yinong RIMBEESE

Mr. Yu Hon To, David BRE L

Dr. Liu Xiao Feng
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Board of Directors (Cont’d)

Board Committees (Cont'd) BEESZEE(E)

(3) Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was formed on 19 September 2008
and currently comprises four members including one executive
Director, namely, Mr. Zhou Yun Jie (appointed as member on 19
April 2010 when Mr. Cui Shao Hua resigned on the same day)
and all three INEDs. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr.
Yu Hon To David, an INED. The Nomination committee meets at
least once a year.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating
nomination policy and making recommendations to the Board on
nomination and appointment of Directors and Board succession. It
also develops selection procedures of candidates for nomination,
reviews the structure, size and composition of the Board and
assesses the independence of the INEDs.

Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement
of qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee and review
and approval of such nomination by the Board. The Nomination
Committee is to evaluate potential candidates by considering factors
such as professional expertise, relevant experience, personal ethics
and integrity. It also advises the Board in considering the suitability
of the re-election of the Directors who are subject to the retirement
by rotation at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-laws.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has held one meeting.
At the meeting, members of the Nomination Committee have
identified and recommended qualified individual to the Board for
the appointment of director, reviewed the composition of the
Board, and advised the Board the suitability of the retirement
and re-election of the Directors at the Company’s annual general
meeting.

The following table shows the attendance of members of the
Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December
2010:

Executive Directors: HITES
Mr. Cui Shao Hua BEESAE

(resigned on 19 April 2010 and
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie was appointed
as member on the same day)

INEDs: BYFHTES:
Mr. Wu Yinong RIMEFEE
Mr. Yu Hon To, David BEE A
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng EdlileS

(R-ZE-—ZFMATIBBER
BERNEERRARZEREZE)

RAZEGN_ZEZNFAATILERIL &
RHOEXEAEK  BRE—2HTEFEER
ERNFEMRELSERER _Z-TFMNA+A
ARIEERRAAEZIZRESZB)UALEE
ZEBUFNTEE - REREESHBUIENR
TESFAEELEEEIR - REZEGEF

ROBITREHE -

REZBEEZBEBRBIEREBER  kilE
FIRAMETEEFTERIZLTHNESS
RibEZ ZESNARHERBARZE
FoiaadEfe 288 ABKRER kit
BIFMTERHBILIE o

RAEFEERAREEZ B EN MRERER A
THER UMEFSRTBBIIARES -
REZEEBZEEWNEXFEMRIM - HEL
B BEAERRERBIEFERHREALT
FHh - ZEENREBIEAFARRNARFK
REFASLHERTZEEREEEABEE
TREFERHEER -

RAZEGCRFRET -REH - IZREE
EREES LREYNEESEBIRZEES
MEZAERNE BUYBEFGZRE  IE
BARRKRRAF ARG LHEREFZEERE
ERETREER -

TEARE—T—TF+—A=-+—AILEE
W RBREEERBZgRmTFEE

No. of Nomination Committee
Meetings attended/held
HE BITZREZEESERRH
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Communication with Shareholders

It is the Company’s practice to provide an explanation of the details of
the procedures for voting by poll in the general meetings to shareholders
in accordance with the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules. The poll results
of the general meetings are also published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and of the Company. The Board regards general meetings as
one of the principal channels of communications with our shareholders
and the Directors provide detailed and complete answers to questions
raised by the shareholders in the general meetings.

Insurance

The Group has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance to indemnify the Directors and senior staff of the Group for
their potential liabilities incurred by them in discharging their duties. The
Group reviews the insurance coverage for the Directors and the Group’s
senior staff on an annual basis.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing financial
statements of the Group in accordance with relevant statutory
requirements and generally accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong
and ensuring that the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the Group’s financial position. In preparing the financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010, the Directors have
adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently; made
judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Board aims to present a comprehensive, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s development and prospects in all corporate
communications, including but not limited to annual and interim reports,
any price sensitive announcements and financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, any reports to regulators as well as to information
required to be disclosed pursuant to other statutory requirements.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The Group is committed to implementing effective internal controls
and risk management procedures to identify and manage the risks that
may be faced by the Group, as well as to safeguard the interests of the
Group and our shareholders as a whole.

The Board is responsible for maintaining adequate internal controls
and risk management procedures in the Group, and for reviewing its
effectiveness through the Audit Committee on an on-going basis. The
Board has delegated to the Management the implementation of the
Group's internal controls covering financial, operational and compliance
aspects, as well as risk management procedures.

The Board is also responsible for ensuring that the management has
discharged its duty to have an effective internal control system including
the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff of the
Company'’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programme and budget.

During the year, the Company has engaged external independent
professionals to assist in its review on the operation of individual divisions
of the Group, particularly on those divisions of the integrated channel
services business which were newly set up, and in its assessment of the
effectiveness of Group’s internal control systems and risk management
procedures in its major business and operational processes. The Company
has established an internal control review plan to cover its major
internal control systems covering areas including operational control,
financial control and compliance control. Recommendations for further
improvements have been reported to the Audit Committee and the Audit
Committee has, in turn, reported the same to the Board together with
its assessment and recommendations. Such recommendations have been
or are being followed up by management. The Company is committed
to maintain an effective internal control system and will make sure
that adequate resources and management attention will be devoted to
strengthen its internal controls and risk management procedures.

Recognizing the importance of internal controls and risk management
procedures, the Group has initially set up an internal audit department
with the assistance of external independent professionals in establishing
internal audit procedures and in provision of appropriate training to the
relevant personnel.

Remuneration of External Auditors

The Group’s independent external auditors are Ernst & Young, Certified
Public Accountants. During the year, the annual audit fees and non-audit
fees payable/paid by the Group to Ernst & Young were RMB5,850,000
and RMB900,000, respectively.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

During the year, the Group’s subsidiaries continued to be engaged in
the manufacture and sale of washing machines and water heaters. In
addition, the Group also acquired a 100% equity interest in Qingdao Haier
Logistics Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Qingdao
Haier Logistics Group”), which are principally engaged in the provision
of logistics services, and commenced the business of distributing home
appliance and other products (collectively referred to as the “integrated
channel services” in note 4 to the financial statements) during the year.
Other than these developments, there were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2010 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 67 to 199.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year.

The Group retained sufficient cash for maintaining a strong financial
position in the challenging environments, engaging in strategic
acquisitions when opportunity arise, and more importantly, achieving
the flexibility in relation to investment in the integrated channel services
such as spending in distribution center construction.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 200. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes
15 and 16 to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS, WARRANTS
AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital, share options,
warrants and convertible bonds during the year are set out in notes 32,
33 and 29 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 34(b) to the financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2010, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to RMB683,078,000. In
addition, the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
RMB1,740,263,000, may be capitalised and distributed to members in
the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year. Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 95% of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 52%.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Cont’d)

During the year, Haier Group Corporation (“Haier Corp”) and Qingdao
Haier Investment and Development Co., Ltd. (“Haier Investment”)
(collectively referred to as “Haier Group”), the substantial shareholders
of the Company, had beneficial interests in all of the Group’s five largest
suppliers.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or any of their associates or
any shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:
Ms. Yang Mian Mian
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie

Mr. Cui Shao Hua
Mr. Li Hua Gang

Mr. Sun Jing Yan

(resigned on 19 April 2010)
(appointed on 19 April 2010)

Non-executive directors:
Mr. Wu Ke Song
Mr. Liang Hai Shan

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Wu Yinong

Mr. Yu Hon To, David

Dr. Liu Xiao Feng

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Wu Ke Song,
Mr. Liang Hai Shan and Dr. Liu Xiao Feng will retire and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are not
appointed for any specific terms and are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of Mr. Wu Yinong, Dr. Liu Xiao Feng and Mr. Yu Hon To,
David, and, on the basis of such confirmations, considers them to be
independent as at the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’
BIOGRAPHIES

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 17 to 21 of the annual
report.

CHANGES OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Below are the changes of directors’ information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the interim report:

During the year, Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, the executive director of the Company
was appointed as a director of the Group’s subsidiaries including Hefei
Goodaymart Logistics Co., Ltd. and Chongging Hairi Logistics Co.,
Ltd..

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. Li Hua Gang,
the executive director of the Company was appointed as a director
of the Group’s subsidiaries including Hefei Goodaymart Logistics Co.,
Ltd., Chongging Hairi Logistics Co., Ltd, Xuchang Goodaymart Electrical
Appliances Co. Ltd., Fujian Goodaymart Electrical Appliances Co. Ltd.,
Chengdu New Goodaymart Electrical Appliances Co. Ltd., Shangdong
Goodaymart Electrical Appliances Co. Ltd., and Hunan Goodaymart
Electrical Appliances Co. Ltd..

Mr. Yu Hon To, David has been appointed the independent non-executive
director of China Datang Corporation Renewable Power Co., Limited and
Sateri Holdings Limited on 1 July 2010 and 28 October 2010, respectively,
both of which are companies publicly listed in Hong Kong.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

During the year, no director had a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of the directors in
the share capital and underlying shares (“Share(s)”) of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in share options of the Company:

Number of options directly

EENEHNzER

FARBEEENARASEEMEZERARXME R
ARARMB AR L EAHAREERBEE
RZBHPERIMEEAEARES

EENROREERG 2EEZR AR

RIZ-ZF+-A=+—B ARAEENES
TTBRABRRBRESQZBHE ARAR R SE B
EE (R AES LGOI E5RMEERNDE
XVER) 2 B A R AR RARAn ([ B fn )b - BEA RRER
BES MEGRDIE3S2EREAFE 2 BERMP 2
BELAR  IRBLETETABFETESRRXS
MRETRAMNEARARBAREERERSMBERR
AP ) 2 R FORBINT

RIEBRIEN ARG Z A
Approximate % of

issued shares upon
exercise of

Name of director EEHR beneficially owned share options
THEBRERGESRT

BEERERBEBREHEA RO 2ZBOTD

Mr. Wu Ke Song RAEMEE 10,600,000 0.48
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie BERLE 7,900,000 0.36
Mr. Li Hua Gang EMILE 2,300,000 0.10
Mr. Sun Jing Yan BRRAELE 2,300,000 0.10
23,100,000 1.04
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS EEABRMOREBERAOZEZR AR
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont’d)

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of associated corporations:

==
(#&

RIER D RARBER D AR E B 2 7R

Name of Relationship Number of
associated with the  Number of share Capacity and
Name of director EEHF corporation Company shares held options held nature of interest
BB EEE B HAQNT 2R BREE #HEEREHE BNRERME
Ms. Yang Mian Mian %% %2+  Qingdao Haier Co., Ltd. Company’s 286,336 2,025,000  Directly beneficially
("Qingdao Haier") shareholder (note) owned
EEERRNAERAR RRAIMRE (fHsx) EREREAR
(I588/])
Mr. Liang Hai Shan 295 %E  Qingdao Haier Company’s 197,960 1,422,000  Directly beneficially
5588 shareholder (note) owned
ARFIRER (fHx) ERERESR
Mr. Wu Ke Song HZEMEE  Qingdao Haier Company’s 61,336 - Directly beneficially
BEEER shareholder owned
ARARE ERERBA
Mr. Zhou Yun lie FAZER%E  Qingdao Haier Company’s 49,149 - Directly beneficially
BE8R shareholder owned
ARARE ERERER
Mr. Li Hua Gang ZEF|%4E Qingdao Haier Company’s 16,000 - Directly beneficially
5588 shareholder owned
ARFIRER BEERERER

Note: On 28 October 2009, Ms. Yang Mian Mian and Mr. Liang Hai
Shan were granted options to subscribe for 2,250,000 and
1,580,000 ordinary shares of RMB1 each, respectively, at an
exercise price of RMB10.88 per share in Qingdao Haier. On
25 August 2010, the exercise price had been adjusted to
RMB10.58 per share. The exercise period is from 28 October

2009 to 27 October 2014.

Save as disclosed above, no directors or chief executive had any interests

or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company or

its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),

as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant

to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company

and The Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

s R-ZTZAFE+A-FTN\RB HRELL
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B AR 1T 2 %8 A%2,250,0000% &
,580,0000% * TT{EEASRAREK10.887T °
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES IN OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme™) for the purpose of providing incentives and reward to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Further details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in note 33 to
the financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options
outstanding during the year:

ESREA QAR BERER 2 ER

B RESTE
ARBES B B (B ETE )  BMER
MEAEBENEEELRERNAER2EERMH
RE R ER - ERETE 2 LB RERT SR
FMIFE33 ©

TREBARDFNFARITEBBREZ ZBIER

Exercise price
Number of share options Date of of share
BREHR grant of options
At1 Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed At31 share (note 2)
Name or category January during during during during  December options Exercise period  per share
of participant HEASEEEL 2010 the year the year the year the year 2010 (note 1) of share options HKS
R-2-%f Bhe BRETRE
R-E-2F 124 RiLAH GiE2)
-B-B REARE  RERTE  RERDE  REAXN =t-A (M) BRETRD SRER
Executive directors HirEs
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie RERLAE 7,900,000 - - - - 7,900,000  18/09/22009  18/09/2009-17/09/2014 1.7
ZEINENETBE
ZZ-mEAATLE
Mr. Li Hua Gang FEfEE 2,300,000 - - - - 2,300,000 18/09/22009  18/09/2009-17/09/2014 1.7
ZEINENETBE
ZZ-mEAATLE
Mr. Sun Jing Yan i¥ay e 2,300,000 - - - - 2,300,000 18/09/22009  18/09/2009-17/09/2014 1.7
ZEINENETBE
ZZ-mEAATLE
12,500,000 - - - - 12,500,000
Non-executive directors #7785
Mr. Wu Ke Song Rtk 10,600,000 - - - - 10,600,000 180972009  18/09/2009-17/09/2014 17
ZZENEAATIRE
“Z-mEAATLE
External consultants MR
In aggregate 2z 40,000,000 - (10,320,000) - - 29,680,000  18/0972009  18/09/2009-17/09/2013 17
ZEENEAATNBR
ZZZERATER
Other participants RS
In aggregate &t 21,350,000 - (850,000) - (800,000) 19,700,000  18/09/2009  18/09/2009-17/09/2014 17
ZEENEAATNRR
Z3-mERATLA
Other employees EtrEs
In aggregate &t - 25,960,000 - - - 25960000  18/052010  18/05/2010-17/05/2014 482

“$-3FRATRE
“F-BERATA

84,450,000 25,960,000  (11,170,000)

(800,0000 98,440,000
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES IN OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

Share option scheme (Cont’d)
Notes:

1. The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant
until the commencement of the exercise period.

2. The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment(s)
in the case of rights or bonus share issues, or other similar changes
in the share capital of the Company.

3. The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the exercise dates of the share options was
HK$7.48 per share. The closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the date on which the options were granted
during the year was HK$4.71 per share.

The directors have estimated the values of the share options granted
during the year, calculated using the binomial option pricing model as
at the date of grant of the options, to be RMB43,380,000.

The binomial option pricing model is a generally accepted method of
valuing options. The significant assumptions used in the calculation of
the values of the share options were dividend yield, historical volatility,
risk-free rate, contractual life of options and exercise multiple. The
measurement dates used in the valuation calculations were the dates
on which the options were granted.

The values of share options calculated using the binomial model are
subject to certain fundamental limitations, due to the subjective nature
of and uncertainty relating to a number of assumptions of the expected
future performance input to the model, and certain inherent limitations
of the model itself. The value of an option varies with different variables
of certain subjective assumptions. Any change to the variables used may
materially affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.

Save as the options granted to the director, at no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any director or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B ER K

=]

BRA

]|

ESBREARARODBEREE ZER

=

(45

R RECH BT,
B3 -

1. BhERBHEAEREAMEEITEHMAM
B EAIE -

2. (ETHBRSETARIARABRALRE M
BUZE - RIBBRENTTEREZRTIAHE -

3. REEBRETEBHANARRKROKTE
MEFHBREAT 488 TT - FAREEK D
R E B MR AR RGBT ERERATVE
T e

ExeRA_BEAHEEERS BFARLEN
BEREXRERLAHNEEELAEAARARE
43,380,0007T °

“EANEEEEL N EBEREEEZARS
Ee ARGEBREBEZEZRIAA/RBKE
o FELORME - EERAE - BRESQFHART
FEEEH - ARNGEEZAERNABKRERHKA
H o

HRER 2 R R REREBIBE 2 ZHARKRTEEMN
BERFETHAPEER  RERAGEETRER
H o ER_EARREERUGFEZBREEES
EXETEARFIAAR - BREEEERETE
BEBRKRTZTRAZRZMAEMTR - {8
ARz BRI EBREATFEGTEEX

pe-
BIETEE 2 BB - 5 P T B R B (T

ARAEERBEEZTOZEBARKNFFRERT
RITEAIE BB AR R BB R EREE M 2
Mo MARRR - EERAR - EAEFMNERRHE
EMBARMETLEMRZYE R ARAESA
BAEMEMEARR ZZSERN -
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CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Company has a contract with Qingdao Haier and other Haier
Affiliates, for the purchase of products. Further details of the transactions
undertaken in connection with this contract during the year are included
in note 14 to the financial statements.

During the year, the Group acquired a 100% equity interest in Qingdao
Haier Logistics Group from Haier Corp at a consideration of RMB763
million. Further details of the transaction are included in note 1 to the
financial statements.

During the year, the Company issued convertible bonds in principal
amounts of RMB672,101,000 to a wholly-owned subsidiary of Qingdao
Haier. Further detail of the transaction is included in note 29 to the
financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2010, the following shareholders interested in 5% or
more of the issued share capital and share options of the Company were
recorded in the register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

EESHN

ARAEBTEEALEMEBAYBBARILAENE
BER - REHLAORFRETI S ZHMFBR
BN RAM 14

FAR AEEMERERAFNBNESESRYRE
B2 100%/% 1 - K {E A AR763,000,0007T © X
52 M IEBER R I ISR EE ©

FR - ARAMERERAZ2ENBARBITAS
BRAARK672,101,0007T 2 AT ARES - RHZH
M EFIE USRI B 5 R P RE29

FTERRRRORBEERD zERE

R-B-BFT-A=+—A  UTRREALY
AR RRBES KPR EAIFIBHRATATEL
*BRFAM2ZE BTG R,/ THARH5%
i

Long positions: HE
Approximate
percentage
Number of of the
Shares Company’s issued
Name of shareholder RRERB Notes interested share capital
HAARE BT
Bt & REEZZHE REAZBHEIL

Qingdao Haier Collective HEOREREEEERS

Asset Management Association ([GREREEER])

(“Haier Collective Asset Management”) 1,4 1,521,222,592 68.50
Haier Corp BREEEAT 2,4 1,521,222,592 68.50
Haier Investment BRRE 3,4 1,521,222,592 68.50
Qingdao Haier 5580 4 1,184,622,592 53.34
Haier Shareholdings (Hong Kong) Limited JE&f% % (F#)BRAF]

("Hong Kong Haier") (ESEEE) 4 791,945,110 35.66
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS E=&®&&

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

Notes:

1.

As at 31 December 2010, by virtue of the SFO, Haier Collective
Asset Management was deemed to be interested in an aggregate
of 1,521,222,592 Shares, including (i) 336,600,000 Shares held
by its non wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Haier Investment; and
(i) given Haier Investment was acting in concert with Haier Corp
and Qingdao Haier, Haier Collective Asset Management was also
deemed to be interested in 1,184,622,592 Shares held by Qingdao
Haier pursuant to the SFO.

Ms. Yang Mian Mian and Mr. Zhou Yun lJie, executive directors of
the Company, and Mr. Wu Ke Song and Mr. Liang Hai Shan, non-
executive directors of the Company are also members of the board
of management of Haier Collective Asset Management.

As Qingdao Haier is a non wholly-owned subsidiary of Haier Corp,
Haier Corp was deemed to be interested in 1,184,622,592 Shares
held by Qingdao Haier pursuant to the SFO as at 31 December
2010.

Furthermore, as Haier Corp was acting in concert with Haier
Investment, Haier Corp was deemed to be interested in 336,600,000
Shares held by Haier Investment as at 31 December 2010.

Ms. Yang Mian Mian and Mr. Zhou Yun Jie, executive directors of
the Company, and Mr. Wu Ke Song and Mr. Liang Hai Shan, non-
executive directors of the Company, are also the members of the
management committee of Haier Corp.

Haier Investment held 336,600,000 Shares as at 31 December
2010. Moreover, Haier Investment was deemed to be interested
in 1,184,622,592 Shares held by Qingdao Haier pursuant to the
SFO by reason of its acting in concert with Haier Corp as at 31
December 2010.

Ms. Yang Mian Mian, the executive director of the Company, are
also directors of Haier Investment.

Qingdao Haier held 392,677,482 Shares as beneficial owner.
Moreover, Qingdao Haier was deemed to be interested in
791,945,110 Shares held by its wholly-owned subsidiary, Hong
Kong Haier, pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, no person, other

than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the

section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying

shares” above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares

or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company and the Group had the following
connected and continuing connected transactions, certain details of
which are disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the "Listing Rules”).

Connected transactions

(i)  During the year, the Group acquired a 100% equity interest in
Qingdao Haier Logistics Group from Haier Corp at a consideration
of RMB763 million, which was determined with reference to the
financial position and results of Qingdao Haier Logistics Group.
Further details of the transactions are included in note 1 to the
financial statements.

(i) During the year, the Company issued convertible bonds in principal
amounts of HK$786,000,000 to Hong Kong Haier, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Qingdao Haier. The convertible bonds were non-
interest-bearing and were fully converted into 138,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company during the year. Further details of the
transactions are included in note 29 to the financial statements.

Continuing connected transactions

During the year, the Group (excluding Qingdao Haier Logistics Group) had
the following material transactions with Haier Corp, Haier Investment,
their subsidiaries and associates (collectively referred to as “Haier
Affiliates”):

FRARARAEFELETINTHEERBERER
5 BETHBCEBBAES MR ETR
Bl E14AZERIRTE T AR -

BERS

i) FR AEEMEREEQARKESSE S
MY mEB Z100%E#E REAEARE
763,000,0007T * RENLXEEE8RYRER
ZHBURRA N EEMTE - X5 2 HAbFIEUER
R REMTZET o

(il FR ARABHNEEERZ2ENBRARES
R 31T N4 §8786,000,00058 7T 2 A A IR &
5o REFACERERFRNEEE RS
AT AL 138,000,0000% - 52 EAhzES
YRR A B T SRR P 5E29 ©

FAAEE(MEEATESEDASE) RSHME
BAE - BRRE  REZMBARKBERE (S
WRIERBBALEETUTEARS

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZEENF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE ARBT T AREFT
Export sale of washing

machines and water heaters H O 8 5 e 7K i I 2K 8% (i) 1,080,933 870,049

Domestic sale of washing
machines and water heaters B 1A 81 5 A TR K2 BUK RS (i) 21,553 4,603,040
Purchase of finished goods PREERIAN G (iii) 20,021,520 -
Purchase of raw materials T R R (iv) 9,353,256 7,476,535
Printing and packaging fee expenses ENfl 2 B B S (v) 26,741 33,208
Mould charges RABELH (vi) 233,346 193,947
Utility service fee expenses NRARBEZ S (vii) 84,809 57,027
Logistic charges # im B H# (viii) 486,240 369,200
Promotion fee expenses EEELH (ix) 152,470 127,926
Other service fee expenses EAth iR & = X) 191,421 139,663
Interest expenses FEZH (i) 4,008 7,906
Interest income FB U A (xi) 8,778 3,645
Other financial service fees EAh B 5 AR TS & (xii) 5,183 -
Trademark licence fee expenses PERRE S (xiii) = -
Sale of gift products HEEm (xiv) = 4,699
Premise lease expenses PERES N (xv) 1,511 840
Premise lease income MERERA (xv) 2,016 1,008
Equipment lease income REEERA (xvi) - 779
Purchase of equipment RE R (xvii) 896 -

#  The amount included the logistic charges paid/payable to Qingdao
Haier Logistics Group prior to the Group's completion of the

acquisition of Qingdao Haier Logistics on 20 December 2010.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

Continuing connected transactions (Cont’d)
Notes:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii

(ix)

(xi)

=

The export sales of washing machines and water heaters were
made to Haier Electrical Appliances Co., Ltd. (“Haier Electrical”),
a subsidiary of Haier Investment, at selling prices representing the
differences between the selling prices of washing machines and
water heaters mutually agreed and the selling expenses of Haier
Electrical not exceeding 1.5% of the selling prices of washing
machines and water heaters.

The domestic sales of washing machines and water heaters were
made at unit prices not less than the average selling prices of the
same type of products sold in similar transactions to the top five
independent customers of the Group in the previous year.

The purchase of finished goods was charged at prices no less
favourable than those prevailing in the domestic market for the
products of the same type and quality sold by Haier Affiliates to
independent third parties.

The purchase of raw materials was charged at prices not higher
than the consolidated and integrated tender and bidding price of
the raw materials plus a commission fee of not exceeding 2.6%
before 28 August 2010 and not exceeding 1.75% from 28 August
2010 onwards.

The printing and packaging fee expenses were charged on terms no
less favourable than those offered by independent third parties.

The moulds were charged with reference to the average market
tender and bidding price plus actual administrative costs.

The utility service fee expenses were charged based on the state-
prescribed prices plus actual administrative costs.

The logistics charges were charged on terms no less favourable
than those offered by independent third parties.

The promotion fee expenses were charged at no more than 1.2%
of the domestic sales of washing machines and water heaters of
the Group.

The other service fee expenses include advertising fee, research and
development fee, property rental and management fee, software
fee, legal consulting service fee, catering and travel agency service
fee, human resources service fee, general security service fee,
product certification service fee, equipment repair and maintenance
service fee and rental expense which were charged with reference
to the actual costs incurred and/or on terms no less favourable
than those offered by independent third parties to the Group.

The interest expenses and income were determined with reference
to the standard rates published by the People’s Bank of China. The
maximum loan balance taken out and the bank deposits placed
with Haier Group Finance Co., Ltd. related to the above interest
expenses and income during the year were RMB74,000,000 and
RMB695,798,000, respectively.

HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EREBEAER A

]|

RERERS (&)
BEE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

MERREZIMB AR EMEEEREXAR
RAN[BMEIREZE]) H O HELRHE R EUK
R RIBARE N & T 0 2 KR R BUKERE
BEEMEB/ER 2 HER S (THBBERE KL
HUKEBEEBE21.5%) 2 ZFMEST -

ST e oK 2R 2 BN & TR MER AL
BEFARBURFPFHERBERZBURS
FHEBZEBHE -

REBEK R IR T=RNEREE A LRBERT
%FE%%E%&%H@E@&E%E%Z%
{TEMRETE -

KBRS —BEABREZEZERE
BENR—ZZE—ZFFNA=ZFTNAATBE
26% A -_ZE—ZTFNA-+/\BETBB
1.75% 2 A& FHE -

ENpl e BRE N TR TNBERB LS =T M
ZAGREHE ©

BABTHNSEFHMIGHRITRZERSM
ERTTHARAFHE °

NRRFE S TIREEFIEE EIE 5 INERTT

BUKAFHE °

MEX TR T BRBIE =TT iRt 2 &R
FHE -

EEEX N NIRAEESRE R HKSE 2B
HEZTZM.2%ETE -

HEREELHBIE2EMELBRKAGE
R/ BRTBRBLE=ZHFRETAEERF
FEAB2ESE MEE MEHSRERE
& Mg ZEBRRBE  ERNKRER
ERBE  ANBRRBE  —REZRHB
2 EnRERBE REEECRERBER
ik it

FEZHERBATIZ2ERBEARRITEMGZIZ
EBERETE - gt LA BT B R AFTRRE
RESR R EERAEREEVBERETA
A Z RITFER D R A ARET4,000,0007T & A
R #695,798,0007T °
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

Continuing connected transactions (Cont’d)
Notes: (cont’d)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

The other financial service fee expenses were charged on terms no
less favourable than those offered by independent third parties.

The trademark licence fee expenses were charged at a nominal
consideration of RMB1 during the year.

The sale of gift products was made at selling prices not higher than
those sold by Haier Affiliates to independent third parties.

The premise lease expenses and income were determined with
reference to the rental assessment of the premises conducted by
an independent firm of professional valuers in the PRC.

The equipment lease income was determined with reference to
the energy consumption expenses, depreciation expenses, spare
equipment expenses and management fee incurred by the Group
for the lease of the equipment.

(xvii) The purchase of production and experimental equipment was

charged at prices no less favourable than those offered by
independent third parties.

Upon the Group’s completion of the acquisition of Qingdao Haier Logistics

Group on 20 December 2010, Qingdao Haier Logistics Group had the

following material transactions with Haier Affiliates:

REBRERS (&)
BT« (48)

HMPERIGE BT T BRBIE =TT
HZIEFREHE -

P IR R R R EAR
TEAHE -

(xii)

(xiii)

xiv) HEBRDNEITERNERBEBATRELE=
FETHE B BT

MERESHRBATI2ZEFRBE EXME
REEMEETZHEFEETE °

(xv)

BEAERATIZERRERER  TEE
A EHEAURAEBRRAERBELEZE
BEET -

(xvi)

(i) REBEEERBRREIETERBLE =TT
HZIEFREHE -

EAEER_ZE—ZEET_ATHTHRUESTS
BRYREEREL  SEERAMREEEEHEBA
TAENTEERS

For the period from
21 December 2010 to
31 December 2010

H-Z2—ZF

+=A=+—-HZ

+=—A=+—-H

Notes RMB'000

P AREFT

Logistic services income Wi RIS U (i) 43,698
Printing and packaging fee expenses ENfl e B B ST (i) 63
Utility service fee expenses NAREES (iii) 120
Other service fee expenses E iR & = H (iv) 105
Other financial service fees H %R & (v) 3,770
Interest income FE U A (vi) 20
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

Continuing connected transactions (Cont’d)
Notes:

(i)  The logistics services were charged on terms no less favourable
than those prevailing in the PRC market for services of similar kinds
and quality and those charged by the Group on independent third
parties.

(i)  The printing and packaging fee expenses were charged on terms no
less favourable than those offered by independent third parties.

(iii) The utility service fee expenses were charged based on the state-
prescribed prices plus actual administrative costs.

(iv) The other service fee expenses include catering and travel agency
service fee and general security service fee which were charged
with reference to the actual costs incurred and/or on terms no
less favourable than those offered by independent third parties to
Qingdao Haier Logistics Group.

(v)  The other financial service fee expenses were charged on terms no
less favourable than those offered by independent third parties.

(vi) The interest income was determined with reference to the standard
rates published by the People’s Bank of China.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed
the continuing connected transactions set out above and have confirmed
that they were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with
reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

]|
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events after the reporting period of the Group
are set out in note 42 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire, and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed, at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Yang Mian Mian
Chairman

Hong Kong
29 March 2011
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

B HERES

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= ik

To the shareholders of Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Haier Electronics
Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
"Group”) set out on pages 67 to 199, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2010,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards promulgated
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.

BEHEREEERATAIMLRKR
(RERZEZMHALZBRAA])

EECEXTINFETEF 19 SHEXREEERA
AERARIDREMBAR(SABIEEE ) 2EE
Bk HheaER _E—SF+-_A=+—H
ZIEARARVBRAE  BEZBIEFEZHE
Wk HREEERER  GEESZHRREES
RBeneR URFESHBREMEREMHZE
e

EERGeMBEREAREZER

BERREFARARREKREFENZEERM
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EREEAER A

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

BB MRES

Auditors’ responsibility (Cont’d)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2010, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
18th Floor

Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central

Hong Kong
29 March 2011
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mellER

Year ended 31 December 2010 #ZE—FT—TH+-A=+—HILFE

HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD /H &

REBARLDA

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
BaE AR®T T AREFT
(Restated)
(&%)

REVENUE WA 5 35,806,672 12,877,993
Cost of sales HERAR (31,033,259) (9,654,109)
Gross profit EZ | 4,773,413 3,223,884
Other income and gains HAap g A K Uz 5 71,954 46,766
Selling and distribution costs HERSHER (2,511,004) (1,928,459)
Administrative expenses THER (898,503) (680,842)
Other expenses Hin &M (1,057) (12,634)
Finance costs A& AR 7 (4,691) (7,906)
Share of profits and losses of PG LB FIE RS 1E

jointly-controlled entities 5,318 3,783
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBLATRR 6 1,435,430 644,592
Income tax expense Frigfif = 10 (427,943) (145,297)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 1,007,487 499,295
Attributable to: AT & 7 G -

Owners of the Company VNN 11 964,363 448,652

Non-controlling interests FEIE AR RE 43,124 50,643

1,007,487 499,295

EARNINGS PER SHARE EATEBREK

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY REGRSREF

EQUITY HOLDERS OF

THE COMPANY 13

Basic HA RMB46.85 cents RMB22.32 cents

AR#46.85% AR#22.325
Diluted o RMB40.68 cents RMB20.62 cents

AR#40.685

ARE20.629
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B®WE

BEEAERLT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meErZHEWREE

Year ended 31 December 2010 #Z—F—F4#+—-F=+—HIL4FE

2010 2009
—E-EF —TBENF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FfaE AR¥T T ARBTFT
(Restated)
(&)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 1,007,487 499,295
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  HftZ2mE W
Exchange differences on BREGIEB ELNEZR
translation of foreign operations 676 (43)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FAZERBEHE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 1,008,163 499,252
Attributable to: AR & 75 FEAE -
Owners of the Company VNN 11 965,039 448,609
Non-controlling interests FEFEIRIE = 43,124 50,643
1,008,163 499,252
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD BRI EXREBER AT
A N
e AR R
31 December 2010 —ZF—ZF4#+—-H=+—H
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
—ZT-FF —ETNF —ETNF
+=ZHA=+—H +—-—A=+—H —H—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR®T ARETIT ARETIT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&%)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - [R5 MM 15 863,585 679,451 741,885
Investment properties LEYHE 16 20,800 22,472 4,654
Prepaid land lease payments JEf L E K 17 171,229 79,241 81,660
Intangible assets mAE 18 858 1,614 2,090
Investments in jointly- MRS 18E
controlled entities 20 - 25,457 21,674
Available-for-sale investments — AJ{tHHEHRE 21 6,000 7,670 7,670
Deferred tax assets EERIAE E 31 221,311 21,459 28,220
Total non-current assets JEmEEERE 1,283,783 837,364 887,853
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories 78 22 1,306,343 389,461 270,711
Trade and bills receivables EUE SRR R EE 23 3,908,094 3,335,201 2,613,909
Prepayments, deposits and TBNHIE - Rek
other receivables E b U BR K 24 516,645 122,725 106,324
Pledged deposits EERFR 25 391 82,976 7,738
Cash and cash equivalents RekReSEIEE 25 2,705,607 1,447,807 695,544
Total current assets MENEERE 8,437,080 5,378,170 3,694,226
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables JERTE FBR T R R 26 1,523,629 1,628,781 1,400,197
Tax payable FERTRIA 612,237 119,058 63,769
Other payables and accruals HAb A BRR R EET B fE 27 4,344,739 2,326,471 1,504,050
Interest-bearing borrowings AEEE 28 - - 24,800
Provisions B 30 291,963 206,476 160,399
Total current liabilities mEAaEEE 6,772,568 4,280,786 3,153,215
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 1,664,512 1,097,384 541,011
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBARS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,948,295 1,934,748 1,428,864
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EREEAER A

ol

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBARR R

31 December 2010 —ZF—ZF4§+-H=+—H

31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
—Z-ZF —ETNF —ETNF
+=ZHA=+—H +=-A=+—H —H—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
P =E ARET T ARETFIT AREEFTT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (E5)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBARS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,948,295 1,934,748 1,428,864
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBEME
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEEE 28 - 74,000 118,200
Provisions 5 30 151,555 100,524 79,534
Deferred income EIEIA 43,609 - -
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIESE 31 9,257 9,588 9,588
Total non-current liabilities EmBBERE 204,421 184,112 207,322
Net assets BEFE 2,743,874 1,750,636 1,221,542
EQUITY EE
Equity attributable to owners — ANAFIRE R FEEER
of the Company
Issued equity BB THERE 32 2,248,843 1,527,611 1,485,859
Reserves 1 34(a) 303,688 91,297 (359,990)
2,552,531 1,618,908 1,125,869
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M A 191,343 131,728 95,673
Total equity Al 2,743,874 1,750,636 1,221,542
Yang Mian Mian Zhou Yun lJie
BRE BAEAR
Chairman Director
EY 4 EFE
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EHEEER AT
M A EE X< “=4
mEEREEKR
Year ended 31 December 2009 &z ~TENFE+ - A=+—HILFE
Attributable to the owners of the Company
RAFRRER
Equity
Capital Share Capital Exchange component Non-
lssued  reduction Capital Merger option Reserve  redemption Retained  fluctuation Total of convertible controlling Total
equity Teserve reserve reserve resenve funds reserve profits reserve Teserves notes Total interests equity
BEf B BhE s b=l SERD TERER AR
B OHARE  ETRE  ANEE RE  BhRES BE  REEA RE  BREE ZERYH 3t s fEnkE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000

i3 ARHTL ARBTR ARBTL ARRTL ARMTL ARBTL ARETR ARMTR ARBTR ARBTRT ARMTL ARMTR ARBTL ARETI

At 1 January 2009 R-ZEAE-A-A

As previously reported AR 1,485,859 (1,758,526) 572,005 (548,643) - 228,902 184 1,030,202 12,109 (463,767) - 102209 95270 1,117,362

Effect of business combination ~ £TAHHZE - - - - 20 - 008 - wm - W 104180

As restated e 1485859 (1,758,526) 572,005 (537,364) - 231174 184 1,120,428 12,109 (359,990) - 1125869 95,673 1221542
Profit for the year (as restated) AV (&5 - - - - - - - uBeR - wgen - 86 0643 499295
Other comprehensive FREBZENA :

income for the year:
Exchange differences on BEBNEBENER

translation of foreign (&%51)

operations (as restated) - - - - - - - - ®3) 43) - 3) - 43)
Total comprehensive income ~~ FARERALE

for the year (as restated) (@85)) - - - - - - - 448,652 (43) 448,609 - 448,609 50,643 499,252
Issue of shares k001 E) 4,986 - - - - - - - - - - D% - 0%
Share issue expenses DU 2 (1,234) - - - - - - - - - - (1,234) - (1,234)
Capital contribution WELDERE

from the then holding RAALE

companies of subsidiaries - - - 750 - - - - - 750 - 750 - 750
Equity-settled share WRASE 2 BlER

option arrangements 3 - - - - 7,286 - - - - 7286 - 7,286 - 7,286
Dividends paid to BRFERRRRE

non-controlling

shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - (14,588) (14,588)
Dividends paid to the then EANBLAA

holding companies ERIRATRE

of subsidiaries - - - - - - - (5,358) - (5,358) - (5,358) - (5,358)
Transfer to reserve funds BRTRERES

(as restated) (&E5)) - - - - - 49452 - (49,452) - - - - - -
At 31 December 2009 R-ZZAET-A=1-B

(as restated) (553 1527611 (1,758,526) 572,005 (536,614) 7,286 280,626 184 1514270 12,066 91,297 - 1618908 131,728 1,750,636
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD /S &
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAENBER

Year ended 31 December 2010 HZE-FT—FF+_A=+—HILFEZ

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ARARRER
Equity
Capital Share Capital Exchange component Non-
Issued  reduction Capital Merger option Reserve redemption  Retained  fluctuation Total of convertible controlling Total
equity reserve reserve reserve reserve funds reserve profits reserve  reserves notes Total interests equity
BEfT [izS BRE BARE AERE TEREH 2R
B HARE  EORE  AKER fE  BRES %  REEA HE  BREE 2EEHR &3t & EHSE
Notes RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
i3 ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTn ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR
At 1 January 2010 R-%-2%-A-8
As previously reported RIS 1,527,611 (1,758,526) 572,005 (548,643) 7286 265,196 184 1,363,619 12,066 (86,813) - 1,440,798 131325 1512123
Effect of business combination ~ £TA 44182 - - - - 154 - 150651 - B0 .m0 W 185
As restated 5] 527,611 (1,758526) 572,005  (536,614) 7286 280,626 184 1514210 12,066 91,297 - 1618908 131728 1,750,636
Profit for the year ERgET = = = = = = = 964,363 = 964,363 = 964,363 8124 1,007,487
Other comprehensive EREMRERA
income for the year:
Exchange differences on BEENEB EL 2R
translation of foreign
operations - - - - - - - - 676 676 - 676 - 676
Total comprehensive ERRENAEE
income for the year - - - - - - - 964,363 676 965,039 - 965,039 43,124 1,008,163
Issue of shares kv 32 48,448 - - - (6,331) - - - - (6,331) - a1 - 017
Capital contributions ERRRLE
from non-controlling
shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - 34,102 34,102
Issue of convertiole bonds ETkES il - - - - - - - - - - 61788 61788 - 61788
Conversion of convertible bonds ¥ AT &% ki 672,784 - - - - - - - - - (61788) 61099 - 610,9%
Equity-settled share NRAEE BRERH
option arrangements 3 - - - - 38,351 - - - - 38351 - 38,351 - 38351
Transfer of share option BRER RN ERES
reserve upon the SRREGE
forfeiture or expiry
of share options - - - - (246) - - 26 - - - - - -
Dividends paid to BRECELIES
non-controlling
shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - (17,611) (17,611)
Dividends paid to the BREBAR
then holding companies ERERAARE
of subsidiaries - - - - - - - (20,118) - (20,118) - (20,118) - (20,118)
Deemed distrbutions RARERAAELHAR
to holding companies 1 - - - (764,550) - - - - - (764,550) - (764,550) - (764,550)
Transfer to reserve funds BAZEEES - - - - - 104,823 - (104823) = = = o o o
At 31 December 2010 RZE-BETA=1-8 2,248,843 (1,758,526) 572,005  (1,301,164) 39,060 385,449 184 2,353,938 12,742 303,688 - 255,531 191343 2,743,874
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EREEHR DA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MEREMER

Year ended 31 December 2010 #ZE—FT—TH+-A=+—HILFE

2010 2009
—EB-BF ZETNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M aE AR¥T AREFT
(Restated)
(&%)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEBZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R B A 1,435,430 644,592
Adjustments for: TEATRZ !
Finance costs B &R 7 4,691 7,906
Share of profits and losses of JE(E HEREGIE BB R
jointly-controlled entities (5,318) (3,783)
Interest income FLEMA 5 (10,780) (10,562)
Dividend income from A ERERSIA
available-for-sale investments 5 (1,168) (677)
Gain on disposal of available- HETHLERERS
for-sale investments 5 (286) -
Gain on disposal of jointly- & R EIES T RS
controlled entities 5 (3,166) -
Depreciation of property, plant M - BENERETE
and equipment 6 75,409 87,384
Depreciation of investment BEMENE
properties 6 1,672 1,076
Recognition of prepaid land RIEM A ER
lease payments 6 3,359 2,473
Amortisation of intangible assets | A EE 6 756 915
Provision for obsolete and iR JO ST B
slow-moving inventories 6 22,762 17,586
Loss on disposal/write-off of Hj%/ﬁﬂ'ﬁﬁ%% - W=
items of property, plant and REEEB 2 BEEE
equipment, net 6 1,057 9,305
Impairment of other receivables H A EUSAR TR 2 RUE 6 - 3,329
Equity-settled share VABR AN 5 8 2 BE AR A =2
option expense 6 38,351 7,286
1,562,769 766,830
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD /S ERE@EMAER D

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MEREMER

Year ended 31 December 2010 HE-T—FTH+_HA=+—HILFEF

2010 2009
—EZ-2F ZEENF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ik AR¥T T AREFT
(Restated)
(&)
1,562,769 766,830
Increase in inventories FEEM (939,644) (136,336)
Increase in trade and bills receivables  JEURE 5 8RS Z 5120 (572,893) (721,292)
Increase in prepayments, deposits TERIE « He REAM
and other receivables JE ST BR SR IE AN (384,544) (19,730)
Increase/(decrease) in trade FERE SRR RERIL I, )
and bills payables (105,152) 228,584
Increase in other payables and accruals ELf & {7 BR 5 & fE 51 B &8 h0 1,697,902 822,421
Increase in provisions BEAEIE N 136,518 67,067
Effect of foreign exchange [ERS B8 FE
rate changes, net 23,218 (CXD)
Cash generated from operations EEBATSERE 1,418,174 1,007,453
Interest received B RLE 10,780 10,562
Mainland China corporate BB KRR TS B
income tax paid (134,616) (83,250)
Net cash flows from REER 2 ReREFHE
operating activities 1,294,338 934,765
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EREEHR DA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MEREMER

Year ended 31 December 2010 #ZE—FT—TH+-A=+—HILFE

2010 2009
—EB-BF ZETNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FfaE AR¥T T AREFT
(Restated)
(&%)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Dividend received from available- BRI HEERERS
for-sale investments 1,168 677
Purchases of items of property, BEYE - BFEMEKHEEE
plant and equipment 15 (189,844) (74,524)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE - BEREHIEE
property, plant and equipment Fr8 308 5,361 21,375
Additions to prepaid land AN T A SR
lease payments 17 (56,083) -
Additions to intangible assets FigmpAE 18 - (439)
Acquisition of subsidiaries g 1= PN 35 650 -
Proceeds from disposal of & AT IR E TS RUE
available-for-sale investments 1,956 -
Receipt of government grants ELBZEUT?@EJJ% 43,609 -
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits =& H1EFHA (L) 82,585 (75,238)
Decrease/(increase) in time REEEHR iuﬂ? Z|E8 A
deposits with original maturity BB =EA 2 EHFR
over three months when acquired B (G m) (144,945) 105,000
Net cash flows used in REEBFTRZ
investing activities BenEFHE (255,543) (23,149)
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD /S &

REBARLD

ol

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

an\ }E‘%/)ILE%‘%

Year ended 31 December 2010 HE-T—FTH+_HA=+—HILFEF

2010 2009
—E-2F —ZEENF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B s AR®T T AREFT
(Restated)
(&%)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEETHREERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BATARD P18 1T 32 42,117 42,986
Share issue expenses ARDEEITHIX 32 - (1,234)
Proceeds from issue of BT RES TS KIA
convertible bonds 29 672,101 -
Capital contributions from IR R HE
non-controlling shareholders 34,102 -
Capital contributions from the HEARERIERARLE
then holding companies
of subsidiaries - 750
Repayment of borrowings EREE (74,000) (69,000)
Dividends paid to non-controlling BT R AR R AR 2
shareholders (17,611) (14,588)
Dividends paid to the then holding EHMT%"ﬂ%H%
companies of subsidiaries b2 /NET (20,118) (5,358)
Deemed distributions to Y= 1= ’”‘TT’E&E’] ik
holding companies 1 (535,650) -
Interest paid BERFE (4,008) (7,906)
Net cash flows from/(used in) ke (BR)BEES
financing activities ZIREREFE 96,933 (54,350)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReERRELEEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS Z B INE 1,135,728 857,266
Cash and cash equivalents at FUzRekREEEIER
beginning of year 1,422,807 565,544
Effect of foreign exchange rate M RS B R B R
changes, net (22,873) (3)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZASRESEHEHER
AT END OF YEAR 2,535,662 1,422,807
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EREEHR DA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MEREMER

Year ended 31 December 2010 HZE-FT—ZFF+-A=+—HILFE

2010 2009
—E2-2F ZEENF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ks ARBT T ARBEFT
(Restated)
(E31)
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH Re&RREZEER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BRI
Non-pledged cash and bank balances — #E#KIFIR ¢ M IR1T4E 54 25 1,782,560 1,178,349
Time deposits with original REYSE A eFHREE A
maturity of less than three DR=1EA 2 EBFHR
months when acquired 25 923,047 269,458
Cash and cash equivalents as MR KR 2 IR
stated in the statement of ReEEIEE
financial position 2,705,607 1,447,807
Less: time deposits with original B REUSE BREETREIHI A
maturity over three months HBd =1 A 2 EHFR
when acquired (169,945) (25,000)
Cash and cash equivalents as ReRERTHMIZRE R
stated in the statement ReEEIEE
of cash flows 2,535,662 1,422,807
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD /S &

REBARLD

all

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BAFSAR AR

31 December 2010 —ZF—ZF4§+-H=+—H

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MisE AREFT T ARBFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR E 19 1,683,009 1,743,318
Due from subsidiaries SN ENGIE € 19 216,939 143,711
1,899,948 1,887,029
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and TENRIE - ek
other receivables H b UK BR X 24 783 804
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEHEER 25 768,694 162,738
Total current assets BB ELE 769,477 163,542
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables and accruals HAbE R R R EET B & 27 157,690 160,121
Total current liabilities mEBERE 157,690 160,121
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 611,787 3,421
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBARE
LIABILITIES 2,511,735 1,890,450
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kFRBEE
Due to subsidiaries AR ENGIE e 19 74,341 74,885
Net assets BEFE 2,437,394 1,815,565
EQUITY EH
Issued capital BEITIRAR 32 228,871 212,209
Reserves G 34(b) 2,208,523 1,603,356
Total equity EmiAE 2,437,394 1,815,565

Yang Mian Mian

B

Chairman

FIE
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EREBEAER A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —ZF—Z4F+—-f=+—H

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
of the Company is Qingdao Haier Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao Haier”),
which is established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"),
and the controlling shareholders of the Company are Haier Group
Corporation (“Haier Corp”) and Qingdao Haier Investment and
Development Co., Ltd. (“Haier Investment”) (collectively referred to
as “Haier Group”), which are established in the PRC, by reason of
their acting in concert with each other in respect of the Company.
Qingdao Haier is a non wholly-owned subsidiary of Haier Corp.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

e manufacture and sales of washing machines

o manufacture and sales of water heaters

o provision of logistics services as well as sales and distribution of
home appliance and other products procured from subsidiaries
and/or associates of Haier Group (“Haier Affiliates”) and other
external parties

On 20 October 2010, Chongging New Goodaymart Electronics Sales
Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired
a 94.95% interest in Qingdao Lejia Electric Appliances Co., Ltd.
("Qingdao Lejia”), a then wholly-owned subsidiary of Haier Corp
and its affiliates, through an additional capital contribution of
RMB9,495,000 to its original capital of RMB505,000. Qingdao
Lejia is principally engaged in the sales of electrical appliances in
Mainland China.

1.

REEHR

HREREEARATARAEFESAMK L2
BRAF o AR A FEM#E S E AL Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda °

BEERR ARRZEREZERAAAEEER
B ERARBEEEE]  ZRFRFEA
RAFBE (TR EDEM - MBRARE ZEK
ERASASEAR(EBAKERARDEES
BRARERRERAR(NEAKRE]) (GRE
BEERDREARBZBEA—RTH  HAEXR
BZIZBIRR - BREETERTEEM - &
SERREMEERRZIEEEMBAR -

REER  AKRERFTINERERF

o BUERENKKE

o  RUERHERUKES

o REMARBARBEENS HNERAKE
ZHBRR R, RBE AR ([ EREE L
A DREMHINT 2 KEREMER °

RZE—ZTF+A-_FTHARRIZEZENE
AREEFHRAIEREHEFRARBEAMER
BEAKRARKES05,000701E & A K #9,495,000
T WEESREEARKEBBARER 22
EMBRAREERLRERERAANEE%
K1)294.95% % - EEEREFBRFENIM
HEPEER -
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On 20 December 2010, Qingdao New Goodaymart Logistics Service
Company Limited (“Qingdao NG"”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an equity transfer agreement with
Haier Corp pursuant to which Qingdao NG agreed to acquire and
Haier Corp agreed to sell the 100% shareholding in Qingdao
Haier Logistics Company Limited (“Qingdao Haier Logistics”) for
a consideration of RMB763,000,000, of which RMB228,900,000
remained unsettled as at 31 December 2010. On 31 May and 13
July 2010, Qingdao Haier Logistics acquired the remaining 80%
and 75% shareholding in Beijing Haier Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
Haier Logistics”) and Qingdao Haier Goodaymart Logistics Co., Ltd.
("Qingdao Haier Goodaymart Logistics”) from Haier Investment
for considerations of RMB800,000 and RMB750,000, respectively.
Qingdao Haier Logistics and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the provision of logistics services.

These transactions are collectively referred to as the “Acquisition
Transactions” and the entities acquired in the Acquisition Transactions
are collectively referred to as the “Acquired Entities”.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which
include all International Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations) promulgated by
the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Merger accounting for business combinations under
common control

Pursuant to the Acquisition Transactions, the Company became a
holding company of the Acquired Entities. Since the Company and
the Acquired Entities were ultimately controlled by Haier Group both
before and after the completion of the Acquisition Transactions, the
Acquisition Transactions were accounted for using the principles
of merger accounting.
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2.1
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —F—F4#+—-F=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont’d)

Merger accounting for business combinations under
common control (Cont’d)

The consolidated income statements, consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in
equity and consolidated statements of cash flows of the Group for
the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 include the results,
changes in equity and cash flows of all companies then comprising
the Group and the Acquired Entities, as if the corporate structure
of the Group immediately after the completion of the Acquisition
Transactions had been in existence throughout the years ended
31 December 2010 and 2009, or since their respective dates of
acquisition, incorporation or registration, where this is a shorter
period. The consolidated statements of financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2009 were prepared
to present the state of affairs of the Group and the Acquired Entities
as if the corporate structure of the Group immediately after the
completion of the Acquisition Transactions had been in existence
and in accordance with the respective equity interests and/or the
power to exercise control over the individual companies attributable
to the Company as at 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2009.

The operating results previously reported by the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2009 have been restated to include the
operating results of the Acquired Entities as set out below:

2.1 mBREE(E)

HEEH T RS M2 AR RE )

REERBE-_Z-—ZFR_
=t+—BUEFEZHFEENRER
i% MEEREHRNEE i/)lugé‘:{ﬁﬁi—}y@u
@W$§.&WW$EEZ%ﬁAEZ¥
ERFHRBeRE  BUREELQFR
%mgﬁmﬁ%%x%éﬁaﬁ T-TFR
ZEENFT AT -HIEEREFESBZ
FRAE B2 WE - s S B AT (LA
RBEARE)UAR—EFE - HREAEBER-Z
ThE+ A=+ AR=ZZTAF—A—H
ZEAMBARREK - BRI EE KK
EﬁZWF#ﬁvﬁmﬁili%%WW$*
SBZATIRE—EFELE  WEBR-_ZZTN
¢+fﬂ:+f5&f??h¢*ﬂfa$
RIS SEBIA R Z B &S 2 SR RITT
b 2 S MAREL

AEEBREERBE_FTTNAF+_A="1—
HIFFEZEEEECTEINABIE AT IS

OB B AR

The Group
(as previously Acquired The Group
reported) Entities Elimination (combined)
AEE AEE
(I 25) wpEER e (&6f)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Revenue WA 11,530,604 1,717,489 (370,100) 12,877,993
Profit before tax B 5 A4 A 538,046 106,546 - 644,592
Profit for the year FRmA 420,354 78,941 - 499,295
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31 December 2010 —E—F4#+—-F=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont’d)

2.1 RBEE(

==
==
mE

Merger accounting for business combinations under
common control (Cont’d)

The financial positions previously reported by the Group at 31
December 2009 and 1 January 2009 have been restated to include
assets and liabilities of the Acquired Entities as set out below:

HEEH T RSS2SR RE )

FEBBERZB/N _ZEENAF+-A=+—H
MZZZNF-A-BZMBHRREEIIAE
EATHEREBERBZEERALRE -

The Group The
(as previously Acquired Group
reported) Entities Elimination (combined)
rEE TEH
(PBEL2R) W EEER Eiik ] (&6)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREFT AREFT AREFT
31 December 2009 —ETNF
+=-—A=+—8”
Non-current assets ERBEE 706,998 130,366 - 837,364
Current assets MENVEE 4,527,508 987,572 (136,910) 5,378,170
Current liabilities nBEE 3,478,271 939,425 (136,910) 4,280,786
Non-current liabilities e IN=Er 184,112 - - 184,112
Equity Em 1,572,123 178,513 - 1,750,636
1 January 2009 —ZEENF—-HA—H
Non-current assets IEREBEE 754,677 133,176 - 887,853
Current assets MEEE 3,084,711 685,567 (76,052) 3,694,226
Current liabilities mEAE 2,514,704 714,563 (76,052) 3,153,215
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 207,322 - - 207,322
Equity S 1,117,362 104,180 - 1,221,542
Basis of consolidation mAEEE

Basis of consolidation from 1 January 2010

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2010. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which
the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions,
unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
and dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Annual Report 2010 —Z —ZF F 3|

R-B-ZHF-F-RRZGEEE
WEFAMBRREEARAREME R RE
ECEEFT AT HILEFEZMBR
KA - B AR 2B MR RREARLQF
ARz HEMEARERE - HBRARZ
FEmEBEAR(AAEEBSIZEHIEE R )E
HAFHE  WHERAE BEZIEHIER
LZBAIE —EBERBIZMEL 2 EH
NEREER - X5 - RBEREBIREHENE
BRTER B -



HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD BRI EXREBER AT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —F—F4#+—-F=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont’d) 21 RHEE ()
Basis of consolidation (Cont’d) REEE(E)
Basis of consolidation from 1 January 2010 (Cont’d) R-ZE-ZF-—F—B#RZKEEEAE)
Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling BMEM B ARz BEBBRIEIERERSER
interest even if that results in a deficit balance. R ERELBEES  BRIDANERSB

RIFFE s -

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss TP N I AT A R 2 B a0 B B T A R M
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. BRI - BWERERRH AR °

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) EASEEAENMBAT ZIEGE - BIAEER
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) ARIEBRNNBARIcEE(BEHE)REE
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the f& - ()EAIEE R a2 BREE K (i) 50 A %
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises ZR2MEER B THROERREZ AFE
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value (iVEMRE 21 E 2 A FE R ERRIBEZES
of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit EEZBERSEE o LAl ﬁEmerﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁW
in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously CAEBEBEROEZENHDEEEMES
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit ZERHHRBBHF -

or loss or retained profits, as appropriate.

Basis of consolidation prior to 1 January 2010 R-Z—ZF—-A—HAZHREEE

Certain of the above-mentioned requirements have been applied LB THREERARERNE BREFBER -
on a prospective basis. The following differences, however, are MA TN ZEZGURE AR LR 2 4R G B %EF
carried forward in certain instances from the previous basis of EE AR

consolidation:

e losses incurred by the Group were attributed to the o HRAEBESZEBK S FEZERE
non-controlling interest until the balance was reduced to nil. @ BYHESRRLOEZET R - FRE—
Any further excess losses were attributable to the parent, FZEBRRADRIGATF - BRIEFER
unless the non-controlling interest had a binding obligation X B EROREREZEE  GTRIZ
to cover these. Losses prior to 1 January 2010 were not EE TS o LR TR s - R=T—
reallocated between non-controlling interest and the parent TE-A—AREAZEEISEIEER
shareholders. EmEENFRR ZESER o

e Upon loss of control, the Group accounted for the investment o PASRRIEGIREIR - AN [EIRH T R
retained at its proportionate share of net asset value at the AEEEFEMGLLORE Z1RE AR -
date control was lost. The carrying amount of such investment ZRERN_E-EF-HA—-BZEREEL
at 1 January 2010 has not been restated. KREF -
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BA RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —E—F4#+—-F=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND 22 €:itBERZEBREE

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for

the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

IFRS 1 (Revised)

IFRS 1 Amendments

IFRS 2 Amendments

IFRS 3 (Revised)

IAS 27 (Revised)

IAS 39 Amendment

IFRIC 17

Amendments to
IFRS 5 included in
Improvements to
IFRSs (May 2008)

Improvements to
IFRSs 2009

First-time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards —
Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters

Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based
Payment — Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment Transactions

Business Combinations

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

Amendment to IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible
Hedged Items

Distributions of Non-cash Assets
to Owners

Amendments to IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations — Plan to
sell the controlling interest
in a subsidiary

Amendments to a number of IFRSs
issued in April 2009

AEBECRBEAFEVBREFEREAT
FIFRET S AR AE AT S BIPR B A5 5 2R

BB B T S R B AR B
SR (RIERT) HBREER
B % B 75 %E l BB B 75 i 5 A
ERUEFTA) FVRELNRA
BT 7548 e 2B Al —
HERRANEZF
RE#H % ZERTA
B smE £l HEERM GRS ER
E25R(EFTAS) F2FL RSN —
LENEEE
URES 2
RGZIEFTA
BB mE LN  FHEEH

S35/ (RIEFT)
Bt ERNFE27R S B HEM

(R1EFT) ERTFRE
B ET 2= HEPR SR ERFE395%
%395&(1&52&) MBETA : iER R
— BB
B H ZERTA
BRMEmERE ARFASLHED
ZBER17H BE
EEERNE_ZTN\F HEEMEHRSEL
T A B 2 B ESRFHTELZ
MBHREER FFREEFLIUACE
2t 2 Bl BA 75 4R — i EH ERTE R ]
SERESE L R s 2 BRI AN
EHIEN

ZFEFNFHEENYE —TTNFNA
HEERZ WL EERY S
WERERZAEFTAR

BERAATHIFR —FTNFEREMBERE

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of IFRS
3 (Revised), IAS 27 (Revised) and amendments to IAS 7 and IAS 17
included in Improvements to IFRSs 2009, the adoption of the new
and revised IFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these
financial statements and there have been no significant changes to
the accounting policies applied in these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2010 —ZF—Z4F+—-f=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (Cont’d)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised IFRSs are

as follows:

(a)

IFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations and IAS 27 (Revised)
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

IFRS 3 (Revised) introduces a number of changes in the
accounting for business combinations that affect the initial
measurement of non-controlling interests, the accounting
for transaction costs, the initial recognition and subsequent
measurement of a contingent consideration and business
combinations achieved in stages. These changes will impact
the amount of goodwill recognised, the reported results in
the period that an acquisition occurs, and future reported
results.

IAS 27 (Revised) requires that a change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary without loss of control is accounted for
as an equity transaction. Therefore, such a change will have
no impact on goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain or loss.
Furthermore, the revised standard changes the accounting for
losses incurred by the subsidiary as well as the loss of control of
a subsidiary. Consequential amendments were made to various
standards, including, but not limited to IAS 7 Statement of
Cash Flows, 1AS 12 Income Taxes, IAS 21 The Effects of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, IAS 28 Investments in
Associates and IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures.

The changes introduced by these revised standards are applied
prospectively and affect the accounting of acquisitions, loss of
control and transactions with non-controlling interests after
1 January 2010.

i

228 R BB NKE(E

RN E T R EERTERMBRELEN 2 X
BEEHIIMT

(a)

BB RS R EIR (KR EH A
PR BB &t ERIE 275 (RIER]D A
BHRKRME B B

B B 7% 5 E A3 (LB RT) Bl A
EBavEBestRIEZES  EENE
HIFEBRREZRVTE  RIRAZE
FHEEIE - AR EZRNER L AR
B REBAGIERER ELE2PEY
CHERHE 22H  WBREMEARE
KERRRAME L REELETE -

SRR ERIE 275 (IERT) R E ST B
RAEFARERED 2 EBEWRRAEEF
R BARERZAR - Bt - 252
BT eHHBBRTE  TIEELNR
SETE o IS RIE TR B
RA AL Z B R IA R 2 K Y B R R 2 )
B2 RE - HEIRERNREER]
BREREMNER  BRGHAENETREL
MEX - BIREFHERIE125AEH -
RETERNENREZEG oZE  BR
SRIERIE28MN B & N Al 2 RE KB

BRI ERIEIVRR A S DX #E -

AR ERIPSIAZ BB @R —F—
TE-A-AREANETZRE =X
2R EIFER SR P 2 eitRIENL
CERTE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —E—F4#+—-F=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND 22 €3 BERZE2BRBE(E)
DISCLOSURES (Cont’d)

(b) Improvements to IFRSs 2009 issued in April 2009 sets out (by MZZTZNEFEMABM -FEZEAFEE
B EER 2 UEE S 2 T8 B B SR
HFEAZIEF] - FHLERHEBMBRE
TEIRE o« R E AP E TERIHERE T

amendments to a number of IFRSs. There are separate
transitional provisions for each standard. While the adoption
of some of the amendments results in changes in accounting

policies, none of these amendments has had a significant REE  BZRFBITUARERAERERE
financial impact on the Group. Details of the key amendments AV BHE B RERARNASE 2+ 2
most applicable to the Group are as follows: EETEFBEAT

e IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Requires that only o BEREHEANFIRHEALAELX: B

KRBENHHRNIBR D IRER R
BEZRAXATAAIUDER/RE L
SIEZBRTIRE °

expenditures that result in a recognised asset in the
statement of financial position can be classified as a
cash flow from investing activities.

e IAS 17 Leases: Removes the specific guidance on o  ERREFERE1\TRAE BB TS
classifying land as a lease. As a result, leases of land T BIH ARBE 2 HERES] - Bt
should be classified as either operating or finance leases 1T E D AL E A RLE

MEERBFR ST ERBI7R 2 B8
S —B -

in accordance with the general guidance in IAS 17.

2.3 ISSUEDBUTNOTYETEFFECTIVEINTERNATIONAL 2.3 & 78518 {4 & 4 3K = Bl B Bt 75 3R
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS £ XA

NG B 55 B 7S ¥R A B ARAIA T 2 28
HER R 2 7] RAQIEFT 2 BIBR B 755 S &5 2

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements. Al e

IFRS 1 Amendment Amendment to IFRS 1 First-time B PR B 7 S 5 22 A B B B 7 i 2 A
Adoption of International Financial FE1RUEETA) 5% BN ERA BB
Reporting Standards— Limited HBREER— B
Exemption from Comparative R ZE AL BB
IFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time BB EERIE TS
Adopters? WELEREN IR

BB AERTA?

IFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time B R B 75 5 22 Al B B B A i E A

Adoption of International Financial E15 (IBETA) 5% B R ERA BB

IFRS 7 Amendments
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2.3 ISSUEDBUTNOTYETEFFECTIVEINTERNATIONAL 2.3 E 2B 18 & &k & % = B BR B % 3R

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d) R (&)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments® SRR B 75 S 2 Bl BT AS
%958

IAS 12 Amendments Amendments to IAS 12 Income Tax
- Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets®

IAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures®

IAS 32 Amendment Amendment to IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues’

IFRIC 14 Amendments to IFRIC 14 Prepayments
Amendments of a Minimum Funding Requirement®
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments?

Apart from the above, the IASB has issued Improvements to IFRSs
2010 sets out amendments to a number of IFRSs primarily with
a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording. The
amendments to IFRS 3 and IAS 27 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2010, whereas the amendments to
IFRS 1, IFRS 7, IAS 1, IAS 34 and IFRIC 13 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011 although there are
separate transitional provisions for each standard.

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011
> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

Further information about those changes that are expected to
significantly affect the Group is as follows:

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase 1 of
a comprehensive project to entirely replace IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This phase focuses
on the classification and measurement of financial assets. Instead of
classifying financial assets into four categories, an entity shall classify
financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortised cost
or fair value, on the basis of both the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to improve and
simplify the approach for the classification and measurement of
financial assets compared with the requirements of IAS 39.

BEReERE125 BEREEeERE125

CHEN) Fr# B —EAE R
W EIEET A
BRIAS
REITERE24  BEALRE
(RIE5T)
BIFR &R ERIFE 325 RERHERFE 325
COEN) HHETA 25—

R DI ZIERTA
ERMBHRERERE
BFVARRELELE

BRI BHERE

ZESE145%

(B3TA) Kz T ZAERT ARG
Bl e KR TAEBHK
ZESHE195% =2

Brazih BREARANZEGDEL—F
—FFERY W EER 2 2E - BIHZ A
KRB MELEANZIER]  TBR/ERT—
HEMBBRF - BRMBEHRELAFEINRL
B et ERIE2TR 2R T —FF A
— B RFEG 2 FEBER - MYBEEREY
BREERNE 1R - BEERMBEREENETR
B g RS - BRSF ERIFE345% R
BRI B RERBZE G2 130 2T n
—E——F-A-HINERRZFERBEE
R B B IRYERIB AL 2 IR M5

1 RIE—ZEF A AU ERRZFE
ERFE A 2R
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» RoE-THLA-ARAEBRZEE
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¢ Rt A ARMKREE T FE
R \

e e R RCETULITYED

TR \
¢ RA-F-—f-A-ARAERBZEE
CTES

i

T ARME EAY SAKE 2 HHND 2
—SER

R-TFZNF+— ARG ZBERAHRE RIS
ORI BIR & ERIEISRS F T A -
BRI ERMBIE R ZE &0 o B
BEINVBEEZ N BENTE - MREKIB
BESRARNE BRARBEREENKEE
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2.3 ISSUEDBUTNOTYETEFFECTIVEINTERNATIONAL 2.3 & 2818 14 & 4 3 = Bl B B 7% 3R

88

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

In November 2010, the IASB issued additions to IFRS 9 to address
financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated in IFRS 9 the
current derecognition principles of financial instruments of IAS 39.
Most of the Additions were carried forward unchanged from IAS 39,
while changes were made to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value
option (“FVO"). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in
the fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit
risk must be presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI").
The remainder of the change in fair value is presented in profit or
loss, unless presentation of the fair value change in respect of the
liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts which have been designated under the FVO
are scoped out of the Additions.

IAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by IFRS 9 in its entirety. Before this
entire replacement, the guidance in IAS 39 on hedge accounting
and impairment of financial assets continues to apply. The Group
expects to adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January 2013.

IAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definition of related
parties. It also provides for a partial exemption of related party
disclosure to government-related entities for transactions with the
same government or entities that are controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by the same government. The Group
expects to adopt IAS 24 (Revised) from 1 January 2011.

Improvements to IFRSs 2070 issued in May 2010 sets out
amendments to a number of IFRSs. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2011. There are separate transitional
provisions for each standard. While the adoption of some of the
amendments may result in changes in accounting policies, none
of these amendments are expected to have a significant financial
impact on the Group. Those amendments that are expected to have
a significant impact on the Group’s policies are as follows:
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EREBEAER A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —ZF—Z4F+—-f=+—H

2.3 ISSUEDBUTNOTYETEFFECTIVEINTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

(0

IFRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies that the amendments
to IFRS 7, IAS 32 and IAS 39 that eliminate the exemption
for contingent consideration do not apply to contingent
consideration that arose from business combinations whose
acquisition dates precede the application of IFRS 3 (as revised
in 2008).

In addition, the amendments limit the measurement choice of
non-controlling interests at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets to components of
non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation. Other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition
date fair value, unless another measurement basis is required
by another IFRS.

The amendments also added explicit guidance to clarify
the accounting treatment for non-replaced and voluntarily
replaced share-based payment awards.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies that an
analysis of other comprehensive income for each component
of equity can be presented either in the statement of changes
in equity or in the notes to the financial statements.

IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements:
Clarifies that the consequential amendments from IAS 27 (as
revised in 2008) made to IAS 21, IAS 28 and IAS 31 shall be
applied prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009 or earlier if IAS 27 is applied earlier.
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EXREEARE A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —E—F4#+—-F=+—H

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 T ESTBEHME

POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as
held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement,
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity. The joint venture operates as a separate entity in which
the Group and the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the
capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the duration
of the joint venture and the basis on which the assets are to be
realised upon its dissolution. The profits or losses from the joint
venture’s operations and any distributions of surplus assets are
shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their respective
capital contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the joint
venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(@) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control, directly or
indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) ajointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not have unilateral
control, but has joint control, directly or indirectly, over the
joint venture;

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral or joint
control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally not less than
20% of the joint venture’s registered capital and is in a position
to exercise significant influence over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance with IAS
39, if the Group holds, directly or indirectly, less than 20%
of the joint venture’s registered capital and has neither joint
control of, nor is in a position to exercise significant influence
over, the joint venture.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HE SRR M5

31 December 2010 —F—F4F+-F=+—H

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 XESFHBRME(E)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
Jointly-controlled entities HEEZEHER
A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject to HEAEHEEAAESH TW%‘J e
joint control, resulting in none of the participating parties having Eﬁifiiﬁ FE 6 E 8 2 & B E e Bm s 7E %'J
unilateral control over the economic activity of the jointly-controlled #E -
entity.
The Group's investments in jointly-controlled entities are stated AEBEREFREGEREE 2IRE T RBEE
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s HEEFEAEESHEEFERBE(RE
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less BEEINEEMBEHRRE -  REBSGHEE
any impairment losses. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition EHERBKNBEEERFEEDD G ALE
results and reserves of jointly-controlled entities is included in Wk RErEe il - EFES B REAREE
the consolidated income statement and consolidated reserves, ZRA R EFRIR  AEESIGZERE
respectively. Where the profit sharing ratio is different to the %lllé’f%?ézu&@%{é%iiﬁzﬁ?f s 2 o e b R 5
Group’s equity interest, the share of post-acquisition results of the cEAAREBEMAARITEFER ARSI ME
jointly-controlled entities is determined based on the agreed profit Ez%ﬁﬁfﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ?uﬁhﬁﬁ AR EERHER
sharing ratio. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions THIER 2 IRERR - RIEREREIBETA
between the Group and its jointly-controlled entities are eliminated SEEEENIRBERI - FAWRELREGIEE
to the extent of the Group’s investments in the jointly-controlled EEZEETABNEERNERIEHEE 2
entities, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an BEz—#5 -

impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of jointly-controlled entities is included as part of the
Group’s investments in jointly-controlled entities.

When an investment in a jointly-controlled entity is classified as held EHRAZEHEERES>BATHEER - Ali%
for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current BB B s e Y RSB SSR A E AT L .2 I B
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. BERBHIEEFEYR

Associates BE QT

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-controlled B N EHEM S HEEHIE LA - K
entity, in which the Group has a long term interest of generally not EERBER— ﬂQT\ D R20% M%7 1% 3

less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a o WA EBRESEATEH  Hig
position to exercise significant influence.
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31 December 2010 —E—F4#+—-F=+—H

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Associates (Cont’d)

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
associates is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition
of associates is included as part of the Group's investments in
associates and is not individually tested for impairment.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale,
it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwiill

As explained in note 2.1 above, the acquisition of subsidiaries
under common control has been accounted for using the merger
method of accounting. The acquisition method of accounting is
used to account for the acquisition method of accounting not
under common control.

Under the merger method of accounting, the net assets of the
combining entities or businesses are combined using their existing
book values from the controlling parties’ perspective. No amount
is recognised in respect of goodwill or excess of the acquirers’
interest in the net fair value of acquirees’ identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of investment at
the time of common control combination. The consolidated income
statement includes the results of each of the combining entities or
businesses from the earliest date presented or since the date when
the combining entities or businesses first came under common
control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of
the common control combination.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —F—F4#+—-F=+—H

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESBEBME(L)

POLICIES (Cont’d)

Business combinations and goodwill (Cont’d)

Business combinations not under common control from 1
January 2010

Under the acquisition method of accounting, the consideration
transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value which
is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in
the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs are expensed
as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed
to be an asset or liability will be recognised in accordance with IAS
39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive
income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it shall
not be remeasured until it is finally settled within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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31 December 2010 —E—F4#+—-F=+—H

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Business combinations and goodwill (Cont’d)

Business combinations not under common control from 1
January 2010 (Cont’d)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units)
to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on
the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —ZF—Z4#+-F=+—H

2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTBEBME(L)

POLICIES (Cont’d)

Business combinations and goodwill (Cont’d)

Business combinations not under common control prior to 1
January 2010 but after 1 January 2005

In comparison to the above-mentioned requirements which were
applied on a prospective basis, the following differences applied
to business combinations prior to 1 January 2010:

Business combinations were accounted for using the purchase
method. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
formed part of the acquisition costs. The non-controlling interest was
measured at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets.

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted for as
separate steps. Any additional acquired share of interest did not
affect previously recognised goodwill.

When the Group acquired a business, embedded derivatives
separated from the host contract by the acquiree were not
reassessed on acquisition unless the business combination resulted
in a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modified
the cash flows that otherwise would have been required under
the contract.

Contingent consideration was recognised if, and only if, the Group
had a present obligation, the economic outflow was more likely
than not and a reliable estimate was determinable. Subsequent
adjustments to the contingent consideration were recognised as
part of goodwill.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories
and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs to sell,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont’d)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement in
the period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common
control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the Group that
gives it significant influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint
control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;
(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (d);
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTBEHME(E)

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Related parties (Cont’d)

(f)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

(g) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
the employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment is classified
as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified as
held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 5. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

2% to 19%
5% to 33%
10% to 33%
9% to 19%

Buildings

Plant and machinery

Tools, furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Cont’d)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of the property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings (including the
leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property)
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on the straight
line method to write off the cost of each investment property
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rate used for
this purpose is 5%.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESTBEBME(L)

POLICIES (Cont’d)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable.
If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Patents, licences and software

Purchased patents, licences and software are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of not exceeding 10 years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products, commencing from the
date when the products are put into commercial production.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and
available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The
Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

The Group's financial assets include cash and bank balances, trade
and other receivables and available-for-sale investments.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESBEBME(L)

POLICIES (Cont’d)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont’d)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of sale in the near term. This category includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.
These net fair value changes do not include any dividends or interest
earned on these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to sell them in
the near term is still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade
these financial assets due to inactive markets and management'’s
intent to sell them in the foreseeable future significantly changes,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare
circumstances. The reclassification from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss to loans and receivables, available-for-sale
financial assets or held-to-maturity investments depends on the
nature of the assets. This evaluation does not affect any financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss using the fair
value option at designation.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement. Reassessment only occurs if
there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont’d)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in the income
statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
income statement in other expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity and debt securities. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value
through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response
to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment valuation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the income
statement in other income, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised
in the income statement in other expenses and removed from
the available-for-sale investment valuation reserve. Interest and
dividends earned are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the income statement as
other income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESBEHME(E)

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont’d)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such securities
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets to assess
whether the ability and intention to sell them in the near term
are still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s intent
to do so significantly changes in the foreseeable future, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted when the
financial assets meet the definition of loans and receivables and
the Group has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the
foreseeable future or to maturity. Reclassification to the held-to-
maturity category is permitted only when the Group has the ability
and intent to hold until the maturity date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-sale category,
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the expected cash flows
is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to
the income statement.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

e therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESBEBME(L)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets B EERE

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether ZIKEIF’\‘1I$&:‘:HH3K§W$HM%>§FEE*5HE7T
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of BEERGHRAMBECTEDE - &8
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial ML HER— Iﬁﬂ—%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁi—ﬁﬁy
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective BHEHBYFERBREER(—BE®E
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has [EtEEM ) - MZIBE B S ZIEs %A
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss BEEZMBETRRRESRENER 2 FE/EH
event”) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future Al SEHBIRET » BIRZTE SR A IS E E S WRIE
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets ERE - REFBAIRE R —HEHAL
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include HERE AL ERE - RS KREEERNBHAR
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing ® - BEBERESETEMMBER - N
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or REMEREBERGFRARRESRELIEA
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy ETERIE - Pl RSB # 8o IR ME 448
or other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating B8 KOBEMOR, ©

that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost REHERAIIRZHBERE

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses MEBREHEIERAIECVBEENS A%
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for BrReREpAERERMBEENRESE
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for ERBERIFEERMBEE - BRIFFHESFE
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group REREEE o WMAS B RTERERNELELT
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an MM BEE(ERASEHET) WEEEF
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it BRETFERE  AIZEEESRA—HEESR
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit HUEERBRFECHHEEN - WHRFTE
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. ZHMTBEERGFERME o LERFERE
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which HEW@%T@E%ﬁEwX%i@ RARCZEE
an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not TEMAERRBETEZA -

included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been WMERBZBRBETNLRREBE  ARESE
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference EZEEREEEGFRIRERECIEIER
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of KRR ZEEREB)RECEZRE o HarRK
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that RenERAENMBEE 2 RGBT (R
have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated BRERRTE 2 ERFE)AE - MEFIRT
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original BFERGE - At EEMABEAEFEZRRER
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed WAERME -

at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or
has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account.
If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
the income statement.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on
a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery
of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the income statement, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income statement.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESBEBME(L)

POLICIES (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)
Available-for-sale financial investments (Cont’d)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the
fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
income statement — is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed through
the income statement. Increases in their fair value after impairment
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded
for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
income statement. Future interest income continues to be accrued
based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest
income is recorded as part of finance income. Impairment losses on
debt instruments are reversed through the income statement if the
increase in fair value of the instruments can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
the income statement.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the
case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables
and interest-bearing borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification
as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. This category
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the income statement. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the income statement does not include
any interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESBEBME(L)

POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities (Cont’d)
Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate method
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation

is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics
of a liability is recognised as a liability in the statement of financial
position, net of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible bonds,
the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market
rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount is
carried as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the
proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised
and included in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs. The
carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in
subsequent years. Transaction costs are apportioned between the
liability and equity components of the convertible bonds based on
the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components
when the instruments are first recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if,
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price
for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair
value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such
techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions;
reference to the current market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and
option pricing models.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case
of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on the estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESBEHME(E)

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESBEHME(E)

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Provisions for installation services and product warranties granted
by the Group on certain products are recognised based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of installation services
rendered, repairs or returns, discounted to their present values as
appropriate.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs
that it is intended to compensate.

Wherethe grantrelatestoanasset, the fairvalueis credited to a deferred
income account and is released to the income statement over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments
or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and released
to the income statement by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of services, when the services are
rendered;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer
using a binomial model, further details of which are given in note
33 to the financial statements.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESBEBME(L)

POLICIES (Cont’d)

Share-based payment transactions (Cont’d)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph. All cancellations of
equity-settled transaction awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administrated fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the local municipal governments. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension schemes. The contributions are charged to
the income statement as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESBEBME(L)

POLICIES (Cont’d)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the
statement of financial position, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends
have been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the Group’s
presentation currency. The functional currency of the Company is the
Hong Kong dollar while RMB is used as the presentation currency of
the financial statements of the Company for the purpose of aligning
with the presentation currency of the Group. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. All differences are taken to the
income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of the subsidiaries not established in
the PRC are currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Company at
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period and their
income statements are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation
is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of the subsidiaries not established in the PRC are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of
the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of these subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of
the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that
it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

Judgements (Cont’d)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end the of reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwiill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment annually
and at other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs to sell is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)
Useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation for the Group’s property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of items of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response to industry cycles.
The depreciation charge will increase where the useful lives are less
than the previously estimated useful lives, or management will write
off or write down obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. At 31 December 2010, the carrying amounts
of the property, plant and equipment was RMB863,585,000 (2009:
RMB679,451,000 (as restated); 1 January 2009: RMB741,885,000
(as restated))

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying value of
deferred tax assets at 31 December 2010 was RMB221,311,000
(2009: RMB21,459,000; 1 January 2009: RMB28,220,000). Further
details are contained in note 31 to the financial statements.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale and recognises
movements of their fair values in equity. When the fair value
declines, management makes assumptions about the decline in
value to determine whether there is an impairment that should be
recognised in the income statement. At 31 December 2010, the
carrying amount of available-for-sale assets was RMB6,000,000
(2009: RMB7,670,000 (as restated); 1 January 2009: RMB7,670,000
(as restated)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)
Impairment of receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for the estimated loss arising from
the inability of its debtors to make the required payments. The Group
makes its estimates based on the ageing of its receivable balances,
debtors’ creditworthiness, and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of its debtors was to deteriorate so that the
actual impairment loss might be higher than expected, the Group
would be required to revise the basis of making the allowance. At 31
December 2010, the carrying amounts of trade receivables and other
receivables were RMB3,908,094,000 (2009: RMB3,335,201,000 (as
restated); 1 January 2009: RMB2,613,909,000 (as restated)) and
RMB223,087,000 (2009: RMB50,706,000 (as restated); 1 January
2009: RMB71,500,000 (as restated)), respectively.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made based
on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the write-down amount involves management’s
judgements and estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation
in future is different from the original estimate, such differences will
impact the carrying value of the inventories and the write-down
charge/reversal in the period in which such estimate has been
changed. At 31 December 2010, the carrying amount of inventories
was RMB1,306,343,000 (2009: RMB389,461,000 (as restated); 1
January 2009: RMB270,711,000 (as restated)).

Product warranty and installation provisions

Product warranty and installation provisions are made based on
sales volume and past experience of the level of installation services
rendered, repairs or returns. The assessment of the provision
amount involves management’s judgements and estimates. Where
the actual outcome or expectation in future is different from
the original estimate, such differences will impact the carrying
amount of the product warranty and installation provisions and
the provision amount charged/reversed in the period in which such
estimate has been changed. At 31 December 2010, the product
warranty and installation provisions were RMB443,518,000 (2009:
RMB307,000,000; 1 January 2009: RMB239,933,000).
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three reportable

segments as follows:

(a) the washing machine business segment manufactures and
sells washing machines;

(b) the water heater business segment manufactures and sells
water heaters; and

(c) the integrated channel services segment provides logistics
services as well as sells and distributes home appliance and
other products procured from Haier Affiliates and other
external parties.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a measure
of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except
that interest income and finance costs, as well as head office and
corporate expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, cash and cash equivalents
and other unallocated head office and corporate assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing borrowings, tax payable,
deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 4. R&ESEER ()
Washing machine Water heater Integrated
business business channel services Consolidated
HERBER BkEER RBERARBER e
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-ZF —TTNF ZE-Bf —TTNF ZB-BF —TTNF —E-BF —TTNE
RMB'000 RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT AR®Tn ARETL AR%TR ARETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(Z51) (E51)
Segment revenue, PERA - A
other income and gains: R -
Sales to external customers  FINEEPHEE 6,676,101 9,185375 1,408,276 2,345229 27,722,295 1,347,389 35,806,672 12,877,993
Intersegment sales HERHEE 4,842,907 - 1,717,906 - 504,947 370,100 7,065,760 370,100
Total @t 11,519,008 9,185,375 3,126,182 2,345,229 28,227,242 1,717,489 42,872,432 13,248,093
Reconciliation: HE
Elimination of HEDBREE
intersegment sales (7,065,760)  (370,100)
Segment revenue PEBA 35,806,672 12,877,993
Segment other income PEEMBA
and gains R 35,867 14,780 7,874 10,256 17,433 11,168 61,174 36,204
Total segment revenue, PEWA - A
other income and gains PTeatit: 35,867,846 12,914,197
Segment results NEXE 777,780 391543 274,888 174,246 445028 101265 1,497,656 667,054
Reconciliation: #AE:
Interest income FISWA 10,780 10,562
Corporate and other DRIREM
unallocated expenses KOBER (68,315)  (25,118)
Finance costs MEKA (4,691) (7,906)
Profit before tax BRE AR A 1435430 644,592
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 4. &EDBER (&
Washing machine Water heater Integrated
business business channel services Consolidated
izt 3 BkEER REGARBER b
3 31 31 31 3 31 3 31
December  December ~ 1lJanuary December  December  1January December — December  1January  December — December 1 January
2010 2009 2009 2010 2009 2009 2010 2009 2009 2010 2009 2009
“§-3F “ITOF IE-2F CEEHE -3 CEEE I2-3F CIE)E
= TZA ZZENE fZR TZR ZEENE 1R TZh ZEEAE fZR TIA ZEENE
=t-f =t-8 -f-B =t-R =+-B -A-B =t-B =t-B -f-B =t-BH =Zt-B -A-B
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETL ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETR AR%TR
(Restated) ~ (Restated) (Restated)  (Restated)
(&) (E5) (E5) (E71)
Segment assets MREE 3,109,747 2,780,780 2,255,164 953,467 557,086 496,920 3,158,591 882,428 728380 7,221,805 4220294 3,480,464
Reconciliations: B
Elimination of interseqment HEARHRLER
receivables (1,123,368)  (158,024)  (129,346)
Deferred tax assets EithEgE 21311 21,459 28220
Pledged deposits BEREH 391 82,976 7738
Cash and cash equivalents ReRGEEERE 2,705,607 1447807 695544
Corporate and other MRREMANREE
unallocated assets 695117 601,022 499459
Total assets EEGHE 9720863 6215534 4,582,079
Segment liabilities HEAE 1447177 204129 1,587,094 344,235 508,947 339227 4,032,303 898,935 699,071 5823715 3449178 2,625392
Reconcliations: HE:
Elimination of intersegment HEARRRAER
payables (1,123,368)  (158,024)  (129,346)
Deferred tax liabilities ERHBEER 9,257 9,588 9,588
Tax payable ERHE 612237 119058 63769
Interest-bearing borrowings HERE - 74000 143,000
Corporate and other MRREA
unallocated liabilities FoRafk 1,655,148 971,098 648,134
Total liabltes BELE 6976989 4464898 3,360,537
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD BRI EXREBER AT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI EE
31 December 2010 —ZF—Z4FE+-f=+—H
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 4. &&niEER (&
Washing machine Water heater Integrated
business business channel services Consolidated
HREER BKEER RERERBES &E
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

“R-%F STINF CR-BF CTTNF CR-%F TN CER-BF CTINA
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT ARBTR ARRTT AR®TR ARBTT AR®TR ARETT

(Restated) (Restated)
(&31) (&31)
Other segment information:  Ef 2 EEH :
Share of profits and losses of FEf5 R3]
jointly-controlled entities ~ E&21% - - - - 5,318 3,783 5,318 3,783
Impairment on H it YR FORE
other receivables - 3,329 - - - - - 3,329
Provision for obsolete and  BE RREF BRI
slow-moving inventories 1,952 15,139 76 2,447 20,734 - 22,762 17,586
Product warranty and EmRE
installation provisions REERE 368,814 319,120 157,333 115,451 - - 526,147 434571
Loss on disposal/write-off  {HE /HisEHE -
of items of property, BERHEEERR
plant and equipment, net  ZEIEFE 382 9,086 654 80 21 139 1,057 9,305
Depreciation and FEREH
amortisation 32,883 58,958 20,090 21,053 27,766 10,232 80,739 90,243
Corporate and other ARIREM
unallocated amounts KoEeHE 457 1,605
81,196 91,848
Investments in jointly- AR
controlled entities ERORE - - - - - 25,457 - 25,457
Capital expenditure* BAREY > 75,420 32,818 11,672 35,841 154,335 4,313 241,427 72,972
Corporate and other ARIREM
unallocated amounts FKoEeH - 1,991
241,427 74,963
*  Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant * BAHITBERAEVE  BE KRB RE
and equipment and intangible assets. WEE -
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD S EXEBER D A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B S R 2R Y

31 December 2010 —F—F4#+=-H=+—H

4,

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Geographical information

Over 90% of the Group’s revenue is derived from customers in
Mainland China and over 90% of the Group’s non-current assets,
other than financial instruments and deferred tax assets, are situated
in Mainland China.

Information about major customers

There were no sales to a single customer which individually accounted
for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue during the year.

Sales to two customers accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s
revenue in the previous year, and their respective sales amounts
were approximately RMB5,473,089,000 and RMB1,638,376,000.
The sales to the above customers were included in the washing
machine business segment and water heater business segment.

Annual Report 2010 —Z —ZF F 3|
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EREEAER A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —ZF—Z4FE+-f=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold, net of value-added tax and after
allowances for returns and trade discounts; and the value of services

rendered during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

i

5. W~ Ht AR K
W A TREIA R B - SR BR

18 HRRIBEN - REHERESTINENEA
RHERBHEE -

WA~ B A RIS DT

Group rEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T AREEF T
(Restated)
(&%)
Revenue ON
Sales of goods HEED 34,099,081 11,530,604
Rendering of services REIRE 1,707,591 1,347,389
35,806,672 12,877,993
Other income Hug A
Bank interest income RITHBUA 10,780 10,562
Government subsidies* BB * 23,433 4,729
Compensation received B e S (8
from suppliers 21,581 20,266
Gross rental income in BFzHe WAL
respect of buildings 3,369 2,549
Equipment lease income BBEHEERA - 779
Dividend income from AREERERBIIA
available-for-sale investments 1,168 677
Others Eith 8,171 7,204
68,502 46,766
Gains W 2
Gain on disposal of & XK EIES TR RS
jointly-controlled entities 3,166 -
Gain on disposal of HETHLERERS
available-for-sale investments 286 -
3,452 -
71,954 46,766

*  Various government grants have been received from the
relevant authorities of the Qingdao Municipality and Hefei
Municipality for the Group’s research and development
activities and businesses conducted in those areas. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these grants.

* AREBEMELEELEMER - 2B
BEMREETERERMIFL 22 EH
Be - AEMES Y EEFNIAFER
BEMX °
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EREEAER A

Il

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —ZE—T4F+—-H=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging:

6. BR®A

EWNYi

Al

A

REEZFRBATEN SRR T5I%IA -

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ik ARBT T AREFT
(Restated)
(E7])
Cost of inventories sold EHFERA 29,428,671 8,404,008
Cost of services provided RAEARTEAA 1,581,070 1,231,600
Depreciation of property, M - WEREERE
plant and equipment 15 75,409 87,384
Depreciation of REWMENE
investment properties 16 1,672 1,076
Recognition of prepaid BREMN A ER
land lease payments 17 3,359 2,473
Amortisation of intangible assets* 42 & E#E i 18 756 915
Research and development costs %t & FEE & H 113,465 81,190
Auditors’ remuneration BB EN & 5,850 5,100
Employee benefit expense EERFAFAX
(including directors’ (BIEEEME —HFE8):
remuneration — note 8):
Wages and salaries TERY® 1,188,848 731,575
Welfare & 46,820 26,134
Pension scheme contributions RIREET B 183,596 126,165
Equity-settled share VARR AR 45 55 2 B AR M =2 1
option expense 38,351 7,286
1,457,615 891,160
Minimum lease payments T R FLLEEL
under operating leases 2 &IEHEEKIE
in respect of land and buildings 82,128 48,705
Provision for obsolete and B O T R
slow-moving inventories* 22,762 17,586
Product warranty and EmRE LT REE
installation provisions 30 526,147 434,571
Loss on disposal/write-off of items H& it - BE
of property, plant and BB R 2 B R
equipment, net ** 1,057 9,305
Impairment of other receivables ** E {th f& U Bk 5% 2 BB * 24 - 3,329
Foreign exchange differences, net [E ¥ =58/ %58 54,594 20,844

*  The amortisation of intangible assets and provision for obsolete
and slow-moving inventories for the year are included in “Cost
of sales” on the face of the consolidated income statement.

**  The net loss on disposal/write-off of items of property, plant
and equipment and impairment of other receivables are
included in “Other expenses” on the face of the consolidated

income statement.
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD S EREEAER A A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 53R 2R MY 5
31 December 2010 —ZF—Z4F+-f=+—H
FINANCE COSTS [ 5=§24
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BB ADITIT -
Group AEE
2010 2009
—E-=ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Interest on borrowings wholly ARAFAZHEEZEBERE
repayable within five years 4,008 7,906
Interest on convertible AT E S M E (H15E29)
bonds (note 29) 683 -
4,691 7,906

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong

ES#E

REERBEEBAEIFAERAA LHHRA
(ITEFHRA D REBERBEAIE161EEE

Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong BT
Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:
Group REE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBFIT
Fees we 780 636
Other emoluments: HEMie
Salaries, allowances and e EUMEREDAZE
benefits in kind 1,377 438
Performance related bonuses RIRIELL 270 -
Equity-settled share AR A& E 7 AR
option expense 5,440 1,732
Pension scheme RIREBFFEIER
contributions 150 -
7,237 2,170
8,017 2,806
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EXREEARE A

]|

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —E—F4#+—-F=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont’d) 8.

In the prior year, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in
note 33 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options
which has been recognised in the income statement over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is included
in the above directors’ remuneration disclosure.

(@) Independent non-executive directors:

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
the year were as follows:

EEM=(E)

RBEFE - REARR ZBRER 8 (FBEH
REAEHERME33) - ETERRHERAKER
W IRBREERE - ZEBREZRFETD
RIFLESETE  TERGBPEKRSERAHE
R Mt AR FEMBHRRZEBEENLX
BEEME o HE -

() BWIUFFMITES:

FANTELFATEST ZHRSWT

2010 2009

—EB-ZF —EENF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFTT

Mr. Wu Yinong RIMBRAE 256 212
Mr. Yu Hon To, David BEELA 262 212
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng Elli=leS i 262 212
780 636

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2009: Nil).
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD SR EREE AR A F
+ 23
B R R M aE
31 December 2010 —ZF—Z4FE+-f=+—H
8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont’d) 8. EEME (=)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) BMITEENIENTES
Salaries,
allowances  Performance  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme Total
in kind bonuses expenses  contributions  remuneration
e 2R URAEE 2 BREE
ENFR ®BERA EREX N 8 Hen®
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
2010 —E-ZF%
Executive directors: WIES:
Ms. Yang Mian Mian iRt 90 - - 25 115
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie BAEREE 500 124 1,860 25 2,509
Mr. Li Hua Gang FERRE 320 78 542 25 965
Mr. Sun Jing Yan BRERE 305 68 542 25 940
Mr. Cui Shao Hua* EOERE Ly) - - = a2
1,257 270 2,944 100 4,571
Non-executive directors;  FFHTES
Mr. Wu Ke Song ER 60 - 2,496 25 2,581
Mr. Liang Hai Shan 2EN%E 60 - - 25 85
120 - 2,496 50 2,666
1,377 270 5,440 150 7,237
2009 “EENE
Executive directors: BITEE:
Ms. Yang Mian Mian Hsmat - - - - -
Mr. Zhou Yun Jie BAEREE 68 - 565 - 633
Mr. Sun Jing Yan RRERE 205 - 165 - 370
Mr. Cui Shao Hua BLELE - - - - -
Mr. Cao Chun Hua** EHEEf 165 - 243 - 408
438 - 973 - 1,411
Non-executive directors:  FFHITEE
Mr. Wu Ke Song RREE - - 759 - 759
Mr. Liang Hai Shan ZFEE - - - - -
- - 759 - 759
438 - 1,732 - 2,170
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B S R 2R Y

31 December 2010 —F—F4#+=-H=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont’d) 8. EEM=E (%)
(b) (Cont'd) by (#&)
*  Mr. Cui Shao Hua resigned as an executive director of * ELEERAN_T-THENA+AR
the Company on 19 April 2010. BHEAR R RIBITES
** Mr. Cao Chun Hua resigned as an executive director of > BREREN_FTNAF+ATZ
the Company on 12 November 2009. HEEARARIMITES ©
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FAMBEESIT L NEXREREE[E
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. B2 ZeHE o
9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. IERSFMESR
The five highest paid employees during the year included four FANhEEaTNEERRENE(ZEZNE :
(2009: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out —R)EE BREECMeFBEHN LXK
in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining one 8 FANBRT—H(ZTTNF - MRB)FEFH
(2009: two) non-director, highest paid employee for the year are SFMEE CMSFFBRT ¢
as follows:
Group AEE
2010 2009
—2-25 —TEhs
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEFTT
Salaries, allowances and e EMREYRZE
benefits in kind 639 1,004
Performance related bonuses RBIEAL = -
Equity-settled share VARG A4 E 2 FERR =
option expense 330 100
Pension scheme contributions RIRE TR 11 18

980 1,122
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31 December 2010 —ZF—Z4FE+-f=+—H

9.

10.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Cont’d)

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

9. hERSHMES(E)

FEERETFHEENSETIIETHEANZ
ANENT

Number of employees

EEAH
2010 2009
—ZE-ZF —ETAF
Nil to RMB 1,000,000 T AR¥1,000,0007T 1 2

In the prior year, share options were granted to the non-director,
highest paid employee in respect of his services to the Group, further
details of which are included in the disclosures in note 33 to the
financial statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in the income statement over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the current year is included in the above
non-director, highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year (2009: Nil).

Tax on profits assessable in Mainland China has been calculated
at the applicable PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") rates. Certain
subsidiaries of the Group are entitled to preferential tax treatments
including a reduction in CIT and a full exemption from CIT for two
years starting from their first profit-making year followed by a
50% reduction in CIT for the next consecutive three years. Certain
subsidiaries of the Group are entitled to preferential tax treatments
of reduction in CIT rate to 15%.

RBEFE ZR2FEFTHZSFHEEREAAR
SERMHRGERBRE  FREFBEHRRE
BRRMABZREAR - ZEEBREZAFE
TR BERETE - WE N B E B s R
R Mt AL FEPBHRRRZEBEENLX
FEERSFTHREEME 2HER -

10. FT 8%

FA AEBRYETMRETEZERBE
Mo Bt W EELBEMNEGHRBEB(ZZTA
FE) e

R B R ERBE N 2 IR - THIRRER
PREIGEMEHR(IEEMREHRDREAE - K
SEETHWEBARARZANARERFE &8
R EZEMSH - AR A EEENFERL
MEFEEE2HBHRREEMEN  ANHERKRE
B=FREHRS0%EEMEH - AREETH
BRRBERZARAERESE  BRERNLE
FE B R 15%8H -
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BA RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —ZE—T4F+—-H=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (Cont'd) 10. FTBH (&)

Group NEEH
2010 2009
—E-EF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREEFTT
(Restated)
(&%)
Current — Mainland China BIVER — A B K 624,546 137,466
Underprovision in prior years MAFERETE 3,249 1,070
Deferred (note 31) RAE(HI7E31) (199,852) 6,761
Total tax charge for the year FAMIAL HARE 427,943 145,297

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense
at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable
rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are
as follows:

BARB RRESWE R B RERDVEER ZE
EREFERBADEN 2 HBEH - BIRER
BERFTE 2 BB H 2 9% - ARGERBHRE (A
EERE)RERRR ZABNT

Group - 2010 NEF-—E-FF
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
o B KR Bt
RMB'000 %  RMB'000 %  RMB'000 %
ARETT % ARETT % ARETT %
Profit/(loss) before tax BEiAnaT (B1R) (68,543) 1,503,973 1,435,430
Tax at the statutory tax rate ~ HREEMEHE 2 HE (11,310) 16.5 375,993 25.0 364,683 25.4
Adjustments in respect E A B, BNERT 18
of current tax e 2 A%
of previous periods - - 3,249 0.2 3,249 0.2
Profits and losses attributable ~ HFERHIBEERIEZ
to jointly-controlled entities - - (1,330) (0.1) (1.330) (0.1)
Income not subject to tax FERTUA (75) 0.1 (530) - (605) -
Expenses not deductible for tax A/ HH 52 11,385 (16.6) 162,593 10.8 173,978 12.1
Tax losses not recognised AR IEEE - - 1,220 0.1 1,220 0.1
Tax exemption MIBEA R = - (113,252) (7.5) (113,252) (7.9)
Tax charge at the Group’s BASEERREHE
effective rate ZHRIEX - - 427,943 285 427,943 29.8
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31 December 2010 —F—FT4#+=-FA=+—H
10. INCOME TAX (Cont’d) 10. FRB88HL (&)
Group - 2009 REE-—TTNF
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
5B Bl ABE @st
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
AREF T % ARETFT % ARETFT %
(Restated) (Restated)
(E71) (EZ51)
Profit/(loss) before tax BREL AR R (B518) (24,422) 669,014 644,592
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEREE2HIA (4,030) 16.5 167,253 25.0 163,223 253
Adjustments in respect FE A ERz BUEAT IR
of current tax ez A%
of previous periods - - 1,070 0.2 1,070 0.2
Profits and losses attributable ~ HFERHIE &I
to jointly-controlled entities - - (946) (0.1) (946) (0.1)
Income not subject to tax E LN (115) 0.5 (169) (0.1) (284) (0.1)
Expenses not deductible for tax A %52 4,145 (17.0) 83,443 12.5 87,588 13.6
Tax losses not recognised AR EEE - - 551 - 551 -
Tax exemption FiIBEA R, - - (105,905) (15.8)  (105,905) (16.4)
Tax charge at the Group’s BALEZBRREGE
effective rate ZBIES N - - 145,297 217 145,297 225

11.

12.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

Of the Group’s profit attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB964,363,000 (2009: RMB448,652,000 (as restated)), a loss of
RMB65,318,000 (2009: RMB24,249,000) has been dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company (note 34(b)).

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company during
the year (2009: Nil).

11.

12.

RN A RREGEF

EARAIBRRAEGEAERZNARE
964,363,000( Z T T L F © AR ¥
448,652,0007L( L& ))F - HEARE
65,318,0007L( =TT NF : AREE24,249,000
T)EEARRAE 2B 3R E W EECH
34(b)) °

Hﬁ 1%\

FARRRLED M EIREMRSR
FE) e

—ETH

— ==
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31 December 2010 —E—F4#+—-F=+—H

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. XA RIEZEERBRRELESRERN

136

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,058,303,521 (2009: 2,010,030,069) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company, adjusted to reflect the interest on the convertible
bonds. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on:

BREARFZ BEIREFAAQA LR
BREREZFAEFACETZRER Z M
1 F 9 #2,058,303,521( = T T 1, F :
2,010,030,0690% )5t & -

BREIERNZSBEDREBFAARRTBR
P SR R A v ) (A8 38 BE DA R BR AT 4 AR 55 8. )
AHE - FTEARZ ERBRINEF AT AR
HEREARNEMABZFADETERERE
B ARBRRBIETER LM EEE#REE
i AR R AT (B 1T 2 E R R N T 1
B o

BREANEERNIZATSENE -

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREEFIT
(Restated)
(&)
Earnings &
Profit attributable to ordinary ARETEGRERZF
equity holders of the Company 7N R] & AR A% 58 & {5 35 71
used in the basic earnings
per share calculation 964,363 448,652
Interest on convertible bonds AIRREFFIE 683 -
Profit attributable to ordinary RETATRARE SN BRI Z
equity holders PN/NSIESER S S il
of the Company before
interest on convertible bonds 965,046 448,652
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31 December 2010 —F—FT4#+=-FA=+—H

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13. XA RIEZEERBRRELESRER
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE (4&)
COMPANY (Cont’d)

Number of shares

RBEE
2010 2009
—E-2F —EENF
Shares fig 17
Weighted average number ARG EERERET
of ordinary shares in issue FANEETEBR
during the year used in INHEF 8
the basic earnings
per share calculation 2,058,303,521 2,010,030,069
Effect of dilution — weighted BEYE - LB
average number a8
of ordinary shares:
Warrants R HEE 250,023,436 154,709,781
Share options e 60,662,743 11,548,709
Convertible bonds AI#RRE S 3,207,210 -
313,893,389 166,258,490
Total FEH 2,372,196,910 2,176,288,559
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]|

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to the related party transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group had the following

14.BEATRS

() MRUEMBHRREMBOFALZBEAL
RHH  REERFARSAHELR T

material transactions with Haier Affiliates during the year: ETUTERRZS :
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
(Restated)
(E7])
Export sale of washing O 85 R T e Bk 28
machines and water heaters 1,080,933 870,049
Domestic sale of washing B 1) 56 R TR M I B 2]
machines and water heaters 21,553 4,603,040
Purchase of finished goods PR BURK 20,021,520 -
Purchase of raw materials PR R 9,353,256 7,476,535
Printing and packaging R kBB
fee expenses 29,093 34,281
Mould charges REBXH 233,346 193,947
Utility service fee expenses NARBE S H 89,168 58,099
Logistic services income Wi AR IS UL 1,578,260 1,282,197
Promotion fee expenses EEELY 152,470 127,926
Other service fee expenses HAth AR5 & S H 194,983 144,003
Interest expenses FEZH 4,008 7,906
Interest income FLEWA 9,435 8,710
Other financial service fees HEtemiREE 8,593 -
Trademark licence FIEE R E S H4
fee expenses# - -
Sale of gift products HEE M - 4,699
Premise lease expenses MERETH 1,511 840
Purchase of equipment FREE A 896 -

#  The trademark licence fee expenses were charged at a

nominal consideration of RMB1 during the year.

The above transactions were conducted in accordance with the

terms and conditions mutually agreed by both parties.

Annual Report 2010 —Z —ZF F 3|

#  FR ARRREHINERKEAREA

REATTEHE -

WA L2 5 THiRIERT 4975 B AW E 2 1R M i

47 -



i

HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EREEAER A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —ZF—Z4FE+-f=+—H

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(b)
(@)

(ii)

(iii)

Other transaction with related parties:

During the year, the Group acquired a 94.95% equity
interest in Qingdao Lejia from Haier Corp and its
affiliates through an additional capital contribution of
RMB9,495,000 to its original capital of RMB505,000.
In addition, the Group acquired a 100% equity
interest in Qingdao Haier Logistics from Haier Corp
for a consideration of RMB763,000,000, which was
determined with reference to the financial position
and results of Qingdao Haier Logistics Group. Further
details of these transactions are included in note 1 to
the financial statements.

During the year, Qingdao Haier Logistics acquired the
remaining 80% and 75% shareholding in Beijing Haier
Logistics and Qingdao Haier Goodaymart Logistics from
Haier Investment for considerations of RMB800,000
and RMB750,000, respectively, which were determined
with reference to their paid-in capital amounts. Further
details of these transactions are included in note 1 to
the financial statements.

In addition, Qingdao Haier Logistics and Qingdao Lejia
disposed of certain of its available-for-sale investments
to Haier Affiliates for an aggregate consideration of
RMB1,956,000, which was determined with reference to
their carrying amounts amounting to RMB1,670,000.

These transactions were completed prior to the
completion of the Acquisition Transactions.

During the year, the Company issued convertible bonds
in principal amounts of HK$786,000,000 to Haier
Shareholdings (Hong Kong) Limited (“Hong Kong
Haier”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Qingdao Haier.
The convertible bonds were non-interest-bearing and
were fully converted into 138,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company during the year. Further details of the
transactions are included in note 29 to the financial
statements.

14.BEAETRZ (&

BREA T 2 B S ¢

i FR AEERFBRAFREERAAR
#505,0007T & & A IR #9,495,000
T MEREEA R REBB AR
BEESRR294.95% M o N
REEMEBREEARKESSE
MM 2100%Ez - REAARE
763,000,0007C * ZREHI2RES
SRR E 2 W SARR R SR T
E o RER G ZE—HFBRHNUE
HRERMITET ©

(b)

iy FA ESERNRAERRED
AREL SRR RTS8 A
BB 7w & T 280% K% 75% A% 1
R B A ARKS800,000t K AR
750,0007T * ZRETHLRILEH
MRkEEERBRIEMRZEHE
KMERE - ZERH 2 #E—THIFH
REITS IR -

o EEERMERETESLEREE
HETAHLERETERBER
Al BRERARY,956,0000T * %
RENDESERYRLESLER 2K
HEEAR1,670,000T 2B MET

b

25X HER TR BB AT

b1l

FA - ARBAESER 2 ENE
ARERRKRO(EB)ERAA(AE
V58 1) BTN £ 58786,000,00075
T2 AIBRES - ZABRERES BT
B TRERE2EHEBAELRAT
138,000,000/ L @A% - ZEXH 2
P BEHRN M IS REMFE29

(iii)
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14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —E—F4#+—-F=+—H

14.BEAETRF(E)
O AEETEEERASZHWH

2010 2009

—E-2F —ZEENF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFTT

(Restated)

(E7])

Short term employee benefits 45 #3{g B8 7 2,057 1,074

Post-employment benefits BEER IR AR A 202 -

Equity-settled share AR A H 2 B R ST

option expense 5,440 1,732
Total compensation paid to ENEEEEAB 2 HINERE

key management personnel 7,699 2,806

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note
8 to the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of item (a), other
than those attributable to Qingdao Haier Logistics Group
and Qingdao Lejia incurred prior to the completion of the
Acquisition Transactions, also constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of items (b)(i) and
(b)(iii) also constitute connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD /S ERE@EMAEMR L A
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R M aE
31 December 2010 —ZF—Z4FE+-f=+—H
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % - BERRE
Group rEE
Tools,
furniture
Plant and and Motor Construction
Buildings machinery fixtures vehicles in progress Total
IE KA

BT RERME RKE nE  ERIE @t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTRT ARETRT AR®TR

31 December 2010 “E2-Z5+-A=1-H

At 1 January 2010 (as restated): R-T—THE—F—H(KLE):

Cost A 551,231 721,815 23,711 67,886 24,525 1,389,168
Accumulated depreciation ZEITE (186,645)  (454,802)  (15413)  (52,857) - (709,717)
Net carrying amount EEFE 364,586 267,013 8,298 15,029 24,525 679,451

Cost at 1 January 2010, net of ~ RZZ—ZF—F—-AZMA

accumulated depreciation BB ZHITE

(as restated) (& =3) 364,586 267,013 8,298 15,029 24,525 679,451
Additions RE 61,512 4,238 1,753 13,179 185279 265,961
Disposals/write-off HE (462) (1,276) (44) (120) (4,516) (6,418)
Depreciation provided during FRNERR

the year (30,115)  (39,238) (2,192) (3,864) - (75,409)
Transfers Fte 2,656 34,114 - - (36,770) =
Cost at 31 December 2010, N-E-FEE+-A=+—H

net of accumulated ZEAK - BB EFINE

depreciation 398,177 264,851 7,815 24,224 168,518 863,585
At 31 December 2010: RZZE-ZF+-A=1+—H:

Cost A 614,808 729,319 23,633 77,068 168,518 1,613,346

Accumulated depreciation ZEE (216,631)  (464,468)  (15,818)  (52,844) - (749,761)

Net carrying amount BEFE 398,177 264,851 7,815 24,224 168518 863,585
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31 December 2010 —F—FT4#+=-A=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd) 15. 1% - BMERXE(E)

Group (Cont'd) REE(E)
Tools,
furniture
Plant and and Motor  Construction
Buildings ~ machinery fixtures vehicles in progress Total
IA KA

BF BER#E kEKE nE ERIR &t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL AREBTR ARETT ARBTT ARRTR ARETL

31 December 2009 (as restated) —ZEEAF+-A=1+—-R(EEF)

At 1 January 2009: RZZTNF-A—8:

Cost PR 572,769 814,709 20,107 78,610 12,041 1,498,236

Accumulated depreciation e (167,840)  (517,249)  (9,104)  (62,158) - (756,351)

Net carrying amount FEFE 404,929 297,460 11,003 16,452 12,041 741,885
Cost at 1 January 2009, net of  RZZEZAF—A—BZMA

accumulated depreciation ENREHITE 404,929 297,460 11,003 16,452 12,041 741,885
Additions RE 5,437 9,470 5,815 4,179 49,623 74,524
Disposals/write-off HE /i (9,029)  (18,668) (2,054) (929) - (30,680)
Depreciation provided during FRTERRE

the year (24,247) (51,886) (6,578) (4,673) - (87,384)
Transfer to investment properties 1% & ¥ £ (18,894) - - - - (18,894)
Transfers Eba 6,390 30,637 112 - (37,139) -
Cost at 31 December 2009, RZEENE+ZR=1T—H

net of accumulated A BHRERITE

depreciation 364,586 267,013 8,298 15,029 24525 679,451
At 31 December 2009 RZEZNFTZR=1+—R:

Cost AR 551,231 721,815 23,711 67,886 24,525 1,389,168

Accumulated depreciation ZEE (186,645)  (454,802)  (15,413)  (52,857) - (709,717)

Net carrying amount REFE 364,586 267,013 8,298 15,029 24,525 679,451
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EREEAER A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —F—FT4#+=-FA=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

All buildings of the Group are erected on land in Mainland China
held under medium term leases.

As at 31 December 2010, certain of the Group’s buildings with an
aggregate net book value of approximately RMB329,824,00 (2009:
RMB315,809,000 (as restated); 1 January 2009: RMB346,621,000
(as restated)) did not have building ownership certificates registered
under the names of the respective subsidiaries of the Company.

With respect to the above properties and the Group’s investment
properties, on 24 February 2005 and 20 September 2006, Haier
Corp issued two undertakings to the Company, pursuant to which
Haier Corp agreed to provide other suitable properties to the
Group to ensure the operations of certain subsidiaries of the
Company and indemnify the Group against any losses arising
from the above defective property title issue and for any moving
cost/loss incurred, if, for any reason, the respective subsidiaries
were not able to continue to use the buildings before the related
acquisition and registration procedures have been completed. The
aggregate net book value of the Group’s buildings and investment
properties indemnified by Haier Corp in the two undertakings as at
31 December 2010 amounted to approximately RMB132,163,000
(2009: RMB147,465,000; 1 January 2009: RMB155,712,000).

In addition, on 28 August 2010, Haier Corp also issued an
undertaking to the Company in respect of the properties acquired
in the Acquisition Transactions, pursuant to which Haier Corp
agreed to indemnify the Group against any losses arising from the
defective property title issue. The aggregate net book value of the
Group’s buildings indemnified by Haier Corp in the undertaking as
at 31 December 2010 amounted to approximately RMB96,997,000
(2009: RMB62,574,000; 1 January 2009: RMB66,663,000).

In the opinion of the directors, the Group is entitled to lawfully
and validly occupy and use the buildings and investment properties
for its daily operations, notwithstanding the fact that the related
building ownership certificates have not yet been obtained.

15. 9% - MERRE(E)

AEE2FEFHRTRROFHE - ARG
B o

M-ZE—TF+-F=+—0 AEBRER
SFEL B ARE329,824,00070( —ETNF -
AR#315,809,0007C(FE5) - —ETNF—
A—HR: AR®346,621,0007C(&E%5)))2H
FEFIEUAADBESHBARIZEEELZ
EHIERERE -

HEMMERREBREMENS  N=2FF
AF A+ MNBEER=ZTEEFNLA=F+H"
HREERQRIAARREDMIERR @ Hit
EREEARIRE - WS E AR NEEA R
REETE A IS R B IR e TAd BT & (5 A
BFE2ELE  AEREEARBRASER
HEMESEME  UBRRARFETFHERF
AR WHEREER LG REYE
M E £ 2 IR RATB B Ak
BRA/HBR R-_T—ZFF+-F=+—
H BREERAREREE EFRIREY
¥BEEFENBARM132,163,000T(=F
ThF  ARM147,465,0000T + —EZTNEF—
A—H : AR¥155,712,0007T) °

o RZZ—ZFFNAZ+TNH - BREER
NEFWEELZ ST EN M E AR R EHED
—IEAGE Bt BREBARIRAEWMERSE
EREREMEXERNEEE 2 FEMIBL-
RZZ—ZTF+-A=+—HB BREEARQ
AIMEASREC EBFRERFENRARE
96,997,0007T(=ZEZENF : ARH62,574,000
T ZEENF—A—A : AR¥66,663,000

JL) ©
BEERE BENADSEHREHERES  #

AEBEBERSERBRERRERET K
EMENETRERE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —E—F4#+—-F=+—H

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Group

16. REY*¥

KEE

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
(Restated)
(&%)
Cost at 1 January, R—A—BZKRA - BB ERITE
net of accumulated depreciation 22,472 4,654
Transfer from own-occupied BEYFEERE
properties - 18,894
Depreciation provided FATERE
during the year (1,672) (1,076)
Cost at 31 December, BW+=ZA=+—H2ZKA -
net of accumulated depreciation 2R E 20,800 22,472
At 31 December: R+—A=+—H":
Cost DN 28,783 28,783
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (7,983) (6,311)
Net carrying amount BREFAE 20,800 22,472

All investment properties of the Group are erected on land in
Mainland China held under medium term leases.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties was approximately RMB28,219,000 as at 31 December
2010 (2009: RMB30,901,000 (as restated)). Property rentals from
investment properties for the year ended 31 December 2010
amounted to approximately RMB3,291,000 (2009: RMB2,377,000
(as restated)).

As at 31 December 2010, certain of the Group's investment properties
with an aggregate net book value of approximately RMB17,106,000
(2009: RMB18,298,000) did not have building ownership certificates
registered under the names of the respective subsidiaries of the
Company. The Group obtained an undertaking from Haier Corp in
relation to such defective property title issue, details of which are
set out in note 15 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —ZF—Z4FE+-f=+—H

17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 17. A LB ER
Group rEH
2010 2009
—E-2F ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARBEFT
(Restated)
(E51)
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—AZEAE 81,406 83,879
Additions NE 97,667 -
Recognised during the year FRHER (3.359) (2,473)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HZEEE 175,714 81,406
Current portion included FPATER RIS © RE KA M EYERR
in prepayments, deposits ZmENEL S
and other receivables (4,485) (2,165)
Non-current portion EMENEL S 171,229 79,241
All prepaid land lease payments represent payments for leasehold FRA AN L E IR AP B A RE B9z
land in Mainland China held under medium term leases. RO/ E 2 HE T TR
As at 31 December 2010, certain parcels of the Group’s leasehold RZF-FF+ZA=FT—R AREREH
land with an aggregate unamortised prepaid land lease payment BN LA E R @B A ARKEE6,916,0007T
amount of approximately RMB66,916,000 (2009: RMB19,638,000 ZTTNF - AKH19,638,0007T (FEEF) :
(as restated); 1 January 2009: RMB20,443,000 (as restated)) did —TTNF—HA—B : AKRK20,443,0007T (4
not have land use right certificates registered under the names B5)) 2B TIRMAE T I MAR QR & HHE
of the respective subsidiaries of the Company, all of which were MEBARzEZREL L T MIEREE  SR%
indemnified by Haier Corp as at 31 December 2010. Details of the BRARER-_F—FTF+_A=1+—HRLHE
undertakings granted by Haier Corp to the Company in relation to HEHRAE - BREE QR RARABA @A
such title issue are set out in note 15 to the financial statements. A2 BT R AN A BIVE AR 2 S BB AT

TEMRMIFET5
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

all

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —E—F4#+—-F=+—H

18. BILEE

Group REH
Patents
Software and licences Total
B4 HRIR S E Foby
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR%T R AR®T R
31 December 2010 —E-EF+-HF=+—H
At 1 January 2010 (as restated): RZZE—TF
—A—H(&E5):
Cost B AR 4,482 2,429 6,911
Accumulated amortisation 2T (3,562) (1,735) (5,297)
Net carrying amount RHEH#E 920 694 1,614
Cost at 1 January 2010, RZT—FTF—A—HZHA
net of accumulated BB R #HE(KET)
amortisation (as restated) 920 694 1,614
Amortisation provided FRNEHEE
during the year (408) (348) (756)
Cost at 31 December 2010, R-ZT—ZF
net of accumulated +ZA=+t—HZH~E -
amortisation BNk 25T 512 346 858
At 31 December 2010: RZE—EF+-_fA=+—H:
Cost AR 4,482 2,429 6,911
Accumulated amortisation REHEH (3,970) (2,083) (6,053)
Net carrying amount RmFE 512 346 858
31 December 2009 —EENE
(as restated) TZA=+—H(KE5)
At 1 January 2009: RZZZNFE—-A—H:
Cost DN 4,043 2,429 6,472
Accumulated amortisation ST (2,994) (1,388) (4,382)
Net carrying amount RmFE 1,049 1,041 2,090
Cost at 1 January 2009, net of RZZZNF—R—HZKA
accumulated amortisation Bk 2T # 1,049 1,041 2,090
Additions during the year FARE 439 - 439
Amortisation provided FERNEHEE
during the year (568) (347) (915)
Cost at 31 December 2009, R-ZZNF
net of accumulated TZA=FT—BZHA
amortisation [REL S 5 920 694 1,614
At 31 December 2009: “EENF+AZ=F+—H:
Cost B 4,482 2,429 6,911
Accumulated amortisation Rt (3,562) (1,735) (5,297)
Net carrying amount REFE 920 694 1,614

Annual Report 2010 —Z —ZF F 3|



HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD S EREBMHER A H
+ >
B RS SRR MY EE
31 December 2010 —ZF—F4F+-f=+—H
19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. RIB AT 2 RE
Company AN
2010 2009
—Z2-2F —ZEENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBEFT
Unlisted investments, at cost FELEMIRE - AR 1,685,012 1,745,393
Impairment (note) A (FEE) (2,003) (2,075)
1,683,009 1,743,318
Note: An impairment was recognised for an unlisted investment with M5t AREREMEARZFRHREE &K
a carrying amount of RMB2,003,000 (2009: RMB2,075,000) BBt EEARE2,003,000L(ZEF
because the relevant subsidiary had suffered losses for many L%+ AR¥2,075,00070) 2 3F LT
years. BHERRME -
The amounts due from and to subsidiaries included in the STARRBIIEREBEE RIERBBEZEK KL
Company’'s non-current assets and non-current liabilities of FERTHE R BIFRIBED B A A R#216,939,0007T
RMB216,939,000 (2009: RMB143,711,000) and RMB74,341,000 (ZZEZNF  AR¥143,711,00070) X AR EE
(2009: RMB74,885,000), respectively, are unsecured, interest-free 74,341,0007C( —ZZ N AR#74,885,000
and are not repayable with one year. TO) R RERRN—FREEEN -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS ERAR AL

19. RMB LR ZRE(E)
TENBRARIZERNT -

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Percentage of

Place of Nominal value equity directly
registration and of registered attributable to Principal
Name operations capital the Company activities
AT EEEMN
=y YA ZMEREE BREEIL FEEK
RMB’000 Direct Indirect
ARBTR HiZ Bk
Qingdao Haier Washing PRC/ 238,610 - 93.44 Manufacture and sales
Machine Co., Ltd. * Mainland China of washing machines
BEBRARKERAF* LN HEE R E K
Foshan Shunde Haier Electric PRC/ 48,800 - 60 Manufacture and sales
Co., Ltd. * Mainland China of washing machines
BILTIEEERESBRAR]* LN HEE R E K
Hefei Haier Washing Machine PRC/ 92,000 - 98.69 Manufacture and sales
Co., Ltd. * Mainland China of washing machines
EIEEREKEER AR LN HEE R E K
Qingdao Jiaonan Haier PRC/ 10,000 - 94.49 Manufacture and sales
Washing Machine Co., Ltd. ** Mainland China of washing machines
BEERMERAXEAR AT~ LN HEE R E K
Chongging Haier Washing PRC/ 25,000 25 74.02 Manufacture and sales
Machine Co., Ltd. * Mainland China of washing machines
EEBRAKKAR AR B R B RE HEE R E K
Foshan Shunde Haier PRC/ 20,000 25 74.02 Manufacture and sales
Intelligent Electronic Co., Ltd. * Mainland China of accessories for
BILmIEEEREEE T BB AR electrical appliances
HEERIEEEREN
Qingdao New Goodaymart PRC/ USD24,000,000 - 100 Provision of
Logistics Service Co., Ltd. Mainland China 24,000,000% 7T logistics service
EEFEBIEMRREERAR  PEHEAE REDTIRT

(Previously known as

Haier Indesit (Qingdao)

Washing Machine Co., Ltd.) ***
(AIEERERE(BR)AK

BARBRAR] )+
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Lyp ¥ e ks

19. RBRARIZRE(E)
EEHBREZANNT (%)

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont’d)

Percentage of

Place of Nominal value equity directly
registration and of registered attributable to Principal
Name operations capital the Company activities
AAREEEG
=x ! IR & 2 B HEMEAREE REBDL FEXEK
RMB’'000 Direct Indirect
AR¥TR BHE SiE:3
Qingdao Haier Electronics PRC/ 5,000 50 50 Sales of
Sales Co., Ltd. * Mainland China washing machines
EERERHEEARAF R B AR and water heaters
SHE I R Bk 28
Qingdao Haier Drum PRC/ UsD 12,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sales
Washing Machine Co., Ltd. *** Mainland China 12,000,000% 7T of washing machines
EEEREMAKEARAR *  RE/PREARE HERIHE SRR
Qingdao Economy and PRC/ 120,000 - 100 Manufacture and sales
Technology Development Mainland China of water heaters
Zone Haier Water BB AR HEERBERKSE
Heater Co., Ltd. ***
FERERNHEEEH
HUKEBR AT =
Wuhan Haier Water Heater PRC/ 50,000 - 100 Manufacture and sales
Co., Ltd. *** Mainland China of water heaters
HEGREVKRER AR ** B B AR HE R EHKER
Chonggqing Haier Water PRC/ 10,000 - 100 Manufacture and sales
Heater Co., Ltd. ** Mainland China of water heaters
EEGRAKBERRF** B B AR HE R EHKER
Chongging New Goodaymart PRC/ 5,000 - 100 Sales of
Electronics Sales Co., Ltd. * Mainland China home appliance
EEFARBEREHEGR AT R B AR and other products
HESRLEMER
Haier Electronics Sales PRC/ 5,000 - 100 Sales of
(Hefei) Co., Ltd. * Mainland China washing machines
BRBREE(EE) B R ARE and water heaters

BRAR*

HERTRM R AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —E—F4#+—-F=+—H

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont’d)

19. RMB LR ZRE(E)

ITEMBRARZERNAT (&)

Percentage of

Place of Nominal value equity directly
registration and of registered attributable to Principal
Name operations capital the Company activities
RRBEEEMNL
18 T R 3 3 B AMEREE REB DL FEXK
RMB’000 Direct Indirect
AR¥T T =3 EikE:
Qingdao Haier Logistics PRC/ 10,000 - 100 Provision of
Co., Ltd. ** Mainland China logistics service
ERBRMRARAR R, B DR IR
Beijing Haier Logistics Co., Ltd. ** PRC/ 1,000 - 100 Provision of
ERERMRABRAE** Mainland China logistics service
R, B DR IR
Qingdao Haier Goodaymart PRC/ 1,000 - 100 Provision of
Logistics Co., Ltd. ** Mainland China logistics service
SEEMARIEMRBRAR > R, B R IR
Hefei Goodaymart PRC/ 500 - 100 Provision of
Logistics Co., Ltd. ** Mainland China logistics service
AEEBIEEREER AR R, B DR IRE
Chongging Hairi PRC/ 500 - 100 Provision of
Logistics Co., Ltd. ** Mainland China logistics service
EEEAMRBRAR R, B R IR

* Registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise

under PRC law

**  Registered as a limited liability company under PRC law
*** Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC
law

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD BRI EXREBER AT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI EE
31 December 2010 —ZF—Z4F+—-f=+—H
20. INTERESTS INJOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES 20. R EZEHIE R 2
Group REE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
—F-FF —EENF —EENF
+=—RA=+—H +=ZBA=+—H —H—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR®T ARET
(Restated) (Restated)
(E7%) (E7%)
Share of net assets (R EEFE = 25,457 21,674

The Group’s trade and bills payable balances with the jointly-
controlled entities are disclosed in note 26 to the financial
statements.

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entities were as follows:

AEBERERZFHEEZENESERREE
R SRR E26 NI TE -

HEZEHER 2 ERINT:

Nominal
value of Percentage of
registered UTAREED L
Place of capital Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
Name £ registration ~ RMB'000 interest power sharing  activities
aMEREE

A ARETRT

ERE REE BOER IEER

Hefei Haier Logistics BIEERMRERAT PRC 500
Company Limited HE

Wuhan Haier Logistics REBRMRAR AR PRC 500
Company Limited HE

All of the above investments in jointly-controlled entities were
indirectly held by the Company.

50 50 50  Procurement of
components

R

50 50 50  Procurement of
components

R

PAER S RIS 2 5K 2 M A A RIS
A o
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B®WE

BEEARA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —F—FT4#+=-A=+—H

20. INTERESTS INJOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES 20. Rt E ISR o #EE(E)

(Cont’d)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information

of the Group’s jointly-controlled entities:

Share of the jointly-controlled entities’ assets and liabilities:

&£B

=

RIERFEHEREENARE

TREINARRB ARG E 2B BE R

31 December 31 December 1 January

2010 2009 2009

—E-FF —ETNEF —ZETNF

+=A=+—8H +=-A=+—H —A—H

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R AREEF T AREEF T

(Restated) (Restated)

(&%) (&%)

Current assets MBNVEE - 881,540 1,084,287
Non-current assets EREEE — 49,527 79,221
Current liabilities RBEE - (905,610) (1,141,834)
Net assets BEFE - 25,457 21,674

Share of the jointly-controlled entities’ results: FEAG RSB RAA ¢

2010 2009

—E-EF —ETNF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARBEFIT

(Restated)

(&%)

Revenue Wz 1,869,076 2,586,770
Total expenses B R (1,861,985) (2,581,595)
7,091 5,175
Tax IR (1,773) (1,392)
Profit after tax BrEE R T 5,318 3,783
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD SR EREEER A F
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI EE
31 December 2010 —F—FT4#+=-FA=+—H
21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 21. AHHEHERE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
—E-FF —ETNEF ZETNF
+=—B=+—H +=—A=+—H —HA—H
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREETF T AREEF T
(Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (£31))
Unlisted equity investments, FELEMRAIZE
at cost EZID N 6,000 7,670 7,670

As at 31 December 2010, all of the Group’s available-for-sale
investments were stated at cost less impairment because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
directors are of the opinion that their fair value cannot be measured
reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of them in the near

future.

4

W_E—ZTF+_A=+—H KEEE2IA
R ERE DR AR R EEESER  R
ARMEFAABATEZRERK  AREES
REBERNFETEA SR -  AEBESHE
ITHRHERMEEERE -

22.INVENTORIES 22. ZE
Group AEE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
—ZE-FF —ETNF ZETNF
+=RA=+—H +=-A=+—H” —A—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREEF T AREEF T
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&%)
Raw materials R 32,610 32,408 33,323
Work in progress ERS 20,155 16,116 7,028
Finished goods IRk 1,253,578 340,937 230,360
1,306,343 389,461 270,711

Annual Report 2010 =& — T F F 3}

153



]|

HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EREEAER A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —E—F4#+—-F=+—H

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23.EREZRAKRERE

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally one month, extending
up to three months for major customers. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of
the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no

AEBERAEZFPZHNESGRFUNEERE
HEFEEON  BEAMNEFENTE R
HEEA—EA XEXFPZEEHRZ A
E=EA - EEFPHBAEEHLR - AREEHK
D0 B RE B R i R M [ B AR SR A RUE E B R
b - BHIASRESRERETHEM - &N L
MARAREEHEWEZRREERSTEFH
MU BEAETFNEERR - BRE SR
RIETEE -

significant concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the RS ERERE ZFERZERIZEZH RS

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: T
Group AEE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF ZETNF
+=A=+—8H +-HA=+—H —A—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR#EFT ARBT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&)
Trade receivables: FEWE Z IR
Within 1 month KENIA 465,127 679,330 973,831
1 to 2 months 12218 A 178,900 83,738 14,340
2 to 3 months 2Z231E A 133,645 76,082 146,453
Over 3 months HBiE31E A 204,345 219,308 129,827
982,017 1,058,458 1,264,451
Bills receivable FEU = 15 2,926,077 2,276,743 1,349,458
3,908,094 3,335,201 2,613,909
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EREBEAER A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

L R

31 December 2010 —E—F4#+=-H=+—H

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 23. EWESRARERE ()

51 2 AR AR AR BB 2 FEIRE 5 BR SR
RBZIREDTT

The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are
not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

follows:

Group rEH
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
—E-ZF —ZZETAF —ZETNF
+=B=+—H +=—A=+—8 —A—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT AREFT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E31) (&E7))
Neither past due nor impaired R R ARRBE 3,703,749 3,115,893 2,484,082
Less than 1 year past due BERDR—F 136,549 219,308 129,827
1 to 2 years past due A —E=WE 67,796 - -
3,908,094 3,335,201 2,613,909

AR 780 B B ARORUME 2 R MR TR BT A 4R R R AR
ReEFAR -

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number B A ARBEC ERFIERZ AR AREE T
of customers that have a good track record with the Group. Based BRHERIFZEFER - RIBBEL - AQF
EERABARZFEMELBERE AR
EEERUREANZE  MRZSERNERA
AR E o REE W R EEBRTAEM
ER M EMEERAENS -

on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables are amounts
due from Haier Affiliates totalling RMB2,270,517,000 (2009:
RMB946,261,000 (as restated); 1 January 2009: RMB1,182,439,000
(as restated)), which are repayable on similar credit terms to those
offered to the major customers of the Group. Further details of
the sales to these related parties are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

RNEE 2 FEWCE 5 R 3% ZE 55 5 5 E WOS FR B
BALHEAEXARKE2,270,517,0000L( ==
THEF + AR¥946,261,000T(KFEF)) + =%
ZNAF—HA—H: ARM1,182,439,0007T (£
FH)) RRBERAFERPHATALER
B2 EERREE BHRZEEEATHE
ZHMEHE RN EIREM 14 -
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD S EREBER D A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B S R 2R Y

31 December 2010 —F—FT4#+=-A=+—H

23. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 23. ERE S RAKREE (&)

The Group pledged bills receivable of approximately AEBEDERERERLNARS18,137,0007T
RMB518,137,000 (2009: RMB 305,738,000 (as restated); 1 January ZETNF: ARME305,738,0007T (KL ES)
2009: RMB196,867,000 (as restated)) to secure certain of its bills ZEENF—A—H: AR®196,867,0007T
payable. (& ED)) ARG EE TRERNSZEE -

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24.FANFIE » &R HAEUWERR

RECEIVABLES
Group Company
A5H AL
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2009 2010 2009
ZE-BF  CTTNE “E-BF  C_ZTNE
+=R TZRA  ZEBRENF +=h +=R
Er=F =+-H —A—A Er=F =t+-8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETRT ARBTR  AR¥TR ARETR
(Restated) (Restated)
(E71) (&31)
Prepayments BRFE 293,036 71,576 34,209 261 361
Deposits Be 522 443 615 522 443
Other receivables Hity R 232,859 60,478 78,587 - -
526,417 132,497 113,411 783 804
Impairment A (9,772) (9,772) (7,087) = -
516,645 122,725 106,324 783 804
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EREBEAER A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —F—FT4#+=-FA=+—H

i

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24.FA{dFE - &R HMWEWERRK

RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

The movements in provision for impairment of other receivables
are as follows:

(#)
i RO R E R G 2 2B -

Group Company
r5E ERH
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNE —E2-ZF —ETNEF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®TRE ARETT ARBTRT AR®TR
At 1 January m—A—8 9,772 7,087 = -
Impairment loss BRREEE (MFe)
recognised (note 6) - 3,329 - -
Amount written off W8 = N AT YR B 5R0E
as uncollectible - (644) - -
At 31 December B+ZRA=+—H 9,772 9,772 - -

Except for other receivables amounting to RMB9,772,000 (2009:
RMB9,772,000; 1 January 2009: RMB7,087,000) included in the
above balance, none of the above assets is either past due or
impaired. Other than the aforementioned impaired receivables, the
financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables
for which there was no recent history of default.

Included in the Group's prepayments, deposits and other receivables
are amounts due from Haier Affiliates totalling RMB252,697,000
(2009: RMB95,553,000 (as restated); 1 January 2009: RMB25,492,000
(as restated)), which are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable
on demand.

BREMERBEZHMERERARE
9,772,0007T( = ZEZENF: AR¥9,772,0007T :
—ETTAF—HA—H8: ARK¥7,087,0005T)
Sh FiEESEEABNERE - Rl
BERE 2 BRSO - Bl R IE 2 BT
B RN T AR AR S 2 R AR TR A -

REEZEMNKIE - e REMEBKRRREE
FEUCE R B A T RIBA H ARKE252,697,000
T(ZZEZFNF : AR¥95,553,000T( 4 &
7)) ZEENF—A—H : AR#?25,492,000
TEEF)) c ZREREEM - 2 B RIZBA

B3 -
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EXREEARE A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —E—F4#+—-F=+—H

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 5. RERFESEEEE
Group Company
s3] PAUN
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2009 2010 2009
“E-ZF  —IEThE “E-ZF TN
+=A s R — 2 2 +=A +=A
=t-H =t+—H —A-H =t-H =t+-H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AR®TT ARMTR ARETRH
(Restated) (Restated)
(Z31) (Z31)
Cash and bank balances Be Rk 1,782,951 1,261,325 381,512 15,592 4,225
Time deposits EHER 923,047 269,458 321,770 753,102 158,513
2,705,998 1,530,783 703,282 768,694 162,738
Less: deposits pledged for W RERRBEERNER
bills payable (note 26) (PHzE26) (391) (82,976) (7,738) = -
Cash and cash equivalents ~ BE&RHASEEHE 2,705,607 1,447,807 695,544 768,694 162,738
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances RBERR - AEEUAREIEZRE R
and time deposits of the Group denominated in RMB amounted THB R E BT R A A RE1,857,931,000

to RMB1,857,931,000 (2009: RMB1,367,895,000 (as restated);
1 January 2009: RMB562,671,000 (as restated)). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirement of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks or financial institutions with no recent
history of default.
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T ZZZFT N F: AR %¥1,367,895,0005T
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EREEAER A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —F—FT4#+=-FA=+—H

25.

26.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Cont’d)

Included in the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are deposits
of approximately RMB691,873,000 (2009: RMB910,663,000 (as
restated); 1 January 2009: RMB542,430,000 (as restated)) placed
with Haier Group Finance Co., Ltd. (“Haier Finance”), a financial
institution approved by the People’s Bank of China. The interest
rates on these deposits ranged from 0.36% to 2.25% per annum
per annum. Further details of the interest income attributable to
the deposits placed with Haier Finance are set out in note 14 to
the financial statements.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

25.

26.

]|

RERBEEEERB (F)

rEEZHEeRReSHEERBRFBEEFRNER
B35 2 AR #691,873,0000( Z 2T A,
F: AR#®910,663,000(&EF) : ==
NF—HA—8: ARM542,430,0007C( & &
7)) - BREEMBERIGNERMBK A
REARBITRAZHEHEE - ZFFRZ2F
FIRNT036EZE2.25F - BT HRA BB
1 2 17 50,2 ) BB 315 S0 B 75 Sk BT
A

ENEZRRREMNRE

NREHRENESIERZERIZEZA S
W :

Group REH
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF —ZETNF
T=H=EF=FE +=-ZA=+—H —A—A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT AREFT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E71) (E31)

Trade payables: JERTE SRR

Within 1 month MEARA 909,981 1,216,206 1,133,211
1 to 2 months 122184 40,057 1,626 11,651
2 to 3 months 2E3EA 30,315 360 541
Over 3 months BiE3MEA 61,326 22,022 32,624
1,041,679 1,240,214 1,178,027
Bills payable JEN R 481,950 388,567 222,170
1,523,629 1,628,781 1,400,197
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —E—F4#+—-F=+—H

160

26. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Cont’d)

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on credit terms ranging from 30 to 90 days.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills payables are amounts due to
Haier Affiliates totalling RMB590,936,000 (2009: RMB807,756,000
(as restated); 1 January 2009: RMB785,418,000 (as restated)),
which are repayable on similar credit terms to those offered by
other similar suppliers of the Group. The Group’s trade and bills
payables at 31 December 2009 and 1 January 2009 also included
amounts due to the Group's jointly-controlled entities amounting to
RMB102,715,000 (as restated) and RMB123,863,000 (as restated),
respectively, which were repayable on similar credit terms to those
offered by other similar suppliers of the Group. Further details of
the purchases from these related parties are set out in note 14 to
the financial statements.

Certain of the Group’s bills payable are secured by the pledge
of the Group’s bank deposits amounting to RMB391,000 (2009:
RMB82,976,000 (as restated); 1 January 2009: RMB7,738,000
(as restated)) and the Group’s bills receivables amounting to
RMB518,137,000 (2009: RMB305,738,000 (as restated); 1 January
2009: RMB196,867,000 (as restated)).
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26. ENEZRRARENRE(E)

ENESERARENRETFAME - b —RiR
T F30E90H ZEEHER -

AEBZ ENESERRERDIEEMSSHRE
BARIFIEA £ AR%S590,936,000L( =%
h4E : AR#807,756,000 (& &) —F
ZhF—HA—H: AR%¥785,418,000/C (4 &
7)) - HAIBAREE MBS HERS TAS
EEE 2 EERRER AEER-_ZTNF
+ZA=t+—BARZZEEAF—A—HZER
BOERREBROOEREMNAEELREHE
BERIBD RIARKE102,715,0007T (45 E5)) B A
R #123,863,0007C (X F )  ZKIBHEIEE
HAab 88 HERMG TAREBIEE 2 EEERE
2o BEmZSEEATRE BN
g mERMEE14 -

AEEETENEBRUAEB ZRITERAR
#391,000c(ZZEZNF : AK¥82,976,000
TL(EEHN): ZEZNF—A—B: AR
7,738,000 ( & & )) R AR K B 2 BIRRIE
AR #518,137,000( ZZTZENF: AR
305,738,0007T(& &%) : —ZEENF—H—
B AR¥196,867,0007T (£ &E5!) ) fEEH -



HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EREEAER A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —F—FT4#+=-FA=+—H

27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

27. b BN R R EETRE

]|

Group Company
r&E b NG|
31 December 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2009 2010 2009
“E-B& _ITHhHF “E-ZF  CZTNF
+=A +=ZA  ZEEhE +=A +=A
=t+-H =+—H —R—H Ei=F =+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETT AR¥Tn ARET:R
(Restated) (Restated)
(E351) (E51)
Other payables HAMERR 3,318,945 1,361,858 1,277,167 149,624 154,750
Accruals FEETaRE 1,025,794 964,613 226,883 8,066 5,371
4,344,739 2,326,471 1,504,050 157,690 160,121

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term

of three months.

Included in the Group’s other payables and accruals are amounts
due to Haier Affiliates totalling RMB1,215,679,000 (2009:
RMB605,996,000 (as restated); 1 January 2009: RMB905,448,000
(as restated)). These amounts are unsecured, interest-free and are

repayable on demand.

Hi BN ERRAFE R FE A=A -

AEEZEMENERREARERRENS

FARE B A L3RR

FANE o

R X

A KR #1,215,679,0007T

(ZZEZNEFE: AR¥605,996,0007C(EF) :
—EZNF—A—H: AR¥905,448,0007TC

(&%) -

Sy et
AX =F TA

HRAEER - B RIZENE
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD /B EXEBEEMR D A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B S R 2R Y

31 December 2010 —F—F4#+=-H=+—H

28. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 28. 5T EfEE
Group rEE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
“g-%F ZZENE —ETNE
TZA=1-H T-A=1-H i
Effective Effective Effective
interest interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%)  Maturity RMB'000 rate (%)  Maturity RMB'000
ERA= ERfIZ ERR=
% I8 AR%TR % HE ARETR % HE ARETR
Current ik )|
Other loans - unsecured EET-EER - - - - - - 5475 2009 24,800
Non-current ik
Other loans - unsecured BN -BER - - - 575774 2011 74000 575774 2011 118200
- 74,000 143,000
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF ZETNF
+=A=+—8H +-HA=+—H —A—H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR¥T AREEF T AREEF T
Borrowings repayable: AR AT IR BAEE
ZEE
Within one year or —F R IREA
on demand - - 24,800
In the second year EF - 74,000 -
In the third to fifth F=FE2FRF
years, inclusive (BEEEEME) - - 118,200
- 74,000 143,000

All interest-bearing borrowings were loans borrowed from Haier
Finance, which were guaranteed by Haier Corp. Further details of
the interest expenses attributable to the loans borrowed from Haier
Finance are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

All borrowings bore interest at floating interest rates and were
denominated in RMB.
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EFREEHR D A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —F—F4#+—-F=+—H

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 29. AR IRE S

On 22 October 2010 and 6 December 2010, the Company issued RZEBE—ZFEFFTAFT AR —FF
convertible bonds in principal amounts of HK$330,000,000 += ﬂ ANHARARE D RM %-Ela R
(equivalent to RMB283,993,000) and HK$456,600,000 (equivalent 7K 4 %8 /330,000,000 (B E R AR B
to RMB388,108,000), respectively, to Hong Kong Haier. The 283,993,0007T ) }456,600,0007 JT( #8 & %
convertible bonds were non-interest-bearing and were fully AR #388,108,00070 ) 2 Al AR E % - % &
converted into 138,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company during RRESFAEERRFRNZE LR AT
the year. 138,000,0000% & @& -

The fair value of the liability component was estimated at the BEHD 2 ATFERETB U EE L RE
issuance date using an equivalent market interest rate for a similar BREZJEOES ZESTSTERGE - Ferd
bond without a conversion option. The residual amount is assigned B AR - WAt ARFEER ZH -

as the equity component and is included in shareholders’ equity.

The convertible bonds issued during the year have been split as to RERNEFETZARREFBEETIARNSRE
the liability and equity components, as follows: BRI
RMB’000
ARTR
Nominal value of convertible bonds FABBEITARRES CHEE
issued during the year 672,101
Equity component R EL (61,788)
Liability component at the issuance date REITEEZ BEBD 610,313
Interest expense (note 7) FLEZE(MFET7) 683
Conversion of convertible bonds HRBRES (610,996)

Liability component at 31 December 2010 R-ZE—ZTF+_-_A=+—RAZA&EHH -
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30. PROVISIONS 30. 48
Group REH
Product warranties
and installation
ERRERZH
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
bz AR¥T T AREEFTT
At 1 January m—HR—H 307,000 239,933
Additional provision g 6 526,147 434,571
Amounts utilised during the year FREEFAEEE (389,629) (367,504)
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 443,518 307,000
Portion classified as HERE B E 2B 5
current liabilities (291,963) (206,476)
Non-current portion EMENEL 151,555 100,524
The Group provides installation services and warranties of one to AEBMEFPRETERERAB—ZEF2
six years to its customers on washing machines and water heaters, RN BKERE  AEEZERAIERE
under which faulty products are repaired or replaced. The amount L FER o REBECHIZEERUATRERE
of the provision for the warranties is estimated based on sales KR - #IERBEELEEMEET - At EERFE
volume and past experience of the level of installation services BET - WHRNE S REELBET »

rendered, repairs and returns. The estimation basis is reviewed on
an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.
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31 December 2010 —ZF—ZF+-f=+—H
31. DEFERRED TAX 31. EER1E
The movements in deferred tax assets (mainly relating to accruals FA - BEEHRIBEAE(FZHE B ERBEE
and provisions) and deferred tax liabilities (mainly relating to ) RELERIE A E (X ZEBHTARRE) &8m
withholding taxes) during the year are as follows: ™~
Group rEH
Deferred tax assets
EEBIEEE
2010 2009
—EB-2F ZETNF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
M aE AR¥T T AREFT
At 1 January Hw—A—h 21,459 28,220
Deferred tax charged to the F R W TR
income statement ZIRIERIA
during the year 10 199,852 (6,761)
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 221,311 21,459

Deferred tax liabilities

EEREEE
2010 2009
—Z-ZF —ETAF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR® T AREEF T
At 1 January »—A—H 9,588 9,588
Exchange realignment PE W F % (331) -
At 31 December w+=ZA=+—8~ 9,257 9,588
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31. DEFERRED TAX (Cont’d)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of RMB31,450,000
(2009: RMB31,782,000; 1 January 2009: RMB31,782,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies in which the losses arose. The Group also has
tax losses arising in Mainland China of RMB611,601,000 (2009:
RMB180,278,000; 1 January 2009: RMB178,059,000) that will
expire in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profit. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in the Company and subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividend declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable
rate is 10%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

Except for the deferred tax liabilities of RMB9,257,000 (2009:
RMB9,588,000; 1 January 2009: RMB9,588,000), which represent
the withholding taxes for the earnings of the PRC subsidiaries to
be remitted, as at 31 December 2010, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the
Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have
not been recognised totalled approximately RMB2,324,496,000
at 31 December 2010 (2009: RMB824,190,000; 1 January 2009:
RMB184,928,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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31.

EREH IR (4E)

AEEREBEAZCHEEBERARK
31,450,0007T( == Z N4 « ARM31,782,000
T ZEENAF—HA—H: AKR®31,782,000
7)) AIEEREEZEESBFE I ATRE
FERRBE & F o AN SR B A A B KR A 2 B TE 18
RAR611,601,0000( Z T NF : AR
180,278,0007T : —EZENF—H—H : AR
178,059,0007T) - B —ZE HE N fEH LA B
1B FERT @ K 2 BIIEEIE - BANEERIEE E 2R
BEEZR 2 AT RMEB AT - Bt
ZEREREEHIBEELE  MARRTRAEEA
BEH IR I E) AR IEE 18 2 IEERTUA ] ©

RIBFRBEDERFVE - KPR BRI Z I
HMRECEMIFREESTIRZBE A
10% 2 HEEWIEMB - ZMEB —FFTN\F
—A—BRAEXN TEAR_ZETLF+ A
=t—BRZBHN - MPBEAREEIIEHRES
FRERDERR DB BB S - AT RARE
ZEMBE - AKBEZERABERI0% °
- B-ZZEZENF-A B AEEEARAE
B RFEAR S 2 MY A BIFTE & 2 B A M 5 AL
ZBBEITHR IR 2 &7 o

BRIECEFREA E AR, 257,000 (=TT N
F: AR™9,588,000t: —_EEZNF—H—
A : AR®9,588,0007T ) %M 5% 5k 18 & 7 B BT
BRARAIR-_E—EF+-_A=+—HBKEFTAR
Mz FBHH) - BERLAREE R R BRI T 2
M8 A BRI 2 RET&F 2 BN
BRAELEHREEE ZEEERE  ZEWEAA
TRAIGEERARRRD IR BEZERF - 8
FEANBHBARREEEMECHBA RGN
AERCERERQEN _T—ZF+-A=
+—HB% A AR2,324,496,0000( —ZFF A1,
& AR¥824,190,000T i —EFhF—A—
A : AK¥184,928,0007T) °
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32. ISSUED EQUITY

32. BB TR

Group rEE
Issued equity
BRITHER
RMB’000
AREFT
At 1 January 2009 RZZEZNEF—HA—H 1,485,859
Issue of new shares BATHTR D 42,986
Share issue expenses RNDEITER (1,234)
At 31 December 2009 and RZZETZNF+_A=+—BREY
beginning of year 1,527,611
Exercise of share options TR R A 22,624
Exercise of warrants T R HE 25,824
Conversion of convertible bonds & a] A &% 672,784
At 31 December 2010 R_E—ZTF+_A=+—H 2,248,843

Upon the completion of the Group reorganisation (the
“Reorganisation”) on 28 January 2005, Haier Group became the
controlling shareholders of the Company through the injection of its
equity interests in certain subsidiaries (the “Relevant Subsidiaries”)
principally engaging in the manufacture and sale of top loading
washing machines and mobile phones to the Company. Accordingly,
the Group applied the reverse acquisition basis of accounting to
account for the effect of the Reorganisation.

BEASEEA(EA DR -_ETRF A=+
NBEKIE @ BREERET ARERE TH
BARI([1EREMEAR ] EERERERAAR
RAHERWASARE LB HER) K RARA
ZEBRRR - it ARBECHREATEER
FRBEETHAANK
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PSR
32. B B1THER(E

REZFARBEEE  IRNGREERERZ
AEBORITRE SR

32.ISSUED EQUITY (Cont'd)

Under the reverse acquisition basis of accounting, the amount of
issued equity of the Group stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents:

31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF T NF
+=—A=+—AH +-A=+—H —A—HR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT AREFTT
(i) the amount of the issued () BIEFERKESE
capital, contributed surplus V2 FT U B AR A PR 28
and capital reserves of the NARZZEZRF
Relevant Subsidiaries at —A=+NHE
28 January 2005 acquired BATIRAN ~ BN
under the reverse basis of B R IRA
accounting, plus the deemed SRR INBLEAR
purchase consideration (net REERE
of the deemed distributions) (HBREADIK)
in respect of the Reorganisation 852,599 852,599 852,599
(i) the amount of share capital (i) ARa)R
(including share premium) of ZETRERUEE
the Company issued for the FEREEER
acquisition of certain SHE R SR
subsidiaries principally REOKBRZ2ET
engaged in the manufacture M B8 R B P EETT
and sale of front loading AR (B IERG
washing machines and wE)BER
water heaters in 2006 240,795 240,795 240,795
(iii) the changes in share capital (i) "2 7 & E4HFLA
and share premium of the AR R AN w(E
Company since the g 8
Reorganisation, including:
e the repurchases of shares o KRNARIEERG
of the Company (1,147) (1,147) (1,147)
e the exercise of share o RAREITE
options of the Company B e 142,274 119,650 119,650
e the exercise of warrants o RQAETEE
of the Company R EE 25,824 - -
e the conversion of o RARHMA
convertible bonds of AR ES
the Company 946,746 273,962 273,962
e the placement of shares of o RRBEE R
the Company, net of (HBRAR 19 81T
share issue expenses ) 41,752 41,752 -
2,248,843 1,527,611 1,485,859
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31 December 2010 —ZF—T4F+=-A=+—H
32.ISSUED EQUITY (Cont’d) 32. BB 1THEER(EZ
Company AN
Shares % 2010 2009
—E-FF —ZETAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Authorised: JRIE ¢
30,000,000,000 30,000,000,0004% ( == A4 :
(2009: 30,000,000,000) 30,000,000,0004% ) &A% &
shares of HK$0.1 each 0. 1782 &kt 3,000,000 3,000,000
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$'000 RMB’000 HK$'000 RMB’000
FET AR®T R FHEIL ARBFT
equivalent equivalent
@ £E
Issued and fully paid: BETEAR
2,220,843,905 2,220,843,9050% (ZZTZ N F :
(2009: 2,026,673,905) 2,026,673,9050% ) & % E &
shares of HK$0.1 each 0. 1872 & fn 222,084 228,871 202,667 212,209
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31 December 2010 —Z—
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32.ISSUED EQUITY (Cont'd) 32. B B1THER(EZ
A summary of the transactions during the year involving the RERNSRARFBEITRAZZZHHBEDN
Company'’s issued share capital is as follows: T~
Issued Share
Number of share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
ERITROHE BRTRE RORER #at
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®F R AR®TR AR®F R
At 31 December 2009 and RZZETNF+ZA=1+—H
beginning of year REH) 1,951,673,905 205,596 1,000,554 1,206,150
Issue of new shares (note i) BATEOR (BIT) 75,000,000 6,613 36,373 42,986
Share issue expenses (note i) A% (P %17 M (M) - - (1,234) (1,234)
At 31 December 2009 and RZZEZNF+-_A=+—8H
beginning of year REA 2,026,673,905 212,209 1,035,693 1,247,902
Exercise of share options (note ii) 771 B& A& 1 (Pl 35ii) 11,170,000 958 21,666 22,624
Exercise of warrants (note ii) {1852 A% 42 & (P &iii) 45,000,000 3,913 21,911 25,824
Conversion of convertible SBABEES (M)
bonds (note iv) 138,000,000 11,791 660,993 672,784
At 31 December 2010 RZZE-ZF+_A=+—H 2,220,843,905 228,871 1,740,263 1,969,134

Notes:

@)

(ii)

On 23 March 2009, the Company issued 75,000,000 shares of
the Company at HK$0.65 per share (the “Placing Shares”) to
the subscribers in a share placing. In addition, the Company
issued 300,000,000 non-listed warrants, on the basis of four
warrants for each Placing Share issued, at no initial issue price.
This entitles the holder of each warrant to subscribe for one
new share of the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.66
at any time for a period of four years from the date of issue
of such warrant.

The subscription rights attaching to 11,170,000 share options
were exercised at the subscription price of HK$1.7 per share
(note 33), resulting in the issue of 11,700,000 shares of
HK$0.1 each for a total cash consideration of HK$18,989,000
(equivalent to RMB16,293,000). An amount of RMB6,331,000
was transferred from the share option reserve to the share
premium account upon the exercise of the share options.
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(ii)

R-ZZEZAF=ZA=-+=H AR
hﬁmﬁ$ﬁ¢utko%%mﬁﬂ%%
2% £775,000,0000% Z& 2 7 f% 17 ([ B & A%
31) o dboh - AR B BT R S M 1E 2
mfﬁ;&ﬂx%ﬁzgﬁ(j’[mﬂﬁ*ﬁ{ﬂ
AN &) B % 17300,000,00010 3E 2
T ﬁ“ﬁth%ﬂﬂ%iﬁhﬁ/\%ﬂ
BITEMRIEE S BRI F R Ilsfﬁﬂ;z
1E(E0.66/ 8 TRE—BRARA RN -

11,170,00017 R8RS HE PR MY 2 SRAEHE B 125

B 1,758 7T 2 SR ER (B T 1T 48 (W 3E33) -

% 1711,700,0000% inETEO.L%EZ
A& 1D - 4838 & A8 518,989,000 JT (48
Z N AR #16,293,0007T) © BEARK
6,331,000 7T 72 i % 1 1T I E R B R
VR A 2 1G4 BEEBE o
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32.

33.

ISSUED EQUITY (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)

45,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each were issued for cash at a
subscription price of HK$0.66 per share pursuant to the exercise
of the Company’s warrants for a total cash consideration of
HK$29,700,000 (equivalent to RMB25,824,000).

(iii)

(iv)

Convertible bonds with principal amounts totalling
HK$786,600,000 (equivalent to RMB672,101,000) and the
corresponding interest amounts totalling RMB683,000 were
converted into 138,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options
issued under the scheme are included in note 33 to the financial
statements.

Warrants

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 255,000,000
warrants outstanding. The exercise in full of such warrants would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 255,000,000 additional shares of HK$0.66 each.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme™) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to the eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
operations of the Group. Eligible participants of the Share Option
Scheme include any employee, executive or officer of the Group
(including executive and non-executive directors of the Company)
and any supplier, consultant, agent, adviser, shareholder, customer,
partner, business associate who, in the option of the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”), has contributed to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme became effective on 28 February
2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

32.

33.

ERITELS(E
MIsE : (48)
(i) BAAXARDA RBEZETE Bt

45,000,000% & I EEC. VBT 2 IRH E
EZR0.66B T2 REBEMUNIRSEIT &
84 R {8 /529,700,0008 T(HER AR
#25,824,0007T) ©

K4 %8 4 786,600,000/ ;TT(HEZERL A
R #672,101,0007T) 2 A % & % & AH %
FESEEEXARKEES3000LE KA
138,000,000/% F I AEEO. 178 T 2 15 »

(iv)

B

BRAARRZBAE S RREA S RTER
BN B MAMFE33

AR REE

R HIR - AN 7] 255,000,00017 [# AR 1T
2 REHEE - RARBIRITEREBTE
HITERREISHETEREMBEEETZ
255,000,000 8% ZESN D ©

BRESE

AN —EE I B ([ E]) -
HENRUE R EBAERLREEAREEE
BZRNIEHEE - BRETESIZABKLH
ERRAEEZIMEES - ITRABHEREA
B(BEEARFIZHITRIENITES)  UEAK
AAEBEZG(EEQDAMNBERERBYEAE
EEFERZEMHER - BERE - REX &
AR BFE - BHEEREBHEA - BR
EEHEHE -2 -_A -+ \BRER @
BRSBTS SEETSN - BB HMZ BB 10FRE
R o
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont‘d)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme is such number of
shares, when aggregated with shares subject to any other share
option scheme(s) of the Company, must not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of adoption of
the Share Option Scheme. The maximum number of shares issuable
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of grant. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to
the issue of a circular by the Company (and if required, the holding
company) and the shareholders’ approval of the Company (and if
required, the approval of the shareholders of the holding company)
at a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their respective associates,
are subject to the approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors of the Company (and if required, the independent
non-executive directors of the holding company), excluding the
independent non-executive director(s) of the Company and the
holding company who is/are the grantee(s) of the options. In
addition, any share option granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of grant or with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the shares of the Company as at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, is subject to the issue of a circular by the Company (and if
required, the holding company) and the shareholders’ approval of
the Company (and if required, the approval of the shareholders of
the holding company) in advance at a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of RMB1 or HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determinable by the Board, and commences
on a specified date and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of grant of the share options or the expiry date
of the Share Option Scheme, whichever is earlier.
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont‘d)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Board,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a trading
day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five

33. fR IR fERTEI(42)

BREZITEEMESSETE  ETBERT
JI=Fz&mE  (VARABRMHREHE R (&
ARXZA)VEBXZAERRERMI ZHEH
B (VRRARBRMREZRHERTAERS
REBMIMERBRERMINZFHRTE: &
(i) AR B AD 2 HIME

trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares of the Company.

BREYEETRHEARDBRERNBERAE
EREZAER

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

UTRFABRESEETHARITEZER

The following share options were outstanding under the Share

Option Scheme during the year: 1
2010 2009
—g-%F .

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options

T InEF19
TEE  BREHE TEE BREHRE

HK$ HK$

per share per share

BRAET BRET
At 1 January ®—A—A 1.70 84,450,000 - -
Granted during the year ~ FRE L 4.82 25,960,000 1.70 84,450,000
Lapsed during the year FREKU 1.70 (800,000) - -
Exercised during the year — FR{7f# 1.70  (11,170,000) - -
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 2.52 98,440,000 170 84,450,000

RENTTRZ BRERTEE B 2 g IR

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share

options exercised during the year was HK$7.43 per share (2009:
No share options were exercised).

BREKRTABET(ZZTNF - TEBRER
178) -
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont‘d)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

33. BRAERT 8 (F)
R R - R R 2 (T (B AT

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: HAGNR
2010 2009
Number Exercise Exercise Number Exercise Exercise
of options price* period of options price* period
—E-TF —ZETNF
B EEE FTlE(E* 171 HA EREsE TR E™ FTIE A
HK$ HK$
per share per share
BRET BB
29,680,000 1.70 18/09/2009 40,000,000 1.70 18/09/2009
-17/09/2013 -17/09/2013
i e
hA+NRE AA+NRAE
HA++EH NA+EH
42,800,000 1.70 18/09/2009 44,450,000 1.70 18/09/2009
-17/09/2014 -17/09/2014
—EENF —EENF
hA+NBZE AT NBE
—E-mF —E-mEF
NA++HE NA++H
25,960,000 4.82 18/05/2010 - - -
—-17/05/2014
—E-EF
FA+NRAZE
—ZE—mEF
ERA++tR
98,440,000 84,450,000

*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in
the Company’s share capital.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was
approximately RMB43,380,000 (RMB1.67 each) (2009: directors
and management staff: RMB28,919,000, RMBO0.65 each; external
consultants: RMB24,934,000, RMBO0.62 each), of which the Group
recognised a share option expense of RMB15,695,000 (2009:
RMB7,286,000) during the year ended 31 December 2010. During
the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group also recognised a
share option expense of RMB22,656,000 in respect of share options
granted during the year ended 31 December 2009.
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont‘d)

i

33. fR IR fERTEI(42)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the
year was estimated as at the date of grant, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The

FARKUEASE 2 BREQAFERELR
HifhEt - B BR N BB Z R R & - T
RINHPTARRA ZBAE :

following table lists the inputs to the model used:

2010 2009
Management Directors and
staff and management External
key employees staff consultants
—EB-FF
EEEIR —ZTNEF
FEES EERERET SIS R R
Expected dividend yield (%) TEEARR B R (%) 1.04 2.38 2.38
Expected volatility (%) TRHARE s2 R E (%) 66.42 65.10 67.61
Risk-free interest rate (%) BRI (%) 1.37 1.73 1.48
Life of options (year) BREF A (F) 4 5 4
Weighted average share I RE
price (HK$ per share) (BR&ETT) 4.82 1.70 1.70

The expected volatility is determined based on the historical volatility
of the share price of the Company. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

The 11,170,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in
the issue of 11,170,000 ordinary shares of the Company and new
share capital of HK$1,117,000 (equivalent to RMB958,000 and
share premium of HK$17,872,000 (equivalent to RMB15,335,000),
as further detailed in note 32 to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 98,440,000
share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 98,440,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of HK$9,844,000 (equivalent to
RMB8,367,000) and share premium of HK$238,499,000 (equivalent
to RMB202,719,000) (before issue expenses).

T HRR IR TO BN AR R IR (B 2 B 2R IR E -
TEH R R S B 7 BBy T R BB 1 R IR R R R 3R
B - ARG EBERIBIARR -

W IR BB AR 2 B R AR EZE
=

o

FAFETTE 2 11,170,00017 B8 I #8238 B 3% 17 A&
72 A111,170,0008% & i@ A% K %1 Ak 71,117,000
7 (8 % W A R #958,0000T ) & B% 15 3 (B
17,872,000 7o 18 & M A K #15,335,000
7)  FHIEEHR M ERRMEE32 o

RBEBMR AARBREBERESES
98,440,00017 M ARTTLAEAX#E - RIBFALQFIER
BRAERE  BEITRRRITEZBREKSE
BUEBSINEE1T98,440,000% A8 2 7 38 A% K2 48
fi& 459,844,000/ 7T ( #8 % X A K 8,367,000
T ) B B5 17 % (8 238,499,0008 ST (FAEM AR
202,719,0007T) (FIBREFTE AAT) ©
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont‘d) 33.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 98,440,000 share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 4.4% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at that date.

34. RESERVES 34,

(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 71 to
72 of the financial statements.

The Group's capital reduction reserve arose from the reduction
in the nominal value of each of the issued shares of the
Company from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 by the cancellation of
paid-up capital of HK$0.09 on each of the issued shares of the
Company effective from 8 March 2007. The Group’s capital
reserve originally represented the difference between the
credit arising from the capital reduction of HK$1,657,866,000
(equivalent to RMB1,758,526,000) and the amount transferred
to eliminate the accumulated losses of the Group of
HK$1,196,370,000 (equivalent to RMB1,186,521,000).

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, certain of
the Group’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required to
transfer a portion of their profits to reserve funds. These funds
are non-distributable in the form of cash dividends. When
determining the appropriations to these funds, the net profits
of these subsidiaries are determined in accordance with the
applicable financial rules and regulations of the PRC.
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31 December 2010 —F—FT4#+=-FA=+—H

34. RESERVES (Cont’d) 34. #E(2)
(b) Company (b) AT
Equity
Share Capital  Exchange Share component
premium Contributed redemption fluctuation option  Retained of convertible
account surplus reserve reserve reserve profits bonds Total
R E5RE  HERD e TERES

Rk MARH i 1 W RERN 2#EEs #E
Notes RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
M ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR®TL ARETL ARRTL ARBTR

At 1 January 2009 RZEZNE-A-H 1,000,554 646,99 184 (187,913) - 125,403 - 1,585,224
Total comprehensive FRAEREEE

loss for the year - - - (44) - (24,249) - (24.293)
Issue of shares Bk 32 36,373 - - - - - - 36,373
Share issue expenses RAETER 3 (1,234) - - - - - - (1,234)
Equity-settled share WRAEE 2

option arrangements BRETH 3 - - - - 7,286 - - 7,286

At 31 December 2009 ~ RZ-FTNE
and 1 January 2010 T-A=1-H
kZT-%F
-A-A 1,035,693 646,99 184 (187,957) 7,286 101,154 - 1,603,356
Total comprehensive FRAEREEE
loss for the year - - - (66,105) - (65,318) - (131423)
Issue of shares Bk 3 43,577 - - - (6,331) - - 37,246
Issue of convertible bonds /7R E% 29 - - - - - - 61,788 61,788
Conversion of RAARRESR
convertible bonds 32 660,993 - - - - - (61,788) 599,205
Equity-settled share WRAEE 2
option arrangements Elns 3 - - - - 38,351 - = 38,351
Transfer of share option ~ IAEEMRHERE R UE
feserve upon the A
forfeiture or expiry ERERE
of share options - - - - (246) 246 - -
At 31 December 2010 HZT-TF
+-A=1+-8 1,740,263 646,996 184 (254,062) 39,060 36,082 - 2,208,523
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34. RESERVES (Cont’d)

(b) Company (Cont't)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess
of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired,
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), the contributed surplus is distributable to
shareholders subject to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) and bye-laws of the Company.

The capital redemption reserve arose from the share repurchases
in prior years.

The share option reserve comprise the fair value of share options
granted which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in
the accounting policy for share-based payment transactions in
note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits
should the related options expire or be forfeited.

35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(i)

On 29 July 2010, Qingdao Haier Logistics acquired 90% and
10% equity interests in Chongging Hairi Logistics Co., Ltd.
(“Chongging Hairi”) from Haier Investment and Chongging
Haier Logistics Co., Ltd., which was held as to 95% by Haier
Investment, respectively, for an aggregate cash consideration
of RMB5,000,000.

As at the date of acquisition, Chongging Hairi had assets
comprising property, plant and equipment of RMB33,888,000,
prepaid land lease payments of RMB29,311,000 and cash
and cash equivalents of RMB150,000, and had liabilities
comprising other payables of RMB58,349,000. Chongging
Hairi had not begun its planned principal activities on the
date of acquisition.
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35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

(ii)

On 20 October 2010, Qingdao Haier Logistics acquired the
remaining 50% equity interest in Hefei Goodaymart Logistics
Co., Ltd. (“Hefei Goodaymart Logistics”) from Qingdao Haier
Component Procurement Company Limited, which was held
as to 90% by Haier Investment and 10% by Haier Corp, for
a cash consideration of RMB10,000,000, which remained
unsettled as at 31 December 2010.

As at the date of acquisition, Hefei Goodaymart Logistics
had assets comprising property, plant and equipment
of RMB29,946,000, prepaid land lease payments of
RMB29,556,000 and cash and cash equivalents of
RMB500,000, and had liabilities comprising other payables of
RMB29,236,000. Hefei Goodaymart Logistics had not begun
its planned principal activities on the date of acquisition.

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, neither the Group nor the

Company had any significant contingent liabilities.

]|

35. WEBMTB A= (&)

(ii)

R-B-—ZFE+A-+H BEEBYR
MESERTHHREBRAR(HER
BEFRBIONRIREEABFHEEF10%)
WHEAIERRIEEF#ARAR(AIERR
B R Her50% M - HeREAAR
#10,000,0007C * TR ZZ—ZF+=A
=+—HBREKRER -

REBRY ARBRIEERZEESR
FEWME - BREREEARM29,946,000
7T~ TEAT T E & A K 829,556,000
ThBEERESFEEE ARKES00,000
T MAEERAEEAMENERARE
29,236,000t - RIERE - &EB HIE
BREMARAEGEEE2ES -

36. AREE

RIESR - AEBESAR R EERERL
REfE -
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37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 16 to the
financial statements) to Haier Affiliates under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for a term of three
years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

7. FEHNRH

(a) FEREAA

AEERBEEEHOLHEBEREDE
(MBmERMT16) BR T EABBAL -
BECHRAR=5F -

RBEHR - AEBREN T 5 SR 2
Z NBEBUR 2 MM B ETH P B AR K e
WHEESEENAT :

Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-=F ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
(Restated)
(E7))
Within one year —FR 4,693 2,579
In the second to F_ERF(REEREMSF)
fifth years, inclusive 17,583 3,024
22,276 5,603
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37.OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 7. &
(Cont’d)
(b) As lessee (b) EARAEEA

The Group leases certain properties under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for the properties are negotiated for
terms ranging from one to five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the

HAORHEE)

&
at
=
]
all

AEBRBEERNLZHERETHE -
HAMEZEMRESN T —FELF -

MIERR - NREERARBRER T

Company had total future minimum lease payments under BRI B HA 2 T REBUBE 2 &S 2 A B R R E
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: NREMRSLENT :
Group Company
rEH N
2010 2009 2010 2009
ZEB-ZF _TTHhF ZB-BF _TThF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT AR%BTR ARBTFT
(Restated)
(&251)
Within one year —FR 20,757 16,500 - 1,370
In the second to FE_ERF(REEEMSF)
fifth years, inclusive 10,954 4,593 - -
31,711 21,093 - 1,370
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38. COMMITMENTS 38. &if
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note B _ESCRTEE37(0) P s il 48 & AR A0 BB S - AR &R
37(b) above, the Group had the following commitments at the end BN EARE AT A#GE

of the reporting period:

Group REH
2010 2009
—E-2F —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
(Restated)
(E7])
Authorised, but not BHRLAEERETL
contracted for: T RIEF
Land and buildings 129,326 137,250
Contracted, but not [EHEIEES 3=
provided for: L ER N
Property, plant and equipment 85,727 21,196
215,053 158,446
At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not have REEAR - ARAIR EXMFE370) M ES
any significant commitments other than those disclosed in note SN (R B KR -

37(b) above.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39.MBITASE
&

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RREER  SEVBIAZERRELNT !

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Group REH
Financial assets MKEE
31 December 2010 “E-EF+ZRB=+—H Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
EXRERTE THHEEHBEE k)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥TR AR¥ETR
Available-for-sale investments AL ERE - 6,000 6,000
Trade and bills receivables EWE SHERRRE 3,908,094 - 3,908,094
Other receivables (note 24) Hib RN (HiE24) 223,087 = 223,087
Pledged deposits BEHFR 391 - 391
Cash and cash equivalents RBekHeEEER 2,705,607 - 2,705,607
6,837,179 6,000 6,843,179
31 December 2009 ZETNF+ZA=1T—H Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
ERRENRFE AHHENEEE mE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT ARETFTT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(871) (&3)) (&31)
Available-for-sale investments AL ERE - 7,670 7,670
Trade and bills receivables BWE HERRRE 3,335,201 - 3,335,201
Other receivables (note 24) Hofth EARBR AR (B 7E24) 50,706 - 50,706
Pledged deposits BEHFR 82,976 - 82,976
Cash and cash equivalents RBekBAeEEER 1,447,807 - 1,447,807
4,916,690 7,670 4,924,360
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39.BIEBESE(E)

(Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont'd) BigEEE)
1 January 2009 —EENE—R—H Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
ERRERRE THEEMBEE M
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARBEFT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&#51) (&51) (&#51)
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE - 7,670 7,670
Trade and bills receivables EWE SRR RER 2,613,909 - 2,613,909
Other receivables (note 24) Ho A AR R (B 3E24) 71,500 - 71,500
Pledged deposits BEHFER 7,738 - 7,738
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEER 695,544 - 695,544
3,388,691 7,670 3,396,361
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39.MBIAS¥E(E)
(Cont’d)
Group rEH
Financial liabilities i =R
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
—Z-2F —ETNE —ETNE
+=ZBA=1+—8 +-A=+—H —H—H
Financial Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised amortised
cost cost cost
RBERARTIERE  REENATE  REENATER
ZEBKaE ZHBaRk ZHBa%k
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREFT ARBFT
Trade and bills payables JER & RN 1,523,629 1,628,781 1,400,197
Other payables (note 27) H A0 e AR R (P 3E27) 3,318,945 1,361,858 1,277,167
Interest-bearing borrowings TEEE = 74,000 143,000
4,842,574 3,064,639 2,820,364
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39.BIEBESE(E)
(Cont’d)

Financial liabilities (Cont’d) ke EE
RMERR - SBPYBITEZERENT !

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Company ¥ NN
Financial assets MEEE
Loans and receivables
ERRERRE
2010 2009
—ZT-ZF ZZETNF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREEF T
Due from subsidiaries (note 19)  FEUHIE A FIFIE(MFE19) 216,939 143,711
Cash and cash equivalents RekREeEMEBEE 768,694 162,738
985,633 306,449
Financial liabilities Bgas
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
RBERRIRZHEERE
2010 2009
—ZT-ZF ZZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREEF T
Other payables (note 27) HAth FEATBR R (MI3E27) 149,624 154,750
Due to subsidiaries (note 19) B AR ZIE(KI5E19) 74,341 74,885
223,965 229,635
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HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EREEAER A

ul]

40. FAIR VALUE 40. A¥fE
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the REBERARTIZHMBIAEZEEBERATE
Company’s financial instruments are as follows: LU
Group AEE
Carrying
amounts
IREE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
—E-BF ZETNF —EENF
+=A=+—-HB +ZA=+—H —A—HR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT AREFTT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (E51)
Financial assets MKEE
Trade and bills receivables BN E ZEFRER 3,908,094 3,335,201 2,613,909
Other receivables (note 24) H A pEU AR R (i 5E24) 223,087 50,706 71,500
Pledged deposits EERER 391 82,976 7,738
Cash and cash equivalents Re KB EHEEE 2,705,607 1,447,807 695,544
6,837,179 4,916,690 3,388,691
Financial liabilities BEaE
Trade and bills payables JERB ZRA R EE 1,523,629 1,628,781 1,400,197
Other payables (note 27) HAb PR BR R (K 5E27) 3,318,945 1,361,858 1,277,167
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEEE = 74,000 143,000
4,842,574 3,064,639 2,820,364
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40. FAIR VALUE (Cont’d) 40. AF{E(E)
Group REH
Fair values
AFE
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
—E-EF —ETNF ZETNF
+=—A=+—HB +=-A=+—H —A—H
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREETF T AREEF T
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&%)
Financial assets MiEEE
Trade and bills receivables FEUE 5Bk 5k R =R 3,908,094 3,335,201 2,613,909
Other receivables (note 24) Efth YR R (M97E24) 223,087 50,706 71,500
Pledged deposits BEERER 391 82,976 7,738
Cash and cash equivalents RekFEEEEE 2,705,607 1,447,807 695,544
6,837,179 4,916,690 3,388,691
Financial liabilities g S =R
Trade and bills payables e SRR R R 1,523,629 1,628,781 1,400,197
Other payables (note 27) HAh e AR SR (i EE27) 3,318,945 1,361,858 1,277,167
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEEE = 74,000 143,000
4,842,574 3,064,639 2,820,364
All of the Group’s available-for-sale investments were stated at REBEMEBEAHEERE TRK AR EST
cost less impairment because the range of reasonable fair value R DREASEATEZMAFEHERBE AU
estimates is so significant that the directors are of the opinion that EERR/ARNTEREAIEMGE ©

their fair value cannot be measured reliably.
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40. X E(E)
AEBREARRZETAZERENLAFE

40. FAIR VALUE (Cont’d)

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's and the

Company’s financial instruments are as follows: U
Company b N
Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE AFE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-TF —TTNF ZEB-ZTF ZTTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT AR®TR ARBTFT
Financial assets HsEE
Due from subsidiaries (note 19) J& W& 2 F1FIE (FH7E19) 216,939 143,711 216,939 143,711
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEIEE 768,694 162,738 768,694 162,738
985,633 306,449 985,633 306,449
Financial liabilities BsasE
Other payables (note 27) HAth FEATBR R (MI3E27) 149,624 154,750 149,624 154,750
Due to subsidiaries (note 19)  FEHIEBARZIE(MIFE19) 74,341 74,885 74,341 74,885
223,965 229,635 223,965 229,635

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values.

Cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, other receivables and
payables and trade and bills receivables and payables approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities
of these instruments

The fair values of the interest-bearing borrowings and amounts
due from and to subsidiaries have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments on similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities.

MHEERBEZAVEDREBIAERS
EHEERMFEXBELBREENBERTE
TRGMBFNLEARE - THFTERBRT
AREETE A E -

RelkReEERE  CERFX  EtER
RAREMRR R EWE SRR RN RN
BHRAMERZAFEREZFTAZREE
BE TERRRZETAREHANIES -

AAEEEREEEENMEARRIBZ AFE
BEEBMIEAEGRRK  FERR MBI S
RIARAI B T AR 2N KB AT AERE
SMEBFH -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. K EBREEBEZERBEER
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AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing borrowings and cash and short term deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group's operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables and trade and bill
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

It is, and has been throughout the year under review, the
Group’s policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be
undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
mainly arise from sales or purchases by the Group’s operating units
in Mainland China in currencies other than the units’ functional
currency (i.e., RMB). The Group does not enter into any hedging

AEEZIEVBTAREHEBERR SN
RHER -  REWBIAZFEZAMNRARSE
BLERE AEERZREMYBEELE
B WEEKRAEB 2 BREZRARFEA
MENESERNFIE -

REEDEFE  AREZBRATETER
HHEIAESE -

KEAKEFBTAz T 2RRAIINERR
EERREABDECRAR EFESRILGE
BHRRz EEREMLNT

SIS R B

AEBFERXZERRR - ZFARTERA
AEBERBEAEZ ZESMIABMINEEE
(BIARB)UAINEEETIHEXRBEE - A5H
W EEITEA 22 B AR R AR B 2 SMNE R

transactions in an effort to reduce the Group's exposure to foreign i o

currency risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the TRINTRFERR - EEEME T E
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the exchange BRAT  HAEBEGRBANAF 2ME - X271
rates of Euro, United States Dollar, Japanese Yen and Great Britain AEIREFEEER SRS E) 2 BURE(HR

Pound, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit
before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities). There is no significant impact on other components of
the Group's equity.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. K EMREERERBE(EZ)
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

Increase/(decrease) Increase/(decrease)
in exchange rates in profit before tax

R A a2 Rl
EREHA(FEK) #i R
% RMB’000
AR¥T T
31 December 2010 —E-ZEF+=-H=+—H

If RMB strengthens against Euro AR S EZEE 5 (9,933)

If RMB strengthens against i ARME HETTAHE
United States Dollar 5 (8,726)

If RMB strengthens against M AR H AEAE
Japanese Yen 5 (733)

If RMB strengthens against AR R EHEEHE
Great Britain Pound 5 (1,322)
If RMB weakens against Euro i AREE LB R E (5) 9,933

If RMB weakens against MAREHETRE
United States Dollar (5) 8,726

If RMB weakens against MARBHBAERE
Japanese Yen (5) 733

If RMB weakens against i AR H 8RR (E
Great Britain Pound (5) 1,322
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Increase/(decrease) Increase/(decrease)
in exchange rates  in profit before tax
BB B s A
EE A (TK) En CRd)
% RMB'000
ARBEFT
31 December 2009 ZEENF+ZA=1+—H
If RMB strengthens against Euro  fi A R¥E BN # FHE 5 (9,266)
If RMB strengthens against MARERETHE
United States Dollar 5 (8,576)
If RMB strengthens against M ARBEAEHE
Japanese Yen 5 (631)
If RMB strengthens against AR R ESHE
Great Britain Pound 5 (1,588)
If RMB weakens against Euro MARBHLBRERE (5) 9,266
If RMB weakens against M AR HETRZE
United States Dollar (5) 8,576
If RMB weakens against MARBEAERE
Japanese Yen (5) 631
If RMB weakens against M AR H 8RR (E
Great Britain Pound (5) 1,588
1 January 2009 —ETNF—A—H
If RMB strengthens M AR HEREAE
against Euro 5 (5,670)
If RMB strengthens against MARE R ETHE
United States Dollar 5 (5,215)
If RMB strengthens against MAREH AEAE
Japanese Yen 5 (511)
If RMB strengthens against HAREE R EEHE
Great Britain Pound 5 (1,326)
If RMB weakens against Euro i AR S B ZE (5) 5,670
If RMB weakens against M AREHETRZE
United States Dollar (5) 5,215
If RMB weakens against MARBHAERE
Japanese Yen (5) 511
If RMB weakens against fin AR H B8R (B
Great Britain Pound (5) 1,326

Annual Report 2010 —Z —ZF F 3|



i

HAIER ELECTRONICS GROUP CO., LTD B EREEAER A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BA RS ERAR AL

31 December 2010 —ZF—Z4FE+-f=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Cont'd)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents and other receivables, arises from default
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations
of credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty and by
geographical region. There are no significant concentrations of
credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of the Group’s
trade receivables are widely dispersed in different sectors.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 23
to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables)
and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans and other
borrowings. It is the Group’s policy to renew its loan agreements
with Haier Finance or major local banks in Mainland China upon the
maturity of the Group’s short term bank loans and other borrowings
when funding is needed.

1. EERREEEERBE(E)

EEAR
AREERELREBAEZ BT HRTR
S BBAEEZBE  FIBEAENZEER
ERPIEFHAGBREEREER - It
o+ AR EE R RS - A
B EZRERIETERX o

RAREHEGHBEE(BRREMRESEFER
BREMBYEET) ZEERRME @ AEEZ
EERBRRERXSGHFELY  TARRIAZSE
TAZREERR -

HARAREEEZEZ R EBRINE=TTETT
X5 R EERRHER - FEARSES
REREF/RZEFRIBHEETERE - i
RARERKEZHERFAREDBRTRTE
ZEPHEK  ARBERNLEBEBREEP ZEER
B o

FRAKEXREREESERZEERRE—
SEHIE NP RERME23IRE -

RBETER
AEBEBEABRABDESFIATAERESR
BRER EETEEEEWBTARNBEE
(Pl E ZRF) 2RI A AR G2 ER 2
BARERE -

AEEZ BRABBRITERREMEBER
BRZHBEUERELZ FE - AEBZBER
EAEE 2 EHRTERREMEER NN E
BRESH  BIRSMYBHATEARET RN
TRITEI L 2 BRI o
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. MK EMREERERBE(EZ)
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk (Cont’d) RBESEMR(E)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end R|MEHR - RRBEATHNEFTNNRGHE - K
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted SRV KEaGEEHBEHEGHT

payments, is as follows:

31 December 2010 —E-=F On demand or
+=ZA=+-—8 no fixed terms Within Beyond
of repayment one year one year Total
RERD
EE EE R —£R —§#% st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR®BTR AR®TR AR¥TR

Trade and bill payables ERE SRR RER - 1,508,008 15,621 1,523,629
Other payables (note 27) HAtb EATBR R (MI7E27) 141,950 3,176,995 - 3,318,945

Interest-bearing borrowings ~ FTEEE - - - -

141,950 4,685,003 15,621 4,842,574
31 December 2009 ZZETNF On demand or
+=-A=+—8 no fixed terms Within Beyond
of repayment one year one year Total
REK
| EE BN —FR —&Fig #E
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT AEBTT AR%¥TT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E31) (E31)) (E51) (E31])
Trade and bill payables ERNEZERRER - 1,628,781 - 1,628,781
Other payables (note 27) HipERERR (I E27) 147,048 1,214,810 - 1,361,858
Interest-bearing borrowings AT EEE - - 81,870 81,870
147,048 2,843,591 81,870 3,072,509
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. iR EEEERBEEK (&)
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd) RBESEMR(E)
1 January 2009 —ETNEF On demand or
—HR—H no fixed terms Within Beyond
of repayment one year one year Total
BEK,
48 B 7F 3B FRHR —FR —Fi& 5T

RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETFIT AREBTT ARBFTT ARETET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(251) (E7) (251) (E51)
Trade and bill payables ENE SRR ERRE - 1,400,197 - 1,400,197
Other payables (note 27) HAth FETBR R (MI3E27) 147,059 1,130,108 - 1,277,167
Interest-bearing borrowings ~ FfBMEE - 26,139 137,758 163,897
147,059 2,556,444 137,758 2,841,261
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as RREHR - RBETHNETNNRGTHE - K
at the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual ARIPHAEZHHAEEWT
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
31 December 2010 —E-=F On demand or
+=A=+—H no fixed terms Within Beyond
of repayment one year one year Total
RERD
EmEEERH —F R —F#% e

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TR AR®TR AR¥TR

Other payables (note 27) HAth FEATBR R (MI3E27) 149,624 - = 149,624
Due to subsidiaries (note 19)  FEHIB A RIFIE

(fFzE19) - - 74,341 74,341

149,624 - 74,341 223,965
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AND POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. I EBEEBERBE(£Z)

RBESERE(E)

31 December 2009 —ETNEF On demand or
+=—A=+—H no fixed terms Within Beyond
of repayment one year one year Total
RERK
A HA —FRA —&1& HEt

RMB'000

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT

Other payables (note 27) HAb R BR R (BT EE27) 147,048 7,702 - 154,750
Due to subsidiaries (note 19)  FEHIBARFIE(HE19) - - 74,885 74,885

147,048 7,702 74,885 229,635
Capital management EXER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. MREBERBEERBE(Z)
AND POLICIES (Cont’d)
Capital management (Cont’d) EXEE(E)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total AEEHKABGREAL R (AMEBAERERZ
debt divided by total equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the BE)EIEER - AEEZBER/ERFABEERL
gearing ratio not exceeding 50%. Total debt is interest-bearing E R iRiE50% © BEEREBENEEBE - R
borrowings. The gearing ratios as at the ends of the reporting HEIR  BEEALERNT ¢
periods were as follows:
Group rEH
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
—2-2F —RENE —ETNF
t=ZA=+-H +=HA=t-H —A—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®TR AR®TR
(Restated) (Restated)
27 (&271))
Interest-bearing borrowings TEEE - 74,000 143,000
Total debt B @A - 74,000 143,000
Total equity B 2,743,874 1,750,636 1,221,542
Gearing ratio BEARLE 0% 4.2% 11.7%
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42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

On 29 December 2010, Chongging New Goodaymart
Appliance Sales Co., Ltd. (the “Purchaser”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Henan Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co.,
Ltd. (“Henan Goodaymart”), a company established in the
PRC which is held as to 54.17% by Haier Investment and as
to 45.83% by Haier Corp, pursuant to which the Purchaser
agreed to acquire and Henan Goodaymart agreed to sell a
51% interest in Yantai Goodaymart Electric Appliance Co.,
Ltd. (“Yantai Goodaymart”) at the consideration of RMB18.8
million. The transaction was not yet completed on the date
of approval of these financial statements.

On the same date, the Company and the joint venture partner
of Yantai Goodaymart (“Yantai Joint Venture Partner”) entered
into an incentive agreement pursuant to which Yantai Joint
Venture Partner agreed to meet the prescribed financial and
operational targets of Yantai Goodaymart laid down by the
Company and would then be entitled to exercise the options
to require the Company to purchase part or the whole of the
30% interest held by Yantai Joint Venture Partner at a price
to be determined based on an agreed formulae from 30 April
2012 to 29 April 2017. The incentive agreement is effective
from 1 January 2011.

On 23 December 2010, the Group established Shandong
Goodaymart Electronic Limited (“Shandong Goodaymart”)
which is owned as to 51% by the Group and 49% by a
joint venture partner (“Shandong Joint Venture Partner”).
The registered capital of Shandong Goodaymart is RMB20
million.

On 29 December 2010, the Company and Shandong Joint
Venture Partner entered into an incentive agreement pursuant
to which Shandong Joint Venture Partner agreed to meet
the prescribed financial and operational targets of Shandong
Goodaymart laid down by the Company and would then
be entitled to exercise the options to require the Company
to purchase part or the whole of the 30% interest held by
Shandong Joint Venture Partner at a price to be determined
based on an agreed formulae from 30 April 2012 to 29 April
2017. The incentive agreement is effective from 1 January
2011.
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43. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 43. LR H
As further explained in notes 2.1 and 2.4 to the financial statements, BN ISR 2.1 2.4 — SR B
due to the application of merger accounting for business EHREH THEBEHRAEHEIHE
combinations under common control, the comparative amounts St S EEET -

have been restated.

44. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44. B iR 2 #t

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue MBWMEERZE——F=ZA-TLBLES
by the board of directors on 29 March 2011. A R -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

IFUBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out below.
The amounts for the years ended 31 December 2006, 2007, 2008 and
2009 have been restated as a result of the common control business
combinations, as detailed in note 2.1 to the financial statements.

UTENANEBZBEREPBRFERE  BE -
BERFERERRE BE_TTRF  _TF
+F —EENFR_ZETAF+_A=+—HBIL
FREZSHECENKARZEN TERAHMES - &
TBER I B RRITE2.1 -

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-BLEE

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—Z-FF —TTNF —TTNF “ETAF “TTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETFTT AREFT AREFT AREFT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(271) (871)) (87)) (871)
RESULTS E45
CONTINUING OPERATIONS — HHEE& ¥
REVENUE & 35,806,672 12,877,993 11,391,349 9,217,644 7,905,102
Cost of sales SHEMA (31,033,259)  (9,654,109)  (8,679,130)  (6,981,919)  (6,109,765)
Gross profit EH 4,773,413 3,223,884 2,712,219 2,235,725 1,795,337
Other income and gains HAA R es 71,954 46,766 41,614 41,016 48,909
Selling and distribution costs & & SEAK AR (2,511,004)  (1,928,459)  (1,685,882)  (1,330,855)  (1,147,461)
Administrative expenses THER (898,503) (680,842) (792,577) (535,582) (435,151)
Other expenses HinE A (1,057) (12,634) (11,993) (5,841) (2,505)
Finance costs BB (4,691) (7,906) (14,038) (23,458) (11,399)
Share of profits and losses of Jf&{f 2L EI#Z2
jointly-controlled entities EEER 5.318 3,783 4,173 2,664 1,454
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBLATER 1,435,430 644,592 253,516 383,669 249,184
Income tax expense Fris R (427,943) (145,297) (41,801) (116,065) (47,670)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM EKEE£K 2
CONTINUING OPERATIONS R 1,007,487 499,295 211,715 267,604 201,514
DISCONTINUED OPERATION B I %%
Profit for the year from a BRIEEEB 2
discontinued operation FRHF - - - - 106,124
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F AT 1,007,487 499,295 211,715 267,604 307,638
Attributable to: e
Owners of the Company ARBBR 964,363 448,652 191,379 215,276 282,188
Non-controlling interests FEE R 43,124 50,643 20,336 52,328 25,450
1,007,487 499,295 211,715 267,604 307,638
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND ¥E 868K
NON-CONTROLLING FIERER
INTERESTS
TOTAL ASSETS BEAE 9,720,863 6,215,534 4,582,079 4,107,941 3,652,864
TOTAL LIABILITIES EE8E (6,976,989)  (4,464,898)  (3,360,537)  (3,181,199)  (2,847,339)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS  FE#2 Bk #E 25 (191,343) (131,728) (95,673) (88,891) (155,167)
2,552,531 1,618,908 1,125,869 837,851 650,358

Annual Report 2010 —Z —ZF F 3|



Haier /12«

FSC™ C008061




	COVER
	INSIDE FRONT
	CONTENTS
	CORPORATE PROFILE
	SIMPLIFIED BUSINESS STRUCTURE
	CORPORATE INFORMATION
	CHAIRMAN’S LETTER
	DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
	BUSINESS REVIEW
	FINANCIAL REVIEW
	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
	REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
	INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
	CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
	CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
	STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
	NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
	FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
	BACK COVER

